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1. GENERAL

Cementarnica USIE AD Skopje (the “Company” or “USJE”) is incorporated in the Republic of North
Macedonia with the registered address at Boris Trajkovski 94, Skopje.

The Company’s main activity is production and trade of cement, masonry cement, ready mix concrete,
clinker and other related products.

2. SALES PERFORMANCE

Cement

Cement demand in North Macedonia has increased during 2021, despite the continuing duration of the
global pandemic of COVID-19. Given the overall situation, individual investments in real estate, especially
in domestic touristic areas were increased, while in the same time there were also ongoing infrastructural
projects in the country. Thus, the volume of cement sold on the domestic market was increased for 7.4%
vs. the previous year.

Kosovo market was demanding and challenging and the year was finished with the same quantities of sold
cement, as the previous one.

Usje managed to supply both domestic and Kosovo markets’ needs and the total growth of sales volume
compared to previous year is 5%.

The financial results did not correspond to the sales volumes, due to dramatic increase of the energy prices
in the second half of the year. Therefore, the company EBITDA was lower for 20% than the previous year.

In 2021 Usje achieved sales volumes of 1.032 million tons of cement which presents a milestone after 1977.

Vertical Integration

Although the sale of ready-mix concrete and aggregates was below the planned quantities, 2021 successfully
resulted with positive EBITDA. The sales of 34.6K m3 ready-mixed concrete contributed to the achievement.
The RMC unit is a major factor in testing new types of environmentally friendly cements. Namely, this year
we introduced in regular use CEM Il / B V-L 42.5 R, cement with lower CO. load, i.e., green cement with
extremely high performance.

We also remain in the market as producers of extremely high-performance concrete, well recognized by our
traditional customers.

Digitalization and Decarbonization

During 2021 Cementarnica USJE started a road to further develop its operations through transformation,
focusing on resilience and innovation moving towards carbon-neutral and digital world. In our ESG targets
2025 and beyond we commit to reduce our carbon footprint by 2030.

CO; innovation — Introduction of new bagged cement product CEM IV 42,5 N

The new type of cement product easily started to substitute the other cements on the market, offering the
same characteristics. The sales of bulk cement CEM Il B-M (V-L) 42,5 R have increased, meaning that slowly
it imposes as a more “ECO” friendly variant. With the substitution to these products, we are producing less
CO; proving that we not only care for the market and clients but we also care for the environment and our
planet as well.

Digitalization process in Usje in 2021 was with focus on process improvements and maximizing customers

experience
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Heat map concept as process digitalization heading towards artificial intelligence was implemented aiming
improvement of production process monitoring and management (through big data analysis of the input
process parameters the system to evaluate and signal if any of the key variables is out of the range). This
provides improved running of the production process and production KPIs.

Pre-cognize concept is typical maintenance digitalized tool for preventive maintenance through data
analysis and by which through recording signal inputs from more than 2000 sensors it will be possible to
predict equipment problems before they occurred.

TITANUP Mobile application and web platform for our customers - TitanUp was upgraded with new
improved versions and additional Apps aiming to provide maximum customers experience. In 2021, TitanUp
became very “easy to use” tool, for more than 99% of our cement buying clients, and more than 96% of all
the load orders.

3. OPERATIONS

During 2021 the kilns’ operation followed sales domestic and export demand patterns, while at the same
time focusing on stocks, assets and working capital optimization. In 2021, USJE managed to substitute
about 2.1% of the conventional solid fuel with alternative fuel (Textile and rice husk) which contributed to
the improving of the fuel-mix cost. The specific fuel heat consumption (SFHC) was decreased compared to
previous year. Usage of Natural gas for kilns preheating and raw mill preparation was decreased compared
to previous year for 40%. Usage of electrical energy (kWh/t cement) was decreased by 3.6% per ton of
cement compared to budgeted ones, which was a result from the continuous optimization of the process
parameters. All this contributed to decreasing CO, emissions/ton cement. The clinker to cement ratio
remained on a stable level with decreasing tendency.

4. HEALTH & SAFETY

In 2021 we succeeded to maintain safe and healthy working conditions for our employees and contractors.
By implementation of various preventive measures and benefits (workspace reorganization, shifts
rescheduling, protective masks available for all employees, regular periodical disinfection of workspace,
PCR testing etc.) we managed to control Covid 19 virus spreading within the plant. By promoting
vaccination, 94% of the employees got vaccinated. Compared to the previous year, we had decreased
number of employees affected by the virus.

Strong commitment of the management towards Health and Safety conditions in the plant continued in
2021 as well, and this resulted to completion of almost all health and safety targets for the year. All
managers were involved in Safety walks, Area ownership program, Safety audits etc.

After a year of decreased trainings due to Corona virus, we are back on track and last year we reached to
17.4 h per employee safety trainings for all our employees and 16.4 h per contractor employee which is
higher than the target 15h per employee and contractor.

The external audits and state inspectorate confirmed the Company’s compliance with OH&S regulation and

standards. Internal audit from the group Health and Safety director was green light (acceptable).
This year we ended up with 3 LTls, two of contractor, and one our employee.

5. HUMAN RESOURCES & ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE (ESG)

For more than sixty years Cementarnica USJE has sought to create added value for people, society and the
environment through its entire value chain and overall operations. Our focus is on engagement with our
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internal and external stakeholders, international and key partners at the local level, aiming to contribute to
environmental & health protection as well as community development.

Employee engagement

People development — Following our Group’s commitment for continuous development of our people
aimed at strengthening and growth of the organization towards achieving our business objectives, series of
promotions, rotations, and job enrichments of people on key positions were implemented. Moreover,
continuous development of our people being our priority, in 2021 we provided total of 12.064 training hours
that were mainly focused on H&S, process and maintenance topics, as well as leadership and managerial
skills.

Care for our people - The Company continued with its commitment to support our people and our
operations in times of crisis. People and activity reorganization under extraordinary circumstances was
provided focusing mainly on medical protection of our employees, guidelines for self-protection and health
campaigns.

- To further promote our care for the wellbeing of our employees being one of our key commitments, this
year we introduced Mental Health Campaign “How are you”. Through this campaign we make available
useful resources along with our consulting service EAP Program aimed at building upon our people’s
resilience.

- The Employee Assistance Program (EAP) for all our employees and their families was implemented to help
maintain health, mental and emotional well-being, and performance.

- The Employee Survey Action Plan prepared in December 2020 was fully implemented during the year.
Internal Communication

- On the occasion on reaching a sales milestone of one million tons of cement, communication meetings
with all employees were organized to celebrate success together and to give recognition to all our people.

- Communication day with all employees was organized in July 2021, during which the management team
presented and emphasized the Company’s milestones, our values, wellbeing programs, and technological
improvements, the quality of our products, as well as our H&S and environmental protection endeavors.

- Open day for the employees and their family members was organized with ceremony of awarding Health

& Safety Awards.

Open dialogue and transparent communication with our stakeholders

To understand the community's problems and challenges, we maintain an ongoing dialogue and assess
needs and opportunities, after which we contribute with resources and share our know-how to help build
solid foundations for a better future for all:

- A stakeholder engagement event was organized with more than 200 guests present such as business
partners, customers, suppliers, academy professors, and journalists, representatives of NGOs, local
government, and ministries. The CED communicated to all the guests and shared information about USJE’s
results and our endeavors towards sustainability.

- New Company Website — On our new Company website available at www.usje.mk we regularly
communicate about all our activities and commitments, sustainable development, health and safety at
workplace, our commitment to environmental protection, as well as projects implemented with our
products across the country. Furthermore, the emission monitoring results are regularly published on our
web site as well as to the media and the wider public on a weekly basis.
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Engaging towards De-carbonization

This year USIE continues the participation in the “Waste to energy for Western Balkans” project together
with Antea Plant from Albania and Kosjeric Plant from Serbia which is aimed to raise awareness of use of
alternative fuels among the wider public.

Community support in fight with pandemic

Having in mind COVID-19 crisis, USJE supported the wider community with few donations in kind such as:
building materials to one city hospital for improving the conditions in hospital premises, blood-testing
apparatus to one university clinic and collaboration with Ministry of labor and social policy and one civil
association (CeProSard) for equipping of centers for housing people with disabilities with 24-hour care.

Continuation of Partnering with school project

In 2021 USJE continued the Partnering with Schools Project aiming to improve health and safety and
environmental and energy efficiency of kindergartens and primary schools. Within this project the last year
one primary school was equipped with technical goods for facilitating the educational process during the
pandemic, a local kindergarten was renovated for improving the energy-efficient conditions for the children
and inside toilet premises were renovated in the center for children with impaired hearing.

Annual Sustainability Report

Our Annual Sustainability Report fully implemented the extensive range of indicators of key environmental
protection performance, social performance, and value creation of Titan Group. These key performance
indicators cover the shared information on the Group's compliance with the Ten Principles of the UN Global
Compact and the reporting standards established in keeping with TITAN Group's sectoral approach,

SDG Pioneer Accolade

USJE was awarded with an SDG Pioneer Accolade for our best practices mainly focused on the following
SDGs: Goal 3: Good health and well-being, Goal 4: Quality education and Goal: 13 Climate change.

6. ENVIRONMENTAL

As a part of TITAN Group, USIE is committed to sustainable development and continuous improvement of
its environmental footprint. Since year 2011 Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje has an A-IPPC Permit with
adjustment Plan that has been upgraded into A-Integrated Environmental Permit, issued by the Ministry of
Environment and Physical Planning. The Company has established, documented, implemented and
maintains an Environmental Management System and continually improves its effectiveness in accordance
with the requirements of the 1SO 14001:2015 standard. The Environmental Management System is part of
the Integrated Management System in Usje. The scope of the System is to cover all environmental issues
concerning the production and the exploitation of quarries. The system is maintained and audited on yearly
basis for its compliance. The last re-certification of the EMS was performed in August 2021. Activities related
to protection of environment are incorporated in all our activities. In this context, some of the projects
realized in the course of 2021 are listed below:

Green Belt

Within the project Green Belt, a total 36728 plants were planted in year 2021, out of which 30301 trees
were planted on the final benches of the marl quarry, 4070 trees were planted at the limestone quarry on
Govrlevo, and 2357 plants (trees, flowers and bushes) were planted at the factory green areas. Increasing
of the green areas, positively contributes for reducing of the fugitive dust and minimizing visual impacts to
neighbouring residential buildings.
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Noise minimization

The measured noise level at the monitoring points in the perimeter of the factory and quarries does not
exceed the stipulated permissible limits.

The measured noise at the monitoring points at the perimeter of the factory and quarries does not exceed
the stipulated permit limits. Following our endeavour to do more good and minimize our footprint and
despite that the noise generated by our operations is below the legal limits, in 2021 USIE continued to
implement activities for noise minimization according to the Action Plan of the Study for Noise minimization
in the plant’s vicinity, developed by Faculty of Natural and Technical Sciences in Shtip.

Energy efficiency

Measures for Energy efficiency are increasingly recognized as valuable means to achieve a sustainable
energy supply. Furthermore, the implementation of EE measures reduces greenhouse gas emissions,
improve security of energy supply, lower costs, and even promote competitiveness. In 2021, part of the
planned projects for improvement of energy efficiency were implemented, such as replacement and
modernization of indoor and outdoor lighting, insulation of administrative buildings as part of the proposed
measures from the Detailed Energy audits for buildings. Also, in 2021 we certified ISO 50001:2018 System
for energy management

Air Emissions

The monitoring of air emissions is a precondition for control and mitigation of the impacts from cement
production on the environment. USJE employs an independent 24-hour-system for continuous monitoring
of emissions, which enables it to closely monitor the emissions in real time and undertaking timely corrective
measures. As a corporate socially responsible company, USJE publishes the air emissions reports on its
webpage on a weekly basis. The same reports we are sending to the media, as well.

Annual average of air emissions from the main emission sources, are presented in the following graphs:
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*MLV=50 mg/Nm3 — Maximum limit value according to national law for emissions

*MLV=30 mg/Nm? — Maximum limit valye accepted from USJE in the A-IPPC
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Reducing the Emissions of Fugitive Dust

Following the Action Plan for minimization of fugitive dust emissions in USJE’s Plant and quarries, the
following activities comprising individual or combined measures were completed within the year 2021:

Partially closing of open parts of the pre-heater towers, installing metal barriers

Closing of the open parts of the hall for sand and limestone, installing metal walls and doors
Continuous monitoring and change of the auxiliary de-dusting filters,

Renewal of access roads within the factory - continuous activity,

Creating a green belt around the plant and quarries - continuous activity.

In compliance with the A-Integrated Environmental Permit for conformity with the operational plan, an
independent authorized laboratory performed measurements of PM10 particles at the plant’s perimeter.
Based on those measurements, State Environmental Inspectorate confirmed that there is no direct
correlation between the operations of USIE’s Plant and the measured values of PM10 in the ambient air.
These values mainly depend on the weather conditions.
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Usage of Alternative Fuels

In 2018, USJE introduced a new, modern technology that allows replacement of a certain percentage of the
conventional fossil fuels used for heating the kilns with alternative fuels. In order to enhance utilization and
to increase opportunity for usage of different alternative fuels, Usje Cement Plant in May 2021 installed
new equipment for shredding and dosing. This equipment enables Usje to use different fractions of non-
hazardous waste as alternative fuels. The utilisation of the alternative fuels is in line with the A-Integrated
Environmental Permit. In this process, we use the best world practices, proven efficient technologies and
equipment.

7. OTHER INFORMATION

USJE’s Management is firmly committed to the continuing integration of the rules and practices into the
Company’s operations, which promote transparency, responsibility, reliability, sustainable development
and corporate social responsibility in every aspect and field of activity of the Company and its entire
network of relationships with shareholders, employees, Customers, suppliers, contractors and the society.
Respectively, USJE discloses the following information;

1. USIE has two executive members of the Board of Directors (“BoD”), and that is the Chief Executive
Director (“CED”) and Executive Director, and 5 non-executive members from which 2 are
independent.

2. The CED and the Executive Director are not receiving any earnings based on their membership in
the BoD. The total income (salaries, other contributions, bonuses, insurance, and other receipts)
of the executive members of the BoD and of the other members of the key personnel of the
Company in 2021 is in amount of 109,747 thousand denars. None of the 5 non-executive members
have earnings based on their membership in the BoD.

3. Dividend Policy
Based on the Company’s dividend policy dividend is distributed every year, according to proposal
on BoD and after approval of the Annual Shareholder’s Assembly.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders,
On 25 May 2021, the General Assembly brought a Decision for distribution of the remaining
dividend for the year ended 2020 after the payment of the advanced dividend for the period
January - September 2020 in accordance with the Company Law. The dividend declared was in
amount of MKD 528,105 thousand which consists of MKD 81,769 thousand profit from 2020, MKD
140,362 thousand reinvested profit from 2015. The remaining profit from 2020 in amount of MKD
305,974 thousand was reinvested to benefit from the new tax incentives available for such
activities.

Declared remaining dividend for the year ended 2020 paid in 2021 was MKD 394 per share.

Additionally, On 22 September 2021, the Bord of Directors brought a Decision for distribution of
advanced dividend for the period January - June 2021 in accordance with the Company Law. The
dividend declared was in amount of MKD 927,988 thousand based on the approved statutory
separate financial statements as of 30 June 2021 and for the six - month period then ended and
transferred revaluation surplus included in the Equity in relation to the item Property, Plant and
Equipment directly to Retained Earnings, as net amount of MKD 241,694 thousand as per statutory
accounts (MKD: 207,829 as per financial information prepared in accordance with Titan Group
accounting policies), and at the same time creating an obligation to pay the profit tax on revaluation
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reserves when transferred to accumulated profit in amount of MKD 26,854 thousand. Transfers
from Revaluation Surpluses to Retained Earnings are not made through the Profit or Loss.

Declared and paid advance dividend for the period January - June 2021 was in amount of MKD
1,646 per share.

4. The sources of the Company’s assets are its operating cash flow.

5. The financial results for 2021 are an integral part of the Financial Statements of the Company and
the Group as of 31 December 2021.

6. Consequently, to the previous, a financial risk management policy was explained in detail in the
Note 20 to the Financial Statements of the Company and the Group as of 31 December 2021.

7. During 2021, all transactions with the interested parties are realized in the ordinary course of the
business of the Company (Note 18 to the Financial Statements of the Company and the Group as
of 31 December 2021).

8. USIE shares the Titan Group’s CSR Vision and CSR Policy, to “conduct its business in an ethical and

socially responsible manner doing less harm and endeavouring to do more good.”

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance statement

Good corporate governance principles and comprehensive risk management are essential to building
effective external relationships, and thus to the company's stability. These principles coupled with our
corporate values guide us through every aspect of our business. Compliance with and application of them
in the daily work is ensured at the highest level through the functioning of several boards and committees:
Board of Directors, Central Management Committee, Credit Control Committee, H&S Committee, CSR
Committee and Quality and Environmental Board.

Effective risk management is essential for the achievement of the company’s strategic goals and long-term
sustainable development. The company has developed agile systems for monitoring, eliminating, or
minimizing various potential and significant risks. The Central Management Committee is generally
responsible for the Company’s risk management plans, implementation and evaluating their effectiveness
each year through management systems. The Board of Directors confirms that the Company has internal
control systems and risk management policies in place and that it has been informed by the CED and the
competent Group executives about their effectiveness. The assurance mechanism regarding the integrity of
the Company’s financial statements consists of 3 combination of the embedded risk management processes,
the applied financial control activities, the relevant information technology utilized, and the financial
information prepared, communicated, and monitored. The monthly monitoring of the financial statements
is the key element of the controlling mechanism regarding the quality and integrity of financial results.
External auditors review the semi-annual financial statements and the annual financial statements of the
Company

Our business practices based on compliance are guided by and based on the TITAN Cement Group values
and Code of Conduct. According to the TITAN Group's Anti Bribery and Corruption policy, we have principles
for working with suppliers, contractors, or other related parties. They comply with all applicable laws and
willingly make a contractual commitment, where it is feasible, to represent that they abide by the relevant
anti-bribery and anti-corruption rules.
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During 2021 Usje made available and raised awareness through trainings of our key employees on the
following policies: Human Rights, Anti-Bribery and Corruption, Competition Law Compliance, Sanctions
Policy, Group H&S Policy, as well as refresher on Code of Conduct.

Cementarnica Usje AD is a listed company on the official market of the Macedonian Stock Exchange AD
Skopje in the sub-segment "mandatory listing”. Pursuant to the Listing Rules of the Macedonian Stock
Exchange, available on their website, Cementarnica Usje AD as a listed company on the sub-segment
“mandatory listing”, has no obligation to apply the principles contained in the new Corporate Governance
Code of the Macedonian Stock Exchange from 2021, for the business year 2021.

Cementarnica Usje AD applies the principles of good corporate governance in accordance with the
standards set out in the Law for Trade Companies. Cementarnica Usje AD has not adopted a special code
for corporate governance, but it has adopted internal acts that regulate corporate governance & the way
in _Mthgh internal acts are made available.

loannis Paniaras

President of the Board of Directors
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Cementarnica Usje AD Skopje

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Cementarnica Usje
AD Skopje and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards applicable in the Repubilic of
North Macedonia and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on auditing applicable in
the Republic of North Macedonia (the "Standards"). The Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Revizija DOO 16, 8 Septemvri Blvd. Hyperium Business Center, 2nd floor, 1000
Skopje Republic of North Macedonia, VAT No. MK4030008022586, T: +389 2 3140 900, F: +389 2 3116 525,
www.pwc.com/mk
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting standards applicable in the
Republic of North Macedonia.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Annual report prepared by the Management in accordance with the requirement of the article
384 of the Company Law.

Management is also responsible for the preparation of the Consolidated Annual accounts and
Annual Report of the Group, which were approved by the Board of Directors.

As required by the Audit Law, we report that the historical information presented in the Annual
Report prepared by Management of the Group in accordance with article 384 of the Company
Law is consistent in all material respects with the financial information presented in the
Consolidated Annual Accounts and audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group, as
of 31 December 2021 and for the year then ended.

L e—

( Drdgan Davitkov
General Manager

T
&)géa%avitkov

Certified Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers Revizija DOO Skopje

1 April 2022
‘ Skopje, Republic of North Macedonia
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje Z TITAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Notes MKD’000 MKD’000
Sales 3a 4,887,251 4,574,280
Other revenue 3b 126,970 103,674
Cost of sales 3c (3,456,831) (2,650,618)
Gross profit 1,557,390 2,027,336
Other operating income 3d 158,005 122,471
Other operating expenses 3e (186,018) (215,914)
Selling and marketing expenses (36,354) (33,863)
Administrative expenses 3f (214,048) (223,424)
Operating profit 1,278,975 1,676,606
Finance income 2,660 3,232
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) net (704) 7,121
Finance costs (6,928) (3,130)
Net finance income 39 (4,972) 7,223
Profit before tax 1,274,003 1,683,829
Income tax expense 4 (101,624) (161,673)
Profit for the year 1,172,379 1,522,156
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Investment Property revaluation surplus 8 14,932 15,800
Translation differences (17) (18)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,187,294 1,537,938
Net profit for the period attributable to:
Equity holder of the parent company 1,113,760 1,443,613
Non- controlling interest 58,619 78,543
1,172,379 1,522,156
Earnings per share information:
Basic, profit for the period attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent company 5 2.08 2.70
Total Comprehensive income for the period
attributable to:
Equity holder of the parent company 1,127,929 1,458,580
Non - controlling interest 59,365 79,359
1,187,294 1,537,938

The accompanying notes from 8 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements 4




Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje /-{T"-AN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31 December 2021
2021 2020
Notes MKD'000 MKD'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment PPE 6 2,659,926 2,511,875
Intangible assets 7 14,001 13,705
Goodwill 2,468 -
Investment properties 8 250,812 222,744
Exploration and evaluation assets 9 1,354 4,466
Deferred Tax Assets 74 44
2,928,635 2,752,834
Current assets
Inventories 10 1,249,683 864,519
Trade and other receivables 11 496,539 400,833
Income tax receivable 18,939 128
Short term borrowings 15 17
Cash and short term deposits 12 356,802 697,609
2,121,978 1,963,106
TOTAL ASSETS 5,050,613 4,715,940
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 13 1,747,730 1,747,730
Share premium 1,122 307
Retained earnings 484,101 385,727
Other reserves 14 319,681 573,315
Reinvested profit 1,105,778 940,166
3,658,412 3,647,245
Provision for retirement benefits 15 55,543 49,438
Provision for rehabilitation of quarries 1,493 6,894
57,036 56,332
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 1,318,186 968,707
Provision for unused vacations 4,003 4,496
Current portion of retirement benefit obligations 15 3,040 3,728
Income tax payable . ) 9,495 30,931
Dividend payable/” / 441 4,501
/ 1,335,165 1,012,363
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,050,613 4,715,940
Authorized/on/b¢half of the Board of Directors on 28 February 2022: / /

l-lrisafolv B(} i

C.'!'.riefﬁ‘&'e itive Director

Nikos Molsourds_

A f.";‘f.; Al N,
Head of accgunting 0 b
B \)

The accompanying notes from 8 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements 5
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje QTITAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020

MKD 000 MKD 000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income taxes 1,274,003 1,683,829
Adjustments for:
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (801) -
Depreciation of PPE and investment properties 206,927 182,267
Actuarial losses, net 7,387 6,239
Interest cost, accretion on provision for retirement benefit
obligations 1,535 1,617
Interest income (2,660) (3,232)
Provision for obsolete inventory 19,359 49,484
Provision for unused holidays, net 493 (5,576)
Fair value (gain)/losses, net (11,111) 1,484
Interest expense and bank charges 5,393 1,514
Write off trade receivables 400 978
NBV of disposed and written off PPE 3,141 12
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,504,066 1,918,616
Decrease in trade and other receivables (96,106) (78,209)
Decrease in inventories (404,524) (197,356)
Increase in trade and other payables 340,210 320,483
Cash generated from operations 1,343,646 1,963,534
Interest expense and bank charges paid (5,393) (1,514)
Income tax paid (168,649) (165,274)
Net cash flows generated from operations 1,169,604 1,796,746
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (357,383) (223,996)
Increase of participation in subsidiaries (2,468) (21,593)
Expenditures for exploration and evaluation assets - 271
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 973 12
Proceeds from borrowings - (17)
Interest income received 2,660 3,232
Net cash flows used in investing activities (356,218) (242,091)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to group shareholders (1,094,487) (2,338,633)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (59,692) (123,300)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (1,154,179) (2,461,933)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (340,794) (907,278)
Net foreign exchange differences (13) 3
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 697,609 1,604,884
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12 356,802 697,609

The accompanying notes from 8 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements 6




Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Share capital Share Retained Other Reinvested
premium earnings Reserves profit Total
(Note 14)

MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD 000 MKD’000

At 1 January 2021 1,747,730 307 385,727 573,315 940,166 3,647,245

Profit for the year _ _ 1.172.379 _ _ 1.172.379

Other comprehensive income _ R 32 14.932 R 14964
Other comprehensive income

(translation differences) - - - 7 - 17

Total comprehensive income _ R 1172411 14.915 R 1.187.326

Dividends, net _ _ (222'131) _ _ (222'131)

Advanced dividend R - (927,988) - - (927,988)

Transfer to retained earnings _ R 382,056 (268,549) (140,362) (26,855)

Reinvested profit _ R (305,974) _ 305.974 R

Share options _ 815 _ _ R 815

At 31 December 2021 1,747,730 1,122 484,101 319,681 1,105,778 3,658,412

On 25 May 2021, the General Assembly brought a Decision for distribution of the remaining dividend for the year
ended 2020 after the payment of the advanced dividend for the period 1 January - 30 September 2020 in accordance
with the Company Law. The dividend declared was in amount of MKD 528,105 thousand which consists of MKD
81,769 thousand profit from 2020, MKD 140,362 thousand reinvested profit from 2015. The remaining profit from
2020 in amount of MKD 305,974 thousand was reinvested to benefit from the new tax incentives available for such
activities.

On 22 September 2021, the Bord of Directors brought a Decision for distribution of advanced dividend for the period
January - June 2021 in accordance with the Company Law. The dividend declared was in amount of MKD 927,988
thousand based on the approved statutory separate financial statements as of 30 June 2021 and for the six - month
period then ended and transferred revaluation surplus included in the Equity in relation to the item Property, Plant and
Equipment directly to Retained Earnings, as net amount of MKD 241,694 thousand and at the same time creating an
obligation to pay the profit tax on revaluation reserves when transferred to accumulated profit in amount of MKD
26,854 thousand. Transfers from Revaluation Surpluses to Retained Earnings are not made through the Profit or Loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Share capital Share
premium Retained Other Reinvested
earnings Reserves profit Total
(Note 14)
MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000
At 1 January 2020 1,747,730 - 1,273,103 557,533 996,625 4,574,991
Profit for the year _ _ 1522 156 _ _ 1522156
Other comprehensive income (See
note 8) - - - 15,800 - 15,800
Other comprehensive income
(translation differences) - - - (18) - (18)
Total Comprehensive income _ _ 1522 156 15782 _ 1537.938
Dividends, net - ; (1,330,530) . ; (1,330,530)
Advanced dividend R - (1,135,461) - - (1,135,461)
Transfer to retained earnings _ R 210 161 _ (210,161) R
Reinvested proflt _ _ (153 702) _ 153.702 _
Share options _ 307 _ _ R 307
At 31 December 2020 1,747,730 307 385,727 573,315 940,166 3,647,245

The accompanying notes from 8 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements 7
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2021

1. Corporate information

Cementarnica “Usje” A.D. - Skopje (“the Company”) is incorporated in the Republic of North
Macedonia with the registered address at Boris Trajkovski 94, Skopje. The Company as of 31
December 2021 has one foreign subsidiary, TROJAN CEM EOOD, Bulgaria with 100% holding
and one subsidiary in the Republic of North Macedonia- ID Kompani DOOEL also with 100%
holding (together referred to as “the Group”).

The Company’s main activity is production and trade with cement, masonry cement, ready mix
concrete, clinker and other related products. The main activity of the subsidiary in Bulgaria
TROJAN CEM is support services for sale of cement on Bulgarian market. The main activity of
the domestic subsidiary is production of mill products. The domestic subsidiary ID Kompani
DOOEL owns the Opalit DOOEL Cesinovo which main activity is other mining activities and
exploration of stones.

The Group is controlled by Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. registered in Netherlands, which has
95% shareholding in the Company. As of 31 December 2021 Group’s ultimate parent is Titan
Cement International S.A. Belgium.

Officially starting from 1 July 2013, Cementarnica “Usje” A.D. - Skopje has become a listed
company on the Macedonian Stock Exchange (under the sub-segment for mandatory listing). The
listed companies has continuing obligations to publish all price sensitive information, information
necessary for evaluating the current company’s condition.

The number of employees of the Group as of 31 December 2021 was 244 (31 December 2020:
243).

The Group financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 February 2022. These financial statements are subject to
approval from the Group’s Shareholders Assembly.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
Company Law (Official Gazette of Republic of Macedonia No. 28/04, 84/05, 25/07, 87/08, 42/10,
48/10, 24/11, 166/12, 70/13 119/13, 120/13, 187/13, 38/14, 41/14, 138/14, 88/15, 192/15, 6/16,
30/16, 61/16, 64/18, 120/18, 239/18 and 290/20 and the Official Gazette of Republic of North
Macedonia no. 215/2021) and Accounting Principles applicable in the Republic of Macedonia
(“Macedonian GAAP”), which are in accordance to the new Rulebook of Accounting published
on 29 December 2009 (Official Gazette of Republic of Macedonia 159/09 , 164/10 and 107/11)
effective from 1 January 2010. This Rulebook comprise the basic text of IFRS's including SIC’s
and IFRIC’s as issued by |ASB at 1 January 2009.

In the period as of 31 December 2009 applicable standards were the International Accounting
Standards published in Official Gazette of Republic of Macedonia which comprise the following:

e The revisions of International Accounting Standards, IAS 1 to 1AS 39 were published on 30
December 2004, previously effective as of 5 November 1999.The effective date for all revised
standards is January 1, 2005. In addition, International Accounting Standards, IAS 40 and IAS
41 were published with the effective date 1 January 2005.

e On 10 February 2005 International Financial Reporting Standard 1 was published. The
effective date was set to 17 February 2005.

e On 29 December 2005 International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 2 to IFRS 7 were
published. The effective date was set to 30 December 2005.

8
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2021
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

IFRS 9, IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IFRS 13, IFRS 14, IFRS 15, IFRS 16, IFRS 17, IFRIC 18,
IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 21, IFRIC 22 and IFRIC 23 are not included in the Rule Book for
Accounting and are not applied by the Group.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for the investment property that have been measured at fair value. The Group’s
consolidated financial statements are presented in Macedonian Denars (“MKD”) which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousands (‘000) except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on accruals and going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiary, TROJAN CEM EOOD, Bulgaria with 100% holding and one domestic subsidiary 1D
Kompani Dooel import export Kocani with 100% holding which has one subsidiary in its full
ownership, OPALIT DOOEL v. Cheshinovo - Obleshevo. The financial statements of the
consolidated subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, using
consistent accounting policies.

On 18 December 2017 the Company received Electricity trading license which raise certain
responsibilities towards the State Regulatory Committee. In 2019 only one transaction related to
trading of electricity and further no activities related to the license raised up.

All intra-group income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions that are recognized in assets, are eliminated in full. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Investment in subsidiary

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Company controls another entity.

b. Operating segments

Operating segments are components that engage in business activities that may earn revenues or
incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Management and for which
discrete financial information is available.
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
b. Operating segments (continued)

The Management is the person or group of persons who allocates resources and assesses the
performance for the entity.

In the Group, the above described functions of the Management are performed by Board of the
Directors of the Group. The internal reporting within the Group presented to the Board of
Directors is on a Group level and as one operating segment. The decisions brought by the Board
of Directors are based on received reports presented as one operating segment.

c. Comparatives

In order to maintain consistency with the current year presentation, certain items may have been
reclassified for comparative purposes. Material changes in disclosures, if any, are described in
detail in the relevant notes.

d. Foreign currency translation

The Group and the Company prepare the financial statements in Macedonian denars, which is the
Group’s and the Company’s functional currency and the presentation currency for local statutory
purposes. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements in each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at
the date of transaction. Monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
All differences are taken to profit or loss.

The functional currency of the domestic entities is Macedonian denar and of the foreign
operations, TROJAN CEM EOOD - Bulgaria is the Euro. As of each reporting date, the assets
and liabilities of this subsidiary are translated through conversion in euro into the presentation
currency of Cementarnica “USJE” AD (the Macedonian Denars) at the rate of exchange ruling at
the reporting date (2021: 61.6270 MKD for Euro 1; (2020: 61.6940 MKD for Euro 1) and, its
profit or loss is translated at the weighted average exchange rate for the year (2021: MKD
61.6324 for Euro 1; 2020: MKD 61.6934 for Euro 1). The exchange differences arising on the
translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognized in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

e. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated as follows:

= those assets acquired up to 31 December 1998, the revaluation under the previous GAAP at
the date of transition of the Group to IFRS (1 January 2004) was accepted as deemed cost
since the revaluation was broadly comparable to depreciated cost under IFRS adjusted to
reflect changes in general price index.

= those assets acquired after 31 December 1998 are stated at historical cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and / or accumulated impairment loss, if any.

10
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2021
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

e. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the Profit or Loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment that are retired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from
the statement of financial position, along with the corresponding accumulated depreciation. Gains
and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the profit or loss.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, with exception of quarries, is designed to write off
the cost or valuation of property, plant and equipment on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The principal depreciation rates in use are:

Buildings 2.5-10%
Equipment 5-25%

Land is stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less impairment and is
not depreciated as it is deemed to have an infinite life, except quarries which are depreciated on a
depletion basis. This depletion is recorded as the material extraction process advances based on
the unit of production method.

The asset’s methods of depreciation, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
financial year end.

f.  Investment property

Investment property, comprising of land, production premises with business offices and
construction object - restaurant and cafeteria room, is held for long-term rental yields and is not
occupied by the Group. The investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects the
market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise, including
the corresponding tax effect. Fair values are determined based on valuation performed by
independent valuer using the income method and the market comparison method as primary
valuation methods which are generally accepted in European valuation practice.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized in the income statement in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a
transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the cost for subsequent accounting
is the fair value at the date of change in use.

If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group’s accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date
of change in use. Any difference at that date between the carrying amount of the property in
accordance with IAS 16 and its fair value is treated in the same way as a revaluation in
accordance with IAS 16.

11
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2021

2.2Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
g. Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation expenditure for each area of interest (geographically specific to the
concession, permit or mining license granted) is carried forward as an asset if a decision has been
made that a mining operation is economically feasible and can be developed for commercial
production. At the end of the reporting period, these costs include costs of acquisition of rights to
explore. All other exploration and evaluation expenditures are charged to the profit or loss as
incurred.

Administrative and general expenses relating to exploration and evaluation activities are expensed
as incurred.

h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(i) Financial assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial
assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All financial
assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade dateline., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables,
and short term loans.

Subsequent measurement - Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method (EIR). The gains and losses are recognized in the income
statement in the moment when the loans and receivables are reversed or when the value is
decreased due to impairment, and through the amortization process.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets)is derecognized when:
e Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
o The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
any has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

12
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event')
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. Individually significant financial assets are tested
for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in
groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. All impairment losses are recognized in the
income statement.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

(i) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in
the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement- Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in in
profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization process.

13
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

(i) Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as ad recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

i. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads, excluding distribution
costs and administrative expenses. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Tools and consumable stores are written-off 100% when consumed.

j.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, the giro account and deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of up to three months or less.

k. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

14
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2021

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

I.  Share-based, long-term, incentive plan

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to members of senior management via Group share
schemes that cover several subsidiaries. Currently, the Group has the following schemes: 1) the
share options plans (2014 and 2017) and 2) the long-term incentive plan introduced in 2020, which
concerns share awards.

A Group share-based payment transaction is classified from the perspective of each reporting
Company, rather than by making a single classification determination that is applicable to all Group
Companies. The Company participates in the 2020 long-term incentive plan, which is classified as
cash-settled in the financial statements of the Group, but it is classified as equity-settled in the
Company’s separate financial statements, as the Group has no obligation to settle the award.
Consequently, it recognises the fair value of the awards as an employee benefits expense in profit or
loss, with a corresponding increase in equity.

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted,
which is based on the parent’s share price on grant date. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which the specified service conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of awards that are expected to
vest based on the specified vesting conditions and forfeiture rate. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

m. Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2021
2.2Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

m. Taxation (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

n. Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group, in the normal course of business, makes payments on behalf of its employees for
pensions, health care, employment and personnel tax which are calculated according to the statutory
rates in force during the year, based on gross salaries and wages. Food allowances travel expenses
and holiday allowances are also calculated according to the local legislation. The Group makes
these contributions to the Government’s health and retirement funds. The cost of these payments is
charged to the profit or loss in the same period as the related salary cost.

The Group does not operate any other pension scheme or post-retirement benefits plan and
consequently, has no obligation in respect of pensions.

Termination and retirement benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the
normal retirement date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either terminate the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy.

Pursuant to the Group’s signed collective bargaining agreements the Group is obligated to pay
retirement benefits in an amount equal to six average republic salaries and between one and three
average republic salaries to be paid out as a jubilee anniversary award. The number of average
republic salaries for jubilee anniversary awards corresponds to the total number of years of
service of the employee as presented in the table below:

Total number of Service Years Number of Wages
10 1
20 3
30 3
35 (women) 3
40 (men) 3
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
n. Employee benefits (continued)

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the Project
Unit Credit Method. According to the model, the probability of the cash outflow is estimated by
calculating probabilities of three decrements: death, invalidity and turnover rate. The probability
table is constructed by using assumptions about the probability of death of the employee up to the
date when he/she should retire, the probability that the employee will retire earlier due to
invalidity and the probability that the employee will terminate the service in the Group before the
date when he/she should retire. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using the discount rate from the yields on the
government bonds issued in Macedonia in 2021 and classified by maturity.

Employee’s children scholarships

Starting from 31 December 2009, included in the actuarial calculation of defined benefits are
allowances for scholarships of Group employees children attending graduate or post graduate
studies and for diseased employee children that are attending secondary school.

Additional benefits at retirement

Starting from 31 December 2013, the actuarial calculation of defined benefits has been
supplement with calculation of the present value of the newly introduced long term benefit for
certain category of employees - additional benefits at retirement. The calculation is made on the
basis of the average parameters of the mentioned population and total expected amount for
payment, delivered by the enterprise.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

0. Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. The provisions comprise of provision for retirement benefits and
provision for rehabilitation of quarries. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to time values is
recognized as interest expense.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

p. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates and other sales taxes or duty. The following
specific criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods are transferred to the buyer.

Rendering of services

Fees from services provided are recognized over the period in which the services are rendered and
accepted by the buyer.

Interest income
The interest relates to time deposit are accounted for at the expired date of time deposit.
Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight
line basis over the lease terms.

q. Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

r. Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group’s shareholders.

s.  Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period, which provide evidence of conditions that exist as of the reporting

date, are treated as adjustable events in these financial statements. Those that are indicative of
conditions that arose after the reporting date have been treated as non-adjustable events.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

t.  Financial risk management
Accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Provisions for environmental restoration

Companies that operate quarries and processing sites are required to restore these quarries and
processing sites at the end of their producing lives to a condition that is in line with the prevailing
environmental legislation of the country in which the Company operates (to restore the land
within 3 years after the closure of the mine site), to the level acceptable to the relevant authorities
and to the level that is consistent with the Company's environmental policies and practices.

The provision for environmental restoration reflects the present value of the expected future
restoration costs that are expected to be incurred for the areas that have been disturbed at the
reporting date. The provision is determined as present value of expected future cash outflows to
be incurred for sites rehabilitation. This includes determination of the amount based on
rehabilitation project, discount rate and expected inflation rates. The provision is re-measured at
every reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the present value of the future expenses required to
fulfil the obligation.

The present value of estimated restoration costs (that is, original estimation as well as changes in
the accounting estimates) are charged to the profit or loss unless they relate to property, plant and
equipment that is on the site, in which case the costs are included within property, plant and
equipment and depreciated over the useful life of the related item of property, plant and
equipment.

Any change in the net present value of the environmental provision due to the passing of time is
included in finance costs in the profit or loss.

Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined
on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net
cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of pension obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest
rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected
to be required to settle the pension obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
Group considers the discount rate of the Central Bank of Republic of Macedonia due to the
absence of the market of high quality corporate bond or government bonds that are denominated
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating
to the terms of the related pension liability.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
t.  Financial risk management (continued)
Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market.

Fair value of financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other current financial assets mainly have short
term maturity. The nominal value less estimated loss due to impairment of assets and payables
with maternity less than one year is approximates their fair value. Financial liabilities included in
the category Trade and other payables mainly have short term maturity. For this reason, their
carrying amounts at the reporting date approximate their fair values. The fair value of the long-
term financial liabilities is determined by using discounted cash-flow valuation technique.

v. Determination of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair
value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.. Where applicable, further
information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.

2.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

a. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
most critical estimates and assumptions are discussed below.

(i) Useful lives of assets

The determination of the useful lives of assets is based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as any anticipated technological development and changes in broad economic or
industry factors. The appropriateness of the estimated useful lives is reviewed annually, or
whenever there is an indication of significant changes in the underlying assumptions.

Further, due to the significant weight of depreciable assets in Group’s total assets, the impact of
any changes in these assumptions could be material to Group’s financial position, and results of
operations. If depreciation cost is decreased/increased by 1%, this would result in change of
annual depreciation expense of approximately 2,069 thousand denars (2020: 1,823 thousand
denars).
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2.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)

(ii) Potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangibles

The Group is assessing the impairment of identifiable property, plant, equipment and intangibles
whenever there is a reason to believe that the carrying value may materially exceed the
recoverable amount and where impairment in value is anticipated. The recoverable amounts are
determined by value in use calculations, which use a broad range of estimates and factors
affecting those.

Among others, the Group typically considers future revenues and expenses, macroeconomic
indicators, technological obsolescence, discontinuance of operations and other changes in
circumstances that may indicate impairment. If impairment is identified using the value in use
calculations, the Group also determines the fair value less cost to sell (if determinable), to
calculate the exact amount of impairment to be charged (if any). As this exercise is highly
judgmental, the amount of potential impairment may be significantly different from that of the
result of these calculations.

(iii) Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group calculates impairment for doubtful accounts based on estimated losses resulting from
the inability of its customers to make required payments as explained in section for financial
assets.

(iv) Provisions

Provisions in general are highly judgmental, especially in the cases of legal disputes. The Group
assesses the probability of an adverse event as a result of a past event to happen and if the
probability is evaluated to be more than fifty percent, the Group fully provides for the total
amount of the liability. The Group is rather prudent in these assessments, but due to the high
level of uncertainty, in some cases the evaluation may not prove to be in line with the eventual
outcome of the case.

(v) _Fair value of investment property

The investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects the market conditions at the
reporting date. Fair values are determined based on annual valuation performed by independent
value using the income method and the market comparison method as primary valuation methods
which are generally accepted in European valuation practice.
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2.4 Business Combination

The Group acquired 100% of the share capital of ID Kompani for 21 mil MKD cash on 4
November 2020. ID Kompani owns 100% of the equity of OPALIT Dooel a Company holding
certain exploration and development licences for Opalt. ID Kompani has been acquired to gain
access to additional reserves for the Group. The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities
purchased as at the date of acquisition were:

Carrying value

Assets Fair value MKD €000 MKD 000
Property, plant and equipment 10,761 10,761
Exploration and evaluation costs 333 333
Inventories 6,988 6,988
Trade and other receivables 7,876 7,876
Cash and cash equivalents 259 259
26,217 26,217

Liabilities
Trade and other payables 4,304 4,304
Short term borrowings 301 301
4,606 4,606
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 21,611 21,611
Consideration paid in 2021 24,079 -
Goodwill on acquisition of the subsidiary 2,468 -

Management determined the fair value of the property, plant and equipment on bases on the fair
value exercise in which replacement-cost approach was used to determine the fair value.
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3. Revenue and expenses

a. Sales
2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD 000
Domestic market 3,162,849 3,167,982
Foreign market 1,724,402 1,406,298
4,887,251 4,574,280
Domestic market
Sales of cement 2,903,943 2,720,138
Sales of other products 258,906 447 844
3,162,849 3,167,982
Foreign market
Sales of cement 1,224,770 1,138,626
Sales of other products 499,632 267,672
1,724,402 1,406,298
Sales of other products consist of sales of pet coke and coal, limestone, RMC, clinker, pozzolana
and bauxite.
b. Other revenues
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
Transport of cement 121,501 100,322
Others 5,469 3,352
126,970 103,674
c. Cost of sales
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD 000
Production costs 2,596,611 1,917,905
Cost of traded goods 465,241 422,053
Depreciation 191,350 169,141
Distribution expenses 209,864 168,798
Inventory change (6,235) (27,279)
3,456,831 2,650,618

Production cost consist of kiln fuel, electricity, raw materials, concession fee and other variable
cost. Fixed costs which consist of cost of salaries and other benefits, contract labors, security
services, cost for quality test and other fixed cost such as cost for calibration, intellectual services
etc are also included in production costs.
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3. Revenues and expenses (continued)
d. Other operating income
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
Revenues from sold materials 63,280 56,031
Rent income 20,081 17,420
Others 74,644 49,020
158,005 122,471
Others in amount of 74,744 thousand denars (2020: 49,020 thousand denars) includes mainly
stock count surpluses recognised during inventory count as of 31 December 2021, fair value gains
from investment properties and re-invoicing of cost for business premises.
e. Other operating expenses
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD 000
Cost of sold materials 59,528 54,949
Sales support fee 57,176 60,696
Others 69,314 100,269
186,018 215,914
Other expenses consist mainly of waste, spoilage, obsolescence of goods recognized during the
inventory count as of 31 December 2021 etc..
f.  Administrative expenses

2021 2020

MKD’000 MKD’000
Technical support and know-how services 102,564 123,212
Promotion and advertisement 17,922 14,837
Depreciation 12,688 10,690
Other expenses 80,874 74,685
214,048 223,424

Technical support and know-how services consist of provided technical support and know-how
services as well as audit and legal fees. More specifically, technical support and know-how
services refers to engineering & technology services, procurement, finance services, information
technology, legal services, human resources, corporate and social responsibility, corporate

communications services etc.

Other administrative expenses consist of salaries and related expenses, accommodation, IT and
telecoms, car expenses, provision for staff leaving indemnities and retirement benefit obligation

etc.
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3. Revenues and expenses (continued)
g. Net Finance income
2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD 000
Interest income 2,660 3,232
Bank charges (1,783) (1,459)
Interest cost, accretion on provision for retirement (1,535) (1,617)
Interest expense (3,610) (54)
Net foreign exchange (losses) (704) 7,121
(4,972) 7,223
4. Income tax expense
The income tax expense comprises of:
2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD 000
Current Income tax 101,654 161,712
Deferred tax (30) (38)
161,624 161,673
As of 31 December 2020, the tax on non-deductible expenses is as follows:
2020
MKD’000
Net profit before income tax 1,683,829
Losses from subsidiaries not subject to tax 1,313
Taxable net profit 1,685,142
At statutory income tax rate of 10% 168.514
Tax on non-deductible expenses: 8,599
Other compensations to the employees 2,465
Depletion of quarry 400
Entertainment 623
Scholarship 794
Sponsorship and donations 173
Write-off and provision for bad and doubtful debts 2,871
Expenses not related to the main activities 944
Penalties and Withholding tax 1
Not collectable loans 269
Other 59
Less
Tax credit for collected loans (32)
Reinvested profit (15,370)
161,711
Effective tax rate 9.6%
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4. Income tax expense (continued)

As of 31 December 2021, the tax on non-deductible expenses is as follows:

2021
MKD 000
Net profit before income tax 1,274,003
Losses from subsidiaries not subject to tax 5,079
Taxable net profit 1,279,082
At statutory income tax rate of 10% 127,908
Tax on non-deductible expenses: 5,394
Other compensations to the employees 1,542
Depletion of quarry 1,054
Entertainment 1,228
Scholarship 525
Sponsorship and donations 136
Write-offs and provision for bad and doubtful debts 40
Penalties and Withholding tax 611
Expenses not related to the main activities 145
Not collectable loans 100
Other 13
Less:
Tax credit for collected loans (231)
Withholding tax paid in abroad (820)
Reinvested profit (30,597)
101,654
Effective tax rate 8%

In addition, the Group has deferred tax from Trojan Cem Eood, Bulgaria, in amount of 30
thousand denars for 2021.

The periods that remain open to review by the tax authorities with respect to tax liabilities is 5
to 10 years, starting from the date of the submitted tax report. The taxation system is
undergoing continual revision and amendment. However there are still difference
interpretation of the fiscal legislation. The tax authorities may have different approaches to
certain issues in different circumstances, and assess additional tax liabilities together with
additional payment interest and penalties. The Group does not expect consequences that may
result in a potential material liability in this respect. The management of the Group also
considers that the tax liabilities presented in these financial statements are fairly stated.
Although, the Transfer Pricing Study for 2021 has not been finished yet, the management of
the Group estimates that there will not be a material impact on the result taking into
consideration the Transfer Pricing study for 2020 and considering that in 2021 there were
some new transactions.

For the part of the changes regarding transfer pricing the Company has obligation to report for
transfer pricing for 2021 latest by 30 September 2022.
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5. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the ultimate parent by the weighted average of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

The following reflects the outcome and share data used in the basic EPS computations:

2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’ 000
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent:
Continuing operations 1,172,379 1,522,156
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent for basic earnings 1,172,379 1,522,156
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic EPS 563,784 563,784
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For the period ended 31 December 2021

6. Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 1 January 2021

Additions

Transfers from Construction in
Progress

Transfer to Investment Property
Translation differences
Disposals and write offs

At 31 December 2021

Depreciation

At 1 January 2021

Charge for the period

Transfer to Investment Property
Translation differences
Disposals and write offs

At 31 December 2021

Net book value
at 31 December 2021

Net book value
at 1 January 2021

Land and Construction
Buildings Equipment in progress Total
MKD 000 MKD’000 MKD 000 MKD 000
3,703,229 4,998,106 175,635 8,876,970
- 1,059 350,605 351,664
3,306 198,396 (201,702) -
(6,708) - - (6,708)
(7) (6) - (13)
- (12,710) - (12,710)
3,699,820 5,184,845 324,538 9,209,203
2,278,941 4,086,155 - 6,365,096
46,449 154,955 - 201,404
(4,683) - - (4,683)
- (1) - (1)
- (12,539) - (12,539)
2,320,707 4,228,570 - 6,549,277
1,379,113 956,275 324,538 2,659,926
1,424,288 911,951 175,635 2,511,874
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6. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Cost

At 1 January 2020

Increase related from the acquisition of
a subsidiaries

Additions

Transfers from Construction in Progress
Transfer to Investment Property
Transfer to Intangible Assets
Translation differences

Disposals and write offs

At 31 December 2020

Depreciation

At 1 January 2020

Increase resulted from acquisition of a
subsidiaries

Charge for the period

Transfer to Investment Property
Transfer to Intangible Assets
Translation differences

Disposals and write offs

At 31 December 2020

Net book value
at 31 December 2020

Net book value
at 1 January 2020

TITAN

Land and Construction
Buildings Equipment in progress Total
MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000
3,617,409 4,781,399 232,878 8,631,686
23,784 11,906 - 35,690
231 772 216,649 217,652
62,969 210,923 (273,892) -
(1,184) - - (1,184)
- (2,106) - (2,106)
20 19 - 39
- (4,807) - (4,807)
3,703,229 4,998,106 175,635 8,876,970
2,227,159 3,939,295 - 6,166,454
15,592 10,108 - 25,700
37,373 143,945 - 181,318
(1,184) - - (1,184)
- (2,399) - (2,399)
1 1 - 2
- (4,795) - (4,795)
2,278,941 4,086,155 - 6,365,096
1,424,288 911,951 175,635 2,511,874
1,390,250 842,104 232,878 2,465,232
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7. Intangible Assets

Construction in

Licences progress Total

MKD 000 MKD 000 MKD 000
Cost
At 1 January 2021 29,823 - 29,823
Additions - 5,719 5,719
Transfers from Construction in
Progress 5,719 (5,719) -
At 31 December 2021 35,542 - 35,542
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 16,118 - 16,118
Charge for the year 5,423 - 5,423
At 31 December 2021 21,541 - 21,541
Net book value at 31 December
2021 14,001 - 14,001
Net book value at 1 January 2021 13,705 - 13,705

Construction in
Licences progress Total

MKD 000 MKD’000 MKD’000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 21,372 - 21,372
Additions - 6,345 6,345
Transfers from Construction in
Progress 6,345 (6,345) -
Transfer from Property, Plant and
Equipment 2,106 2,106
At 31 December 2020 29,823 - 29,823
Depreciation
At 1 January 2020 12,871 - 12,871
Charge for the year 848 - 848
Transfer from Property, Plant and
Equipment 2,399 - 2,399
At 31 December 2020 16,118 - 16,118
Net book value at 31 December
2020 13,705 - 13,705
Net book value at 1 January 2020 8,501 - 8,501
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8. Investment property
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD 000
Opening balance at 1 January 222,744 208,428
Net gain from fair value adjustment 11,111 (1,484)
Revaluation reserves from fair value re-measurement 14,932 15,800
Transfer from Property, Plant and Equipment 2,025 -
Closing balance at period/year end 250,812 222,744

The investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects the market conditions at the
reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are
included in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise, including the corresponding tax
effect. Fair values are determined based on annual valuation performed by independent value
using the income method and the market comparison method as primary valuation methods which
are generally accepted in European valuation practice.

Investment property principally comprise of land, production premises and construction object -
restaurant, cafeteria room which is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by the
Group.

2021 2020

MKD’000 MKD’000

Rental income derived from investment properties 18,970 17,420
Profit arising from investment properties carried at

fair value 18,970 17,420

During 2021, the Group changed the use of part of building from owner-occupied to investment
property. Prior to this reclassification, they were carried in the Group’s statement of financial
position at cost less any accumulated depreciation for building.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group revalued its investment property on the basis of a valuation
performed by an independent valuer, Grant Thornton Consulting Doo Skopje. The valuation model
in accordance with that recommended by International Valuation standards 2017, Law on
Valuation and Methodology for valuation of property published in Official Gazette of RM.

The methodology used and key inputs to the valuation of the investment properties are as follows:

Methodology Inputs Ranges
Buildings Income method Vacancy rate 5%
plot

Landlord costs 5%
Capitalization rate 9.12-9.49%

Land plot Market approach - sales  Asking prices of comparable land plots in
comparison method the region of Municipality Kisela Voda - 35 to 100
Skopje and similar other locations euro/m2
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8. Investment property (continued)

Significant increases (decreases) in the estimated landlord costs would result in a significant
lower (higher) fair value of properties. Significant increases (decreases) in the capitalization rate
in isolation would result in a significant lower (higher) fair value of properties.

As a result of the valuation, as of 31 December 2021 the carrying value of the Group’s investment
property is adjusted / increased for the amount of MKD 26,043 thousand. Part of the gain in the
amount of MKD 14,932 thousand resulting from fair value re-measurement at the moment of
change of use during 2021 from owner-occupied to investment property as explained above, has
been recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve (See:
Statement of changes in equity). Plus, the remaining fair value gain in amount of MKD 11,111
thousand has been recognized in the Group’s profit and loss for the year ended 31 December
2021 (See Note 3d).

The fair value measurement was made using valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair measurement is unobservable (level 3).

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during 2021.
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9. Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and
evaluation of

mineral recourses Total
MKD’000 MKD’000
Cost
At 1 January 2021 18,344 18,344
Additions - -
De-recognition (16,625) (16,625)
At 31 December 2021 1,719 1,719
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 13,878 13,878
Charge for the period 100 100
De-recognition (13,613) (13,613)
At 31 December 2021 365 365
Net book value at 31 December 2021 1,354 1,354
Net book value at 1 January 2021 4,466 4,466
Exploration and
evaluation of
mineral recourses Total
MKD’000 MKD’000

Cost
At 1 January 2020 17,845 17,845
Additions - -
Increase resulted from acquisition of
subsidiaries 499 499
At 31 December 2020 18,344 18,344
Depreciation
At 1 January 2020 13,613 13,613
Charge for the period 265 265
At 31 December 2020 13,878 13,878
Net book value at 31 December 2020 4,466 4,466
Net book value at 1 January 2020 4,232 4,232
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2021
2020

For the period ended 31 December 2021

10. Inventories

Raw materials and fuel

Spare parts

Consumable stores

Finished goods

Semi-finished goods

Packing materials

Goods for resale

Prepayments for inventory purchase

11. Trade and other receivables

Trade debtors
Prepayments
Other current assets

2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD 000
597,252 231,970
292,592 278,663
219,514 221,305
66,536 86,531
42,472 19,493
29,209 24,877
867 401

1,241 1,279
1,249,683 864,519
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD 000
334,431 273,526
128,805 76,067
33,303 51,240
496,539 400,833

Other current assets relates to receivables from rented land and PPE, receivables from re-invoiced
costs for rented premises, then accruals for insurance premium, accruals for receivables for
interest on forex bank deposit, receivables on disposal of tangible and intangible assets and other

accruals and receivables.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 0- 75 days terms.

The aging analysis of trade receivables is as

follows:

Past due but not impaired

Neither past

due nor
Total Impaired < 30 days
334,431 210,332 73,506
273,526 198,840 45,347

30-60 days 60-90 days 90-120 days  >120days

22,396 8,479 5,191
13,480 4,489 4,150
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For the period ended 31 December 2021

12. Cash and cash receivables

2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
Bank deposits - 415,000
Cash at bank 356,802 282,609
356,802 697,609
13. Share capital
Number
Authorized, issued and fully paid of shares % holding
Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. - ordinary shares of MKD 3,100 535,595 95%
each
Other shareholders - ordinary shares of MKD 3,100 each 28,189 5%
563,784 100%
Amount
MKD’000
Share capital as registered
At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 1,747,730
Dividends paid and proposed
Declared and paid during the period ended 31 December 2020
Final dividend for 2019:
MKD 2,360.00 per share
Declared: 1,330,530
Paid: 1,330,465
Advanced dividend for 2020:
MKD 2,014.00 per share
Declared: 1,135,461
Paid: 1,131,468
Declared and paid during the period ended 31 December 2021
Final dividend for 2020:
MKD 394 per share
Declared: 222,131
Paid: 222,120
Advanced dividend for 2021
MKD 1,646.00 per share
Declared: 927,988
Paid: 927,942

Dividends declared and paid entirely relate to cash dividends on ordinary shares.
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14. Other reserves

Investment Foreign

Asset Statutory Property currency
revaluatio reserves revaluation translation Total

n reserve reserve reserve
MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’ 000 MKD 000

At 1 January 2020 268,551 174,772 114,290 (80) 557,533

Other comprehensive income

(Note 8) - - 15,800 - 15,800

Translation difference - - - (18) (18)

At 31 December 2020 268,551 174,772 130,090 (98) 573,315

Other comprehensive income

(Note 8) - - 14,932 - 14,932

Retained earnings (268,549) - - - (268,549)

Translation difference - - - (17) (17)

At 31 December 2021 2 174,772 145,022 (115) 319,681

Foreign currency translation reserves

The foreign currency translation reserves are used for recording foreign exchange differences
which rise from translation of currency in the financial statements of the foreign subsidiary.

Investment Property revaluation reserve

During 2021, the Group changed the use of part of building from owner-occupied to investment
property. Prior to this reclassification, they were carried in the Group’s statement of financial
position at cost less any accumulated depreciation for building.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group revalued its investment property based on a valuation
performed by an independent valuer, Grant Thornton Consulting DOO Skopje. The valuation
model is in accordance with that recommended by International Valuation standards Committee
has been applied.

As a result of a revaluation, as of 31 December 2021 the fair value of owner-occupied property
which was transferred to investment property was increased by MKD 14,932 thousand which was
recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve (See:
Statement of changes in equity).

Legal reserves

According to Law on Trading Companies, the Group is required to have compulsory statutory
reserve established through appropriation of its net profits. With the changes of the Law on
Trading Companies effective from 1 January 2013, the Group is required to set aside 5 percent of
its net statutory profit for the year in a statutory reserve until the level of the reserve reaches 1/10
of the share capital. The Group has achieved the required minimum in prior years and
consequently no appropriation in 2021 has been made.
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15. Provision for retirement benefits

2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
Defined retirement benefit obligations 12,956 10,775
Defined jubilee anniversary award obligations 12,843 11,148
Defined scholarship obligations 23,316 23,175
Reservation for retention plan 9,468 8,068
58,583 53,166

Analyzed as:
Non-current portion 55,543 49,438
Current portion 3,040 3,728
58,583 53,166

The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:

2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
At 1 January 53,166 50,254
Current service costs 5,203 4,638
Interest cost, accretion on provision for retirement benefit
obligations 1,535 1,617
Recognised actuarial (gains)/losses, net 2,185 1,600
62,089 58,109
Benefits paid during the year (3,506) (4,943)
At 31 December 58,583 53,166
The amounts recognised in the profit and loss are as follows:
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’000
Current service costs 5,203 4,638
Interest cost, accretion on provision for retirement
benefit obligations 1,535 1,617
Recognised actuarial (gains)/losses, net 2,185 1,600
8,922 7,855
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15. Provision for retirement benefits (continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for change in the discount rate and wage growth as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 is as shown below:

2021
Assumptions Discount rate Wage growth
Sensitivity Level 1% 1% 1% 1%
increase decrease increase decrease

In % In % In % In %

Retirement benefits

Impact on the net defined benefit

obligations (8.3) 10 114 (9.6)

Jubilee awards

Impact on the net defined benefit

obligations (7.5) 8.8 9 (7.9)

2020
Assumptions Discount rate Wage growth
Sensitivity Level 1% 1% 1% 1%
increase decrease increase decrease

In % In % In % In %

Retirement benefits

Impact on the net defined benefit

obligations (8.1) 9.6 12.1 (10.3)

Jubilee awards

Impact on the net defined benefit (7) 8.2 9.1 (7.9)

obligations

The following payments are expected contributions to be made in the future years:

2021 2020

MKD’000 MKD’000

Year 1 3,132 3,823
Year 2 5774 4,326
Year 3 5,156 6,235
Year 4 4,649 4711
Year 5 4,496 4,205
Years 6-10 23,627 20,436
Over 10 years 102,174 89,877
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15. Provision for retirement benefits (continued)
The principal actuarial assumptions used in 2021 by the independent actuaries were as follows:
Mortality

The mortality of the employees until the date of retirement is estimated with the population
mortality table of the Republic of Croatia 2010 - 2012. Although the State statistical office of the
Republic in North Macedonia on a regular basis issues mortality tables, these tables are not
adequate for actuarial calculations due to the following reasons:

- The Macedonian mortality tables are not graduated and do not satisfy the required actuarial
properties.

- There has not been a census conducted in Macedonia since 2002, so the methodology of how
the population tables is constructed for the period 2006 - 2008 is questionable.

Turnover rate

From the data analysis of the turnover scheme of all employees that were employed in the
Company since 1953, the data was classified into two categories: data for employees that were
employed in and after 1992 and data for employees that were employed before 1992. The reason
for such classification is the different dynamics in the turnover rates that is observed in the two
categories. Namely, from the data it is observable that the employees who were employed before
1992 have tendency to cancel their employment few years before retirement (after fulfilling more
than 12 years in service in the Company), thus not getting the lump sum payments on retirement,
which is not the case for employees who were employed in or after 1992 who usually cancel the
employment in the first 12 years of their employment in the Company.

The category of employees who were employed before 1992 are modelled as a runoff portfolio.
Having regarded that out of all employees who were employed on 31.12.2013-2020, in average
10% - 17% were cancelling their employment annually, for the purpose of the model for this
category of employees, 10% rate is used.

For the category of employees who were employed in or after 1992, the analysis of data shows
dependences between the annual cancelation rate and the number of years in service in the
Company of the employees who cancel their employment.

Invalidity

Due to unavailable data from relevant institutions for the rate of retirement due to invalidity, the
model is created on a manner that the Company will pay retirement benefits only for a regular
pension, i.e., the assumption used is that the retirement due to invalidity is zero. From the
actuarial practice the rates that are used for invalidity because of accident are less than 0.01%, so
including this assumption would not change the result materially.

Tax on personal income

For lump sum payments on retirement, a tax rate of 10% is applied only on 4 bases for the lump
sum payments because the tax on personal income according to the Law, is not paid on the lump
sum payment at retirement which is equal to the amount of two average monthly net salaries per
employee in the Republic of Nort Macedonia in the last three months. For scholarships, a tax rate
of 0% was used.
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15.

Provision for retirement benefits (continued)

Rate of enrolling in primary i.e., secondary school, undergraduate studies, and graduate
studies

All the children of the employees who will die will enrol in primary i.e., secondary school, if they
fulfil the respective age constraints. 70% of the employees’ children (including the employees
who will die) will enrol in undergraduate studies if they fulfil the respective age constraints. 14%
of the employees’ children will enrol in graduate studies if they fulfil the respective age
constraints. For these models, an assumption has been used that the future monthly instalments
for all type of scholarships will be 10,738 denars. The used financial assumptions were as
follows:

Nominal annual increase of the average republic salary: 3%.

The calculation was based on the data for the average monthly net salaries for the period from
January 2009 to August 2021. To estimate the absolute monthly salary amounts for a certain year,
the percentage was applied to the base calculated as the average of the monthly net salaries paid
per worker in North Macedonia in the last twelve available months.

Discount rate: 3%.

The discount rate is derived from the yields on the government bonds issued in Nort Macedonia
in 2020 and classified by maturity. The average maturity of the Company’s obligations for all
types of benefit is 20 years, so the discount rate that is used in the model is calculated for this
maturity from the previously obtained discount rate curve.

TITAN

16. Trade and other payables

2021 2020

MKD 000 MKD 000

Trade creditors 1,187,928 783,648
Customer prepayments 83,920 108,150
Other current liabilities 33,258 43,449
Tangible assets creditors 13,080 33,460
1,318,186 968,707

17.

Other current liabilities relate to liability for net payroll, payroll taxes and social securities,
liabilities to employees from salaries, accrual for calculated obligation for concession fee and
other sundry creditors.

Contingences and Commitments

Contingent liabilities

2021 2020

MKD’000 MKD’000

Bank guarantees 114,938 115,303
114,938 115,303
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17. Contingences and Commitments (continued)

Contingent liabilities (continued)
As of 31 December 2021, the Group has obtained a Bank payment guaranties from:

- Halk Banka in favour of Makpetrol Prom Gas of MKD 39,000 thousand related to the
purchase of natural gas valid till 30 January 2023, in favour of Customs of MKD 15,000
thousand valid till 15 December 2022 and MKD 15,000 thousand valid till 2 November 2022,
in favour of MEPSO AD Macedonia of MKD 2,388 thousand for transmission of electricity
valid till 31 January 2022, in favour of AD Elektrani N.Macedonia of MKD 8,650 thousand
for transmission of electricity valid till 12 February 2022, in favour of Custom of MKD

23,700 thousand valid till 01 January 2022 plus MKD 11,200 thousand valid till 2 January
2022 for excise.

Commitments

Operating lease commitments - group as lessee

The Group leases motor vehicles under lease agreements. The leases have varying terms and
clauses. The expenditures are recognised in the profit or loss for the period.

2021 2020

MKD 000 MKD 000

Up to 1 year 5,313 6,313
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 9,622 10,702
14,935 17,015

In 2021 the Group leases 3 terminals (Ohrid, Strumica and Orovnik) under lease agreements. The
leases have varying terms and clauses.

2021 2020

MKD 000 MKD’000

Upto 1 year 1,233 689
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 2,600 -
3,833 689

The Group leased Horizontal Mill from MILLKO under lease agreement.

2021 2020

MKD 000 MKD’000

Up to 1 year 16,113 -
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 48,339 -
64,452 -
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17. Contingences and Commitments (continued)

Commitments (continued)

Purchase commitments

As of 31 December 2021, the Group has entered contracts for the purchase of electricity

amounting to MKD 33,195 thousand for the first quarter of 2022.

Legal proceedings

From time to time and in the normal course of the business, claims against the Group may be
received. On the basis of its own estimates and both internal and external professional advice, the
management of the Group is of the opinion that no material losses will be incurred in respect of
claims and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial statements.

18. Related party transactions

Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. owns 95% of the Group’s share capital.

The following transactions were carried out with the related parties:

a) Sales of goods and services

Ultimate Parent:
Titan Cement Company - services
Titan Cement Company - materials

Entities under common control:

Cement Plus Ltd - cement and white cement

Cement Plus Ltd - freight revenue
Cement Plus Ltd - materials
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - pet coke
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - clinker

SHARRCEM SH.P.K - freight revenue

SHARRCEM SH.P.K - bauxite

SHARRCEM SH.P.K - materials and services
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - sharmal and sand

SHARRCEM SH.P.K - fixed assets
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - pozzolana
Titan Cementara Kosjeric - clinker

Titan Cementara Kosjeric - freight revenue

Antea Cement SHA - services

MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - rent

2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD 000
6,232 6,724

333 3,139
265,436 419,193
28,261 46,969

- 1

305,953 179,570
148,162 59,330
43,149 14,787
20,179 15,142
62,664 52,539
143,396 119,310
308 -
10,744 4,509
6,471 932
3,251 -
4,237 6,741
2,537 2,537
1,051,313 931,423
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18. Related party transactions (continued)

Outstanding balances arising from the transactions mentioned above are presented below:

Receivables from related parties

2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD 000
Ultimate Parent:
Titan Cement Company - services 2,702 3,643
Titan Cement Company - materials - 3,139
Entities under common control:
SHARRCEM SH.P.K-clinker 68,587 29,241
SHARRCEM SH.P.K-pet coke 63,226 36,139
SHARRCEM SH.P.K-limestone and cement 9,733 12,842
SHARRCEM SH.P.K-materials,services, bauxite 1,064 16,713
SHARRCEM SH.P.K-pozzolana 8,005 5,626
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - fixed assets 308 -
Antea Cement SHA - services 3,317 3,717
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - rent 249 250
157,191 111,310
b) Purchases of goods and services
2021 2020
MKD’ 000 MKD’ 000
Ultimate Parent:
Titan Cement Company - white cement and pet coke 106,216 118,331
Titan Cement Company - management support 97,699 118,597
Titan Cement Company - silos 14,671 3,357
Entities under common control:
Cement Plus Ltd - sales support fee 57,176 60,696
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - other 5,800 4,628
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - services 16,146 16,164
Antea Cement SHA - refractory and other - 1,031
Titan Zlatna Panega -grey cement, equipment and other 5,252 324
302,960 323,128
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18. Related party transactions (continued)
Outstanding balances arising from the transactions mentioned above are presented below:
Payables to related parties
2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD 000
Ultimate Parent:
Titan Cement Company - management support 46,303 60,920
Titan Cement Company — CAPEX 14,671 3,353
Titan Cement Company - WC, pet coke and services 23,319 35,921
Entities under common control:
Cement Plus Ltd. - sales support fee 8,808 17,897
Cement Plus Ltd. - prepayments 49,506 66,712
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - services 13,392 13,098
SHARR CEM SH.P.K - other 1,035 711
157,034 198,612

The Group enter into these transactions with the above related parties at mutually agreed terms.

Key management compensation

2021 2020

MKD’000 MKD’000

Salaries and other short-term benefits 109,747 98,201
109,747 98,201

Key management consists of Executive and extended Management Board of the Company.

Key management compensation in amount of MKD 109,747 thousand refers to salaries and other
short-term benefits of managers and other members of the key personnel of the Group for 2021.
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19. Expenses by nature
2021 2020
MKD 000 MKD’000
Row materials and other materials 1,114,876 900,914
Utilities 785,359 375,849
Cost of traded goods and services 465,241 422,053
Other material costs and services 342,638 305,448
Employees benefit expense 292,318 282,290
Distribution expenses 209,864 168,798
Depreciation 206,927 182,267
Maintenance 98,467 86,119
Technical support and know-how services 97,699 118,597
Inventory change (6,235) (27,278)
IT & Telecoms 23,955 16,167
Promotion and advertisement 22,759 17,140
Travelling 11,094 10,371
Third party fees 4,865 4615
Other expenses 37,405 44 555
Total cost of goods sold, selling and marketing and
administrative expenses 3,707,232 2,907,905

20. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Group has various
financial assets such as trade receivables, cash and short-term deposits, which arise directly from
its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are liquidity risk, foreign currency
risk and credit risk. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks which are summarised below.

a) Market risk

Market risk is defined as the ‘risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices’ and includes interest rate risk, currency risk
and other price risk. The majority of the revenues of the Group are generated on domestic market
and the remaining part mainly generated on foreign market. Expenses of the Group that arise are
mainly arising from purchases on domestic and foreign markets.

Management believes that is taking all the necessary measures to support the sustainability and
growth of the Group’s business in the current circumstances. Nevertheless, future market
fluctuations cannot be predicted with accuracy.

b) Interest risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

Change in the interest rates and interest margins may influence financing costs and returns on
financial investments.
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20. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
b) Interest risk (continued)

Changes in market interest rates affect the interest income on time deposits with banks. As of 31
December 2021, the Group has no time deposits in banks (2020: MKD 415,000 thousands)
therefore 1% rise in market interest rate would have caused (ceteris paribus) the interest received
to increase with approximately 4,150 thousands annually for 2020, while similar decrease would
have caused the same decrease in interest received.

c) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal due to the fact that the majority of
foreign currency transactions relating to selling and purchases are denominated in EURO, which
was stable during all 2021. Also, domestic sales agreements are denominated in EURO.

For purposes of sensitivity analyses from foreign currency risk, Management used the
assumption of 1% increase of Foreign exchange rate of EUR which is considered reasonable
having in mind stable local currency against EUR during the past years. As of the 315 December
2021, if EUR would have been 1% (2020: 1%) weaker or stronger against MKD, profit would
have been MKD 2,601 thousand (2020: MKD 2,290 thousand) after tax in net balance higher or
lower, respectively.

The Group’s outstanding balances are as follows:

2021 Total Domestic Foreign
MKD

equivalent

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 356,802 186,848 169,954

Trade receivables and other current financial

assets 367,734 191,254 176,480

Total assets 724,536 378,102 346,434

Liabilities

Trade payables 1,187,928 590,845 597,083

Other payables and current liabilities 46,338 36,863 9,475

Total liabilities 1,234,266 627,708 606,558

Net balance sheet exposure (509,731) (249,607) (260,124)
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20. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

c) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

2020 Total Domestic Foreign
MKD

equivalent

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 697,609 613,142 84,467

Trade receivables and other current financial

assets 324,766 197,786 126,980

Total assets 1,022,375 810,928 211,447

Liabilities

Trade payables 783,648 355,406 428,242

Other payables and current liabilities 76,909 64,747 12,162

Total liabilities 860,557 420,153 440,404

Net balance sheet exposure 161,818 390,775 (228,957)

Prepayments are excluded from the tables above because they are not financial assets and

liabilities.

d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The table below summarises
the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2021 and 31 December

2020 based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Period ended 31 December 2021

On Less than 3to 12 1to5 > 5years Total
demand 3 months months years
Trade payables - 1,030,895 - - - 1,030,895
Other payables - 46,339 - - - 46,339
Payables to related
parties - 157,034 - - - 157,034
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20. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

d) Liquidity risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

On  Less than 3to 12 1to5 > 5years Total
demand 3 months months years

Trade payables - 585,036 - - - 585,036

Other payables - 76,909 - - - 76,909

Payables to related

parties - 198,612 - - - 198,612

e) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group
has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one customer. In addition, to reduce
this risk the Group has required as collateral bank guaranties and deposits. Recognisable risks are
accounted for by adequate provisions on receivables. As at 31 December 2021, there are no
outstanding doubtful significant credit risks which are not already covered by a provision for

doubtful receivables.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents and short term borrowing receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of these instruments. As at 31 December 2021, the Group's cash and cash equivalents

were held at short term deposits and current accounts in highly rated financial institutions.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder

value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, following
shareholders’ approval. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the

periods ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

The Group monitors its equity capital using earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and

amortization (EBITDA) for the year.

2021 2020
MKD’000 MKD’ 000
EBITDA 1,485,902 1,858,873

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The structure and

management of debt capital is determined at TITAN Group level.
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20. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

The impact of Covid-19 to Group’s performance in 2021, was minor. Considering the level of
Group’s current assets and the constant support from the Titan Group, Management believes that
it has sufficient buffer to mitigate any potential future impact, in case the pandemic continues. In
2022, there is still some uncertainty, at the evaluation of the pandemic, which has been
incorporated into the budget of the Group, in order to plan and secure ample liquidity. Even at
stress test situation, Management believes based on previous experience and practice that Titan
Group will continue to provide financial support to its subsidiaries and to cover liquidity need, if
any.

21. Events after the reporting period

There are no events after the reporting period that would have impact on the 2021 Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position or Statement of Cash Flow.
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MopHecyBare MognwHyu CmeTkn npeky Beb - LieHTpaneH Pernctap Ha Penybnuka CeBepHa MakegoHuja

LlenocHo ume: LiemeHtapHuua YCJE ALl Ckonje
Bupg Ha paborta: 450
Tun Ha roauwwHa cmeTka: KoHconuampaHa roguiHa cmeTka

Tun Ha JOKYMEHT:
loguna : 2021

KoHconuavpaHa roguiiHa cmeTka

Jlncta Ha npukayeHn OOKYMEHTU:

Ob6jacHyBayku GeneLuku 1 Apyrv npunosu
DrHAHCUCKM n3BeLTan

BunaHc Ha cocToj6a

UcnpaBka
HeTo 3a BpyTto 3a | Ha
O3Haka 3a o MpeTxoaHa
nuc TEeKOBHa TEeKOBHa BpeAgHocTa
Ao roguHa
roguHa roguHa 3a TeKoBHa
roavHa

- - AKTVBA: A.HETEKOBHM CPECTBA
1 (002+009+020+021+031) 2.928.560.821,00 2.752.788.842,00

- - LHEMATEPUJANTHN CPELCTBA
2 (003+004+005+006+007+008) 17.823.007,00 18.170.202,00
4 - - KoHuecun, nateHTu, MULEHLIM, 3aLUTUTHU 15.355.219,00 18.170.202,00

3HaUM M CINYHK NpaBa
5 - -TyaBun 2.467.788,00

- - Il. MATEPUJANHN CPELCTBA
9 (010+013+014+015+016+017+018+019) 2.659.925.395,00 2.511.874.260,00
10 - - HegBuxHocTtn (011+012) 1.367.707.470,00 1.412.442.993,00
11 - - Bemjuite 854.644.486,00 879.715.557,00
12 - - TpapexHu objekTu 513.062.984,00 532.727.436,00
13 - - MocTpojkn 1 onpema 936.815.201,00 893.350.379,00
14 - - TpaHcnopTHM cpeacTBa 1.681.294,00 3.066.138,00
15 - - Anart, NOrOHCKN N KaHLUENapuckn MHBeHTap 17.779.159,00 15.535.703,00

n meben
18 - - MatepwujanHu cpefcTea BO NOAroTOBKa 324.536.732,00 175.634.464,00
19 - - OcTaHaTtn maTepwujanHu cpeacTea 11.405.539,00 11.844.583,00
20 - - lll. BMOXXYBAHA BO HEOBM>XXHOCTU 250.812.419,00 222.744.380,00
35 - - VI. OOJTOXXEHM OAHOYHW CPEOCTABA 73.830,00 43.556,00

- - b. TEKOBHW CPEOCTBA
36 (037+045+052+059) 2.106.290.989,00 1.948.334.300,00
37 - - |. BAJTXN (038+039+040+041+042+043) 1.236.919.584,00 856.525.354,00
38 - - 3anuxu Ha cypoBUHM U MaTepujanu 775.469.965,00 411.118.629,00

- - 3anuxu Ha pe3epBHU OEenoBU, CUTEH
39 WHBEHTap, aMBanaXxa u aBToryMI 351.572.217,00 338.981.981,00
40 - - 3a7UX1 Ha HEAOBPWIEHN MPOU3BOAY ¥ 42.473.966,00 19.492.171,00

nonynpoussoau
41 - - 3anuxu Ha roToBM NPoM3BoAU 66.536.096,00 86.531.841,00
42 - - 3anunxm Ha TProBCKWN CTOKM 867.340,00 400.732,00
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45 - - lll. KPATKOPOYHW NOBAPYBAHA 512.554.748,00 394.182.141,00
(046+047+048+049+050+051)
46 - - Mobapysara of NoBp3aHW ApyLUTBa 157.189.356,00 105.683.760,00
47 - - MoGapysatba of KynyBaum 194.980.502,00 208.328.377,00
48 - - Nobapysats-a 3a naneHm asaHcu Ha 14.511.244,00 25.943.903,00
nobasyBaun
- - Mo6apyBsatba of ApkasaTa Nno OCHOB Ha
49 AaHoOLN, NPUACHECH, LIapUHa, axLM3n 1 3a 134.473.353,00 51.530.966,00
ocTaHaTu JaBadku KOH ApXaBaTa ! ’ ! ' ' !
(npetnnatu)
50 - - MobGapyBana of BpaboTeHnTe 1.497.786,00 2.695.135,00
51 - - OcTaHaTtu KkpaTKopoyHM nobapysBara 9.902.507,00
- - IV. KPATKOPOYHN ®UHAHCUCKIU
52 CPE[ICTBA (053+056+057+058) 15.000,00 18.000,00
57 - - NobapyBana no fafeHu 3aemu 15.000,00 18.000,00
-- V. MAPNYHW CPEOCTBA U NAPUYHU
59 EKBVBANEHTM (060+061) 356.801.657,00 697.608.805,00
60 - - MapwyHK cpeacTBa 356.801.657,00 282.608.805,00
61 - - MapunyHu ekBMBaNeHTM 415.000.000,00
- - VI. NJTATEHW TPOLWOLN 3A OHUTE
62 MEPNOON N MPECMETAHU NPUXOOM 15.687.812,00 14.773.562,00
(ABP)
- - BKYMNHA AKTUBA: CPEOCTBA
63 (001+035+036+044+062) 5.050.613.452,00 4.715.940.260,00
64 - - B. BOHBUNAHCHA EB/REHLIMIA - 19.900.146.770,00 16.876.859.044,00
AKTUBA
--MACVBA : A. TTTABHVHA N PE3EPBU
65 (066+067-068-069+070+071+075-076+077- 3.658.411.711,00 3.647.244.652,00
078)
66 - -1. OCHOBHA IMABHVHA 1.747.729.749,00 1.747.729.749,00
- - V. PEBANTOPU3ALNCKA PE3EPBA A
PA3MMVKWN OO BPEOHYBAHE HA
70 KOMMOHEHTV HA OCTAHATA 146.143.890,00 154.662.806,00
CEOMN®ATHA JOBNBKA
71 - - VI. PESEPBW (072+073+074) 1.280.437.082,00 1.359.125.106,00
72 - - BakoHCKM pe3epBu 174.772.975,00 174.772.975,00
74 - - OctaHatu pe3epsu 1.105.664.107,00 1.184.352.131,00
76 - - VIIl. MIPEHECEHA 3AIYBA (-) 7.033.015,00 2.015.890,00
77 - - IX. JOBMBKA 3A OENOBHATA NTOANHA 491.134.005,00 387.742.881,00
81 - - 5. OBBPCKW (082+085+095) 1.350.614.652,00 1.046.003.140,00
- - 1. AONrOPOYHU PE3EPBUPAHA 3A
82 PUSMLIV M TPOLLOLIM (083+084) 57.036.118,00 56.331.605,00
- - PesepBupatba 3a NEH3UK, OTNPEMHUHM U
83 CUIHM OBBDCKM KOH BPABOTEHNTE 55.542.926,00 49.437.775,00
84 - - OcTaHaTi JonropoYHN pesepBupatba 3a 1.493.192,00 6.893.830,00
pY3nLM 1 TpoLloLUmn
95 '16;3\)/' KPATKOPOHHMW OBBPCKW (0n 096 Ao | 4 593 578.534,00 989.671.535,00
96 - - O6BpCKU cripema NoBp3aHW ApyLLTBa 162.178.078,00 198.613.993,00
97 - - O6BpckM cnpema gobasysayn 1.052.714.391,00 666.498.940,00
98 - - OBBpCKK 3a aBaHCK, 4ENO3NTM U KayLim 34.413.909,00 41.437.523,00
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99 - - OBBpCKM 33 AAHOUM M NPVOHECH Ha 4.935.640,00 4.940.633,00
nnara v Ha HaJoOMecTu1 Ha nnaTu
100 - - O6BpCKM KOH BpaboTeHnTe 9.871.737,00 9.795.478,00
101 - - TeKoBHY JaHO4YHN 06BPCKU 9.521.742,00 37.816.983,00
102 - - Kparkopounu pesepsuparsa 3a pusvum 1 7.042.684,00 8.224.407,00
TpoLuouun
104 - - O6BpCKM MO 3aeMU U KpeanuTu 700,00
106 - - OBBPCKM M0 OCHOB Ha y|eCTBO BO 441.030,00 4.500.947,00
pesynTaTtoT
108 - - OcTaHaTtu KpaTKopPOYHM 0BBPCKU 12.458.623,00 17.842.631,00
- - V. OOJTIOXKEHO MNAKAHE HA
109 TPOLWOUWM 1 NPUXOOM BO UOHUTE 41.587.089,00 22.692.468,00
NEPVOOU (MBP)
- - BKYMHO MACUWBA : TMABHUHA,
111 PE3EPBUW 1 OBBPCKMN 5.050.613.452,00 4.715.940.260,00
(065+081+094+109+110)
- - B. BOHBUNAHCHA EBUOEHUWJA-
112 NACUBA 19.900.146.770,00 16.876.859.044,00
BunaHc Ha ycnex
BpyTo UcnpaBka
O3Haka HeTo 3a Ha
3a MpeTxoaHa
3a Onuc TeKOBHa BpeAHocTa
TEeKOBHa rogvHa
AOI roguHa 3a TeKOBHa
rogvHa
roavHa
201 - - 1. NIPMXOOW OO PABOTEHETO (202+203+206) 5.405.884.250,00 5.068.169.796,00
202 - - MNMpuxoaw of npopax6a 5.208.497.799,00 4.849.561.142,00
203 - - OcTtaHat npuxoau 49.766.606,00 29.932.602,00
- - 3anvxv Ha roToBW NPOM3BOAM U HEOBPLUEHO
204 NPOM3BOACTBO Ha NOYETOKOT Ha rognHaTa 100.056.026,00 75.760.796,00
205 - S2/uXit Ha roTOBM NPOUSBOAM U HEAOBPLIEHO 106.291.213,00 103.039.407,00
NPOU3BOACTBO Ha KpajoT Ha roauHaTa
206 - - KanuTtanuanpaHo concTBeHO NpOU3BOACTBO U YCMyrn 147.619.845,00 188.676.052,00
- - Il. PACXOOM OO PABOTEHETO
207 (208+209+210+211+212+213+218+219+220+221+222) | +134:926:452,00 3.420.300.301,00
208 - - TpoLuoLm 3a CypoBMHU U Apyr Matepujanu 2.040.473.040,00 1.478.192.877,00
209 - - HabGaBHa BpeaHOCT Ha NpofdafeHnTe CTOKU 449.095.359,00 405.888.936,00
- - HaGaBHa BpeHOCT Ha NpofdafeHuUTe MaTepujany,
210 pe3epBHMW AenoBu, CUTEH MHBEHTap, ambanaxa n 59.527.425,00 54.948.220,00
aBTOryMu
211 - - Ycnyrv co KapakTep Ha MaTepujanHu TpoLIoLM 758.637.492,00 675.880.585,00
212 - - Octanat TpoLloum of paboTeHeTo 165.825.863,00 152.857.337,00
213 - - Tpowouwu 3a Bpabotenn (214+215+216+217) 313.961.106,00 308.894.489,00
214 - - Mnati n HagomecTouu Ha nnara (HeTo) 178.820.431,00 173.233.219,00
215 -m-_l;p:mouw 3a flaHOUM Ha NnaTtv ¥ HaJoMecToUM Ha 16.750.986,00 16.505.108,00
216  __PMAOHECH OfF 3BMI0/KMTENHO COLManKO 74.107.516,00 72.976.731,00
ocurypyearbe
217 - - OcTaHat TpoLlouu 3a BpaboTeHute 44.282.173,00 46.179.431,00

https://e-submit.crm.com.mk/aaol/Admin/GenerateAAPreview.aspx?aaid=kDb2aBfcGBFwEpfyBkxWmw%3d%3d&uid=SvBIHkPzPCBijRvs3yiTS...

3/9



3/28/22, 2:04 PM

MopHecyBare MognwHyu CmeTkn npeky Beb - LieHTpaneH Pernctap Ha Penybnuka CeBepHa MakegoHuja

218 - - AMopTM3auuja Ha maTtepujanHuTe n 206.926.237,00 182.265.658,00
HemaTepujanHuTe cpeacTea

219 - - BpegHocHo ycornacyBate (06e3BpefHyBate) Ha 3.011.460,00 1.484.000,00
HETEeKOBHW cpeacTBa

220 - - BpegHocHo ycornacyBate (06e3BpenHyBate) Ha 399.729,00 28.344.848,00
TEKOBHUTE CpeacTBa

221 - - Pe3epBupara 3a TpoLioLm 1 pusmum 14.094.019,00 11.723.714,00

222 - - OcTtanatu pacxogu og paboTereTo 122.974.722,00 119.819.637,00
- - lll. ®'IHAHCUCKW MPUXOoON

223 (224+229+230+231+232+233) 13.550.086,00 17.798.965,00
- - ®MHAHCUCKN NPUXOAMN Of OAHOCK CO NOBP3aHu

224 [pyWITBa (225+226+227+228) 886.284,00 678.595,00

227 - - Mpnxoam No OCHOB Ha KypCHW pasnuku og pabotere 886.284,00 678.595,00
CO MOBp3aHu ApyLTea

230 - - Mpwnxoau no ocHoB Ha kamaTtu of paboTere co 2.659.861,00 3.231.730,00
HenoBp3aHu ApyLuTBa

231 - - Mpnxoau No OCHOB Ha KypCHW pa3nuku o pabotere 10.003.941,00 13.888.640,00
CO HEeMnoBp3aHu ApyLITBa
- - IV. ®M'IHAHCUCKU PACXOON

234 (235+239+240+241+242+243) 16.740.441,00 9.118.161,00
- - dUHaHCcUCKK pacxoamn o4 OQHOCK CO MOBP3aHU

235 [pyWITBa (236+237+238) 385.634,00 875.007,00

237 - - Pacxoam no 0CHOB Ha KypCcHU pasnuku of pabotere 385.634,00 875.007,00
CO NoBp3aHu ApyLiTea

239 - - Pacxogm no ocHoB Ha kamatu of paboTere co 5.145.364,00 1.671.694,00
HenoBp3aHu ApyLUTBa
- - Pacxogm no ocHOB Ha KypCHW pasnuku of pabotere

240 CO HENOBP3AHM APYWITEA 11.209.443,00 6.571.460,00
- - NobnBka oa penoBHOTO paboTtere (201+223+244)-

246 (204-205+207+234+245) 1.274.002.630,00 1.683.828.910,00

250 '2;‘5)06“5"3 MPeA OpaHouyBarbe (246+248) un (246- | 4 574 002.630,00 1.683.828.910,00

252 - - NaHok Ha nobuBka 101.623.456,00 161.673.077,00
- - HETO OOBUBKA 3A OEJNTOBHATA MOOWHA (250-

255 252+253-254) 1.172.379.174,00 1.522.155.833,00
- - MpoceyeH 6poj Ha BpaboTeHn Bp3 OCHOBA Ha YacoBwm

257 Ha paboTa BO NPecMeTKOBHMOT nepuog (Bo anconyTeH 255,00 261,00
N3HOC)

258 - - bpoj Ha Meceun Ha paboTerse (BO anconyTeH U3HOC) 12,00 12,00

259 - - JOBUBKA/3AIYBA 3A MEPVOL 1.172.379.174,00 1.522.155.833,00

260 - - lobuBKka koja UM nNpunara Ha MmaTenuTe Ha akuum 1.172.379.174,00 1.522.155.833,00
Ha MaTUYHOTO APYLUTBO

264 - - BAPABOTYBAYKA MO AKUWNJA 2.079,00 2.700,00

265 - - BkynHa ocHoBHa 3apaboTtyBayka no akuuja 2.079,00 2.700,00

269 - - [lobuBka 3a roguHarta 1.172.379.174,00 1.522.155.833,00
- - OcTaHara ceondarHa gobueka

271 (273+275+277+279+281+283) - 14.916.000,00 15.782.000,00
(274+276+278+280+282+284)

274 - - 3arybu kou npousnerysaart of npesefyBare of, 16.000,00 18.000,00
CTpaHcko paboTere

279 - - MpomeHn Ha peBanopusaumnckuTe pesepsu 3a 14.932.000,00 15.800.000,00
HETEKOBHW CPEACTBa
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- - HeTo octanata ceondatHa gobuska (271-285)

14.916.000,00

15.782.000,00

288

- - BkynHa ceondaTtHa fobuveka 3a roguHata (269+286)
unu (286-270)

1.187.295.174,00

1.537.937.833,00

289

- - CeondpaTtHa gobuBka koja UM npunara Ha umaTtenute
Ha akumMm Ha MaTUYHOTO ApYLUTBO

1.187.295.174,00

1.537.937.833,00

[dpxaBHa eBMAeHUMja

OsHaka 3a
Aon

Onuc

HeTo 3a
TEeKOBHa
roguHa

BpyTo 3a
TeKoBHa
roavHa

UcnpaBka
Ha
BpeAHoOCTa
3a TeKOBHa
rogvHa

MpeTxoaHa
roguHa

609

- - Bemjuwita

854.644.486,00

879.715.557,00

612

- - CeraluHa BpegHOCT Ha rpagexHu objexkTn
of BUcokorpaaba Kom ce kopucTart 3a
BpLuere aejHocT (< unu = AOIN 012 o BC)

458.537.129,00

476.024.061,00

613

- - CeraluHa BpegHoOCT Ha objekTn of
Huckorpagba (< unu = AOIM 012 og BC)

54.525.855,00

56.703.375,00

614

- - CeraluHa BpegHOCT Ha MHcopmMaumcka
onpemMa v TenekomyHmukaumcka onpema (<
unn = AOIN 013 og BC)

2.037.789,00

1.897.335,00

615

- - CerawHa BpeHOCT Ha KoMmmjyTepcka
onpema (< unm = AOI 013 og BC)

13.743.378,00

12.387.934,00

626

- - MobapyBaka nNo ocHoB Ha npogaxba Ha
CTOKM W YCNyrn 1 aBaHCK JafeHun Ha
HeUHAHCUCKV TProBCKW ApYyLUTBA BO
npvBaTHa 1 Ap)aBHa COMNCTBEHOCT U jaBHU
npenpwujatuja Bo 3emjarta (< nnu=AO0rl
006+AO0IM 017+A0M 030+ AOI 046+ AOI
047+A0IM 048 Of BC)

196.908.860,00

200.012.395,00

628

- - OctaHatu nobapyBara og HedMHAHCUCKN
TProBCKU ApyLLUTBa BO NpUBaTHa U ApXXaBHa
COMCTBEHOCT U jaBHW npenpujaTuja Bo
3emjaTta (< unn=A0I1 034+ AOI 046+ AOT
047+A0IM 051+ AOIN 062 Of BC)

10.050.215,00

147.707,00

629

- - OctaHaTu nobapyBara of opraHu Ha
3aKOHOAABHa, M3BPLUHA W CyACKa BNacr,
SrNMOCM,30PCM,ABPCM, eanHuum Ha
rokanHa camoynpasa v Apyry npaBHu nuua
duHaHcupaHm of byuet (< nnu= AOI
034+AO0I1 035+A0IM 047+A0IM 049+A0MN
051+AOIN 062 Of BC)

134.656.756,00

50.829.409,00

630

- - MoGapyBatba No O0CHOB Ha npofax6a Ha
CTOKM W YCNYrn 1 aBaHCK 1 ocTaHaTu
nobapyBara o cuTe cybjekTu BO 3emjaTa u
cTpaHcTBo (< unn=A0I1 006+A0IN 017+AOTl1
030+AO0I1 034+A0IM 035+ AOI 046+ AOI
047+AO0TI1 049+ AOI 050+A0IM 051+AOMN
057+A0M 062 Of BC)

500.321.880,00

371.500.087,00

631

- - OcHOBHa rnaBHWHa (CONCTBEHUYKM
KanuTarn) Bo yaenu nocegysaHu of Apyru
TProBCKM [pyLUTBa BO NpMBAaTHA W [ipXXaBHa
COMNCTBEHOCT U jaBHW NpenpujaTuja Bo
3emjata (< nnm =A0IN 065 og BC)

4.743.000,00

4.743.000,00

632

- - OcHOBHa rmaBHUHA (COMNCTBEHUYKN
KanuTan) Bo yaenu noceayBaHu of, (husnykm
nvua, TProBuM NoeanHLM, 3aHaeTymuu,
3emjogenum, CaMmoCTOjHU BPLUMTENM Ha
AEjHOCT M HenpoUTHU opraHu3aumm
perucTpupanu Bo 3emjata (< unm =AO0I 065
og BC)

82.624.300,00

82.624.300,00

634
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- - O6BpCKM MO 3aeMU 1 KPEaUTU 3EMEHU Of,
HeUHAHCUCKV TProBCKW ApYLUTBA BO
npvBaTHa W Ap)kaBHa COMCTBEHOCT U jaBHU

700,00

5/9



3/28/22, 2:04 PM

635

MopHecyBare MognwHyu CmeTkn npeky Beb - LieHTpaneH Pernctap Ha Penybnuka CeBepHa MakegoHuja

npenpwujatuja Bo 3emjata(< unu =AO0r
086+AO0I1 087+A0IM 088+AO0IN 089+A0IN
090+AO0I1 096+A0IM 104+A0MM 107 OA BC)

- - O6BpCKM MO OCHOB Ha HabaBka Ha CTOKU 1
yCnyru n aBaHcm (KpaTKOPOYHU TPrOBCKM
KpeauTn) NnpuMeHn of, HedMHAHCUCKN
TProBCKM ApYLUTBa BO NpMBAaTHa 1 ApXaBHa
COMNCTBEHOCT U jaBHU Mpenpujatunja Bo
3emjata(< unm =A0IN 096+AO0I 097+ AOI
098+A0I1 108 Of1 BC)

609.099.500,00

385.774.342,00

637

- - OcTaHaTy 06BPCKM KOH HEPMHAHCUCKM
TProBCKM ApYLUTBa BO NpMBaTHa U ApxaBHa
COMNCTBEHOCT Y jaBHU Mpenpujatuja Bo
3emjata (< nnn=A0I1 092+A0I1 093+A0I
096+ AOI 106+ AOIM 107+AQ0IM 108+ AOI
109 Of1 BC)

27.674.020,00

36.320.268,00

638

- - OcTtaHaTt 06BpCKM KOH OpraHu Ha
3aKoHOJaBHa, U3BPLUHA U CyACKa BnacT,
OrMNOCM,d30PCM,ABPCM, eanHnum Ha
nokarnHa camoynpasa u Apyri npasHu nvua
hbrHaHcupaHnu of GyueT (< unn=A0rl
092+A0IM 093+A0I 094+ AOIM 099+ AON
101+ AOI 107+A0MN 108+ AOIT 109 Of BC)

20.835.142,00

46.273.066,00

639

- - OBBpPCKM NO OCHOB Ha TPrOBCKM KpeauTy,
aBaHCU 1 ocTaHaT! 06BPCKM KOH cute
cybjeKTu BO 3emjaTta 1 CTPaHCTBO (BKYMHO) (<
unn=A0I1 092+A0I1 093+A0I1 094+ AOI
096+ AOI 097+ AOIT 098+ AOI 099+ AOI
100+ AOI 101+ AOIM 107+AO0I1 108+ AOI
109 O[] BC)

1.326.746.394,00

998.625.701,00

640

- - Mpuxoaw of npoaax6a Ha CTOKM 1 yCryru
(AOTT 641+ AOM 642) (< unn = AOM 202 og
BY)

20.010.325,00

641

- - Mpuxoau o npopax6a Ha CTOKM (< unn =
AOMM 202 og BY)

42.077,00

642

- - Mpuxogwm oa npogax6ba Ha ycnyrn (< unu =
AOMM 202 og BY)

19.968.248,00

643

- - Mpuxoaw of npoaax6a Ha Npon3Boaw,
CTOKV W yCInyrvi Ha AomMalleH nasap (< unm =
AOMM 202 on BY)

3.255.740.073,00

3.258.719.580,00

644

- - Mpuxogw of npoaaxba Ha nponasoaw,
CTOKV W YCINyrvi Ha CTpaHckv nasap (< unu =
AOMN 202 on BY)

1.920.810.276,00

1.567.191.587,00

647

- - Mpuxopu og HaemHuHa (< unm = AOI 202
oa BY)

27.189.858,00

18.893.025,00

648

- - Mpuxogu og HaemMHWHa Ha 3emjuwiTe (<
unn = AOI 202 op BY)

4.757.592,00

4.756.950,00

654

- - Mpuxogu og Buwoum (< unu = AOIN 203 og
BY)

14.642.276,00

9.196.455,00

655

- - Hannatenn otnuwann nobapysatrba u
npuxoau oA oTnuc Ha obBspcku (< nunm = AOT
203 o BY)

1.134,00

658

- - Mpuxogu og cy6BeHumm (< unu = AOIN 203
og BY)

3.606.763,00

741.381,00

661

- - OctaHaTu npuxoam op paboTereTo (< nnu
= AOIN 203 og BY)

19.850.864,00

19.914.427,00

668

- - Tpowioum 3a CypoBuHM U MaTepujanm (<
unn = AOI 208 og BY)

593.540.092,00

499.411.380,00

669

- - Orpes, ropuBo 1 masmsa (< unun = AOI
208 op BY)

14.849.144,00

18.052.855,00

671

- - KaHuenapvckn matepujanm (< unn = AOr
208 o bY)

1.522.781,00

1.222.446,00

672

- - Tpowouu 3a ambanaxa (< unu = AOIN 208

125.524.066,00

116.670.793,00
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on BY)

673

- - YHudopmu-3awtutHa obneka n obysku (<
unn = AOI 208 op BY)

4.846.176,00

4.197.663,00

674

- - MaTepujan 3a uncterse 1 ogpxyBame (<
unn = AOI 208 og BY)

774.901,00

918.735,00

676

- - MoTpolueHa enekTpryHa eHepruja (< unu =
AON 208 op BY)

798.695.904,00

380.266.680,00

677

- - MoTpoLueHn eHepreTcku ropmea (< Unm =
AOI 208 og BY)

437.155.432,00

403.273.178,00

678

- - MNoTpoLueHn pe3epBHM AeNOBU U
maTepwujanu 3a ogpxysarse (< unu = AOM
208 og BY)

63.663.959,00

55.374.316,00

679

- - OTNMC Ha CMTEH MHBEHTap, ambanaxa u
aBTorymu (Bo npounseoactso) (< unu = AOIM
208 og BY)

1.633.153,00

1.241.046,00

680

- - TpaHcnopTHM ycnyru Bo 3emjaTta (< unu =
AOI 211 opg BY)

174.504.596,00

132.233.809,00

681

- - TpaHCMopTHN YCryrn BO CTPaHCTBO (< Unn
= AOIN 211 og BY)

73.394.048,00

80.245.845,00

682

--MTT ycnyru Bo 3emjaTta (< unu = AOIN 211
oa bY)

2.887.908,00

2.949.256,00

684

- - HagBopeluHu ycnyru 3a napabotka Ha
Npou3BoAu (BOH NPOM3BOACTBO) (< nnu =
AOM 211 og BY)

8.595.868,00

1.243.365,00

685

- - Mpoun3BOACTBEHN U 3aHAETUNCKM YCRyrn (<
unn = AOI 211 op BY)

218.716.289,00

184.010.939,00

686

- - HaeMHUHK 3a oenoBHW NpocTopuK BO
3emjata (< nnm = AOIM 211 og BY)

1.309.326,00

99.399,00

687

- - HaemHuHun 3a onpema (< nnu = AOIM 211
og BY)

6.992.142,00

7.802.079,00

691

- - BkankynvpaHu HagomecTu 3a BpeMe Ha
bonenyBare

8.604,00

693

- - EpHokpaTteH HagomecTok BO BMA Ha
ucnpaTtHuHa 3apaam TpajHo paboTHO
aHraxvpame noj yCrnoBu yTBPAEHW CO 3aKOH
(< unu = AOIN 217 op BY)

9.550.121,00

11.871.039,00

695

- - Perpec 3a roguwen ogmop (< unu = AOI
217 op BY)

7.875.249,00

8.521.441,00

696

- - Momowtn (< nnn = AOIM 217 og BY)

1.221.919,00

553.836,00

698

- - OHeBHULM 3a cryx6eHun naTyBama,
HOKeBaHsa M naTHu TpoLuoum (< unu = AOT
217 opg BY)

3.339.979,00

2.707.360,00

700

- - HapomecTu Ha TpolwouuTe Ha
BpaboTeHuTe 1 nogapoum (< unu = AOIN 217
og bY)

11.894.010,00

6.594.381,00

702

- - HagomecTu 3a 04BOEH XMBOT (< Unu =
AOIM 217 og BY)

80.280,00

574.621,00

703

- - Mogapoum Ha BpaboTteHuTe (< unun = AOM
217 op BY)

1.597.591,00

1.604.056,00

704

- - Tpowoum 3a opraHu3mpaHa ncxpaHa Bo
TeKoT Ha paborta (< unm = AOM 217 og BY)

8.944.304,00

8.331.714,00

706

- - HapomecTu Ha aHraxupaHa pabotHa cuna
npeky areHumMuTe 3a NpUBpPeEMEHN
BpaboTyBarsa (< unu = AOIN 217 og BY)

474.714,00

2.408.342,00

708

- - Tpowouu 3a cnoHsopcTea (< unu = AOT
212 op BY)

12.047,00

709

- - PenpeseHTauuja (< unun = AOIN 212 og BY)

13.654.683,00

6.924.948,00
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- - Mpemunu 3a ocurypyBare Ha UMOT (< Unm =
710 AOM 212 op BY) 8.394.054,00 5.815.625,00
- - HagomecT 3a 6aHkapcku yenyr (< unu =
711 AOT 212 op BY) 1.681.122,00 1.457.215,00
- - laHouw Kou He 3aBucart of pesynTaTtor (<
712 wu = AOT 212 op BY) 2.022.462,00 819.159,00
- - UneHapuvHu Ha 3gpyXeHwujaTa BO 3emjaTa u
714 CTpaHcTBO (< Mm = AOT 212 op BY) 457.706,00 382.868,00
- - HagomecTouym 3a noBpemMeHu u
715 npuspemenn padotu (< unm = AOIN 217 og 2.141.979,00 2.255.696,00
BY)
- - OcTaHaTtu Tpowoumn Ha paboTereTo (< nnm
717 = AOT 212 o BY) 135.513.828,00 126.447.321,00
- - Ka3Hu, neHanu HagomecToum 3a WTETU U
718 apyro (< unn = AONM 222 on BY) 19.138,00 5.228,00
721 - - cnnatenu anBuaeHam 1.154.179.277,00 2.461.933.192,00
- - Mpoce4eH 6poj Ha BpaboTeHn Bp3 ocHoBa
722 Ha cocTojbaTa Ha KpajoT Ha MeceLoT 250,00 252,00
- - MpoceyeH 6poj Ha BpaboTeHu BO
723 ceavLTeTo Ha Cy6jeKTOT Bp3 OCHOBA Ha 244,00 243,00
cocTojbaTa Ha KpajoT Ha MeceLoT
724 -- _BpOJ Ha NoAPYXXHMLM BO KOM Ce BPLUK 4,00 3,00
AejHocT, 6e3 cegnTeTO Ha cy6jekToT
CprKTypa Ha npuxoau no ,D,ejHOCTM
UcnpaBka
Heto 3a BpyTto 3a Ha
OsHaka 3a o I'IpeTxonHa
nuc TeKOBHa TeKOBHa BpegHocTa
Aorn rogouHa
rogouvHa rogvHa 3a TeKOBHa
roguHa
- 08.11 - Bagewe Ha gekopaTuBeH KameH 1
2047 KaMeH 3a rpagexHuULLTBOTO, BapOBHWK, CypOB 115.167.507,00
rMnc, Kpeaa v WKpunum
- 08.99 - OcTtaHaTo pynapcTBO U BageHe Ha
2052 KaMeH, HeCroMHaTo Ha Apyro MecTo 31.136.630,00
2166 - 23.51 - [pon3BOACTBO Ha LeMeHT 4.414.724.681,00
2170 - 23.63 - [Npoun3BoacTBO Ha roToBa GeToHcka 98.900.103,00
cmeca
2370 - 46.71 - Tprouja Ha ronemo co LBPCTU, TEYHN 387.943.693,00
1 racoBUTM ropvBa W CIIMYHWN NPOU3BOAU
2372 - 46.73 - Tprosuja Ha ronemo co Apsa, 152.256.174,00
rpafjexeH Matepujan u caHuTapHa onpema
2376 - 46.77 - TproBuja Ha ronemo co oTnagouu n 3.886.289,00
ocraTtoum
2431 - 52.21 - YcnyHu AejHOCTM NoBp3aHu co 101.816.816,00
KOMHEHMOT NpeBo3
- 64.99 - [pyrn rHaHCUCKO-YCIY>XHN
2478 [€jHOCTN, OCBEH OCUTYpYyBak-e U NEH3NCKN 13.506.961,00
(hOHAOBM, HECMIOMHATK Ha APYro MeCTO
2490 - 68.10 - KynyBare 1 npoaax6a Ha concTBeH 800.908,00
HeaBWXEH UMOT
- 68.20 - N3paBarbe 1 ynpaByBake CO
2491 COMNCTBEH HEABMXEH MMOT UM HEABUXEH MMOT 31.947.450,00
3eMeH 1nog 3aKyn (NM3uHr)
2545 - 82.99 - OcTaHaTi 4ernoBHN NOMOLLIHK 67.347.124,00
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YCIY>XHW A€JHOCTN, HECMIOMHATW Ha ApYro
MecTo

MoTnuwaHo oa;:

Gabriela Barlakoska
CN=KIBSTrust Issuing Qsig CA G2,
0ID.2.5.4.97=NTRMK-5529581, OU=KIBSTrust

Services, O=KIBS AD Skopje, C=MK
KIBSTrust Issuing Qsig CA G2

WsjaByBaMm, nog mopanHa, maTtepujanHa u KpyBMYHa OArOBOPHOCT, ieKa NojaToumTe BO roguLiHaTa cMeTka Ce TOYHU U BUCTUHUTM.

MopaTtoumTe oa roguwHaTa CMeTKa ce BO NocTarnka Ha AocTaByBake, Koja ke 3aBpLum co oanyka (ogobpysare/onbvBare) o cTpaHa Ha
LleHTpannuot Perucrtap.
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KOHCOJIMJNPAHU OBJACHYBAYKH BEJIEIIKH

1. OINIITU UHO®OPMALIUUA 3A TPYITAIMJATA

Uementapuuna “Ycje” A/l - Ckomje (“HpymTBoro”) e ocHoBaHo Bo PenybOmmka CepepHa
MakenoHnuja, co peructpupano cenuiire Ha bopuc Tpajkoscku 6p.94, Ckonje. pyImiTBOTO 3aKIyYHO
CO M3BECTYBAaYKHOT MEpHOJ UMa eqHa crpancka monapyxkuuia, TROJAN CEM EOOD byrapuja Bo
100% comnctBenoct Ha [pymTBoTo n enHa Bo Penyonuka CeBepHa Makenonuja, /| Komnanu Hooen
excriopt Koudanu ncro taka Bo 100% comcTBeHOCT.

OcHoBHara JiejHOCT Ha JIpyIITBOTO € MPOHM3BOACTBO M TPrOBHja CO IEMEHT. yCjeMall. TOTOB OETOH.
KIIMHKEp W JPyrd Opou3Boau oj meMeHT. OCHOBHAaTa JIejHOCT HA TOJpYXKHHIATa BO Byrapuja e
YCIyTH 3a TOIApIIKa Ha Tmpomakbara Bo byrapwja. OcHOBHAaTa aKTHBHOCT Ha JOMallHaTa
IMOJAPYXHHUIA € MPOU3BOACTBO HA MCIIHUYKHU ITPOU3BOJU. I[OMaHIHaTa IMoApYy>KHHUIIa € COIICTBCHUK Ha
Onamur JJOOEJI YemuHoBO, 4Mja TiaBHA JEjHOCT € JAPYTH PYJAPCKH aKTUBHOCTH U HCTPAXKYyBaHC
KaMemba.

HpymrBoTo ¢ xoHTpoympano ox Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. co cegumre Bo Xomauawja. Koj
nocenyBa 95% on akmuure Ha JpymrBoto. Bo 2019 rogmnHa gojae mo mpoMeHa BO MaTH4YHATa
komnanuja Ha JpymTBoro. Ox 31 nmexemBpu 2019 roamnHa. MaTHyHa KoMIlaHWja Ha JpymTBOTO €
Titan Cement International S.A. benruja. IIperxomna marmdHa kommanuja Oemie ,, TuTaH IeMeHT
C.A. - I'puyja.

Odummjamrao ox 1 jymu 2013 rommna , Ilementapamma “VYcje” AJl - Ckomje craHa KOTHPadKo
IpymTBo Ha Makenonckara Oep3a (mox oanen 3afoipkuTenHa Kotanuja). KoTupanumre apymirsa
UMaaT TOCTOjaHO OOBPCKM Ja TM 00jaByBaaT CHUTE IICHOBHO 4YYBCTBUTCIHU HH(OpMAIUH,
uH(OpMAaIK NTOTPEeOHHU 3a MPOIEHKA HA MOMEHTATHATA COCTOj0a Ha APYIITBATA.

bpojor Ha Bpaborenn Ha ['pynanmjata Ha 31 gexkemBpu 2021 roguna e 244 (2019: 243 BpaboTeHn).

duHaHCUCKHUTE W3BEMTau Ha [ pymarujara 3a roguHaTa mTo 3aBpirysa Ha 31 gekemspu 2021 roguHa
ce ycBoeHH of crpana Ha Ondopot Ha aupekropu Ha 28 despyapu 2022 roguna. OBue GUHAHCUCKH
M3BEILITaN ce mpeaMeT Ha ogo0pyBame o1 CoOpaHreTo Ha akunoHepu Ha ['pynanujara.

2. OCHOBA 3A IIOJAI'OTOBKA HA KOHCOJIMJIUPAHA I'OJJUIIIHA CMETKA

Konconmuanpanata rogumiaa cmetka Ha Llementapuuna Ycje A./l. - Ckorije 1 Hej3MHUTE TOAPYKHUALU
(I'pynamnujara)#bea MoAroOTBEHH BO COTIACHOCT CO 3aKOHOT 3a TProBcku ApymTBa (Ciry:kOeH BECHUK
Ha PemmyOimmka Maxkemonwuja 6poj 28/04 co uamenwnre 84/05, 25/07, 87/08, 42/10, 48/10, 24/11, 166/12,
70/2013, 119/2013 u 187/2013, 38/2014, 41/2014, 138/2014, 88/2015, 192/2015, 6/2016, 30/2016 u
61/2016, 30/16, 61/16, 64/18, 120/18, 239/18 u 290/20) M CMETKOBOJCTBCHHTE IPUHIIUITH
(“maxemoncku OIICIT”’), xom ce ce BO COIJIACHOCT €O HOBHOT I[IpaBMiaHMK 3a BOIEHE Ha
CMETKOBOJCTBO oO0jaBeH Ha 29 mexemBpu 2009 romuna (Cinyx0eH BecHUK Ha PeryOinka Makenonuja
159/09 u 164/10) npumennus ox 1 janyapu 2010 ronuna. OBoj [IpaBUITHHUK TH COOPKH a)KypHPAHUTE
U COOJIBETHO TpeBeleHnTe MeryHapoaHu cTaHAapAu 3a (GUHAHCHUCKO H3BECTYBambe T.€. OCHOBHHOT
TeKCT Ha MeryHapoaHUTE CTaHIApAW 3a (DHHAHCHCKO HW3BeCcTyBame BKIydyBajkum T u I[IKT u
KTM®U xaxo mro ce objaBenu oxn crpana Ha MACBH 3akmyuno co 1 janyapu 2009 rogusa.

Bo mnepuomor 3akmyuno co 31 gexemBpu 2009 rogmHa BO npuMeHa Oea MeryHapOIHUTE
CMETKOBOJCTBEHH cTaHAapau oOjaBeHu Bo CimyxOeH BecHUK Ha PemyOnnka MakemoHHja Kako IITO
crenu:
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e Pepummpanute MeryHapomaHu cMeTKOBoacTBeHH cTaHmapau, MCC 1 mo MCC 39 6ea
o0jaBenu Ha 30 nexemBpu 2004 roauHa, MPETXOAHUTE CO BAXHOCT 07 5 HOoeMBpu 1999
roguHa. /laTyMOT Ha cramyBame BO CHJIa Ha CUTE PEBHIUPAHU CTaHmapau ¢ 1 janyapu
2005 rogmra. Merynapomaute cMeTkoBoacTBeHH ctaHmapau, MCC 40 u MCC 41 ce
o0jaBeHH U cTaryBaar Bo cuia Ha 1 janyapu 2005 ronuna.

e Ha 10 ¢eBpyapu 2005 roguna e oOjaBeH MelyHapOAHHUOT CTaHAAp] 332 (UHAHCHCKO
n3BectyBame 1. /laTara Ha cramyBame Bo cuna e 17 ¢pespyapu 2005 ronuHa.

e Ha 29 nexkemBpu 2005 roguna ce objaBeHr MelyHapOIHUTE CTaHAAPAU 33 (PUHAHCHUCKO
n3BectyBame, MCOU 2 o MCDU 7. [latymoT Ha cramyBame Bo cuia € 30 qexeMBpH
2005 roauna.

MCoH 9, MCOU 10, MCDPU 11, MCDPU 12, MCDOU 13, MCDPU 15, MCDPU 16, KTMDU 18,
KTM®U 19, KTMO®U 20 u KTMO®U 21, KTM®U 22 u KTMO®U 23 He ce BKIyYE€HH BO
[IpaBMITHUKOT 32 CMETKOBOJICTBO U HE C€ MPUMEHETH OJ1 CTpaHa Ha [ pymanujaTa.

Konconuaupanata roguimHa cMeTka Ha ['pynanujata Oemne moArorBeHa Bp3 OCHOBAa Ha MCTOPHUCKA
HabaBHa BpenHocT. KoHcommaumpaHaTa roiuiiHa cMeTka Ha [pymamujara ce Mpe3eHTHpaHH BO
makenoncku aeHapu (MKJI) u cure usnocu ce Bo uijanu (‘000) ocBeH ako He € MOMHAKY HABEACHO.

OcHOBH 32 KOHCOJIMIALN]ja

KoHconmanpaHnaTta rofiiHa cMeTKa ce coCcTojaT oJl TOAWIIHUTE CMETKH Ha J[pyIITBOTO M HETOBHTE
noapyxkauud TROJAN CEM EOOD byrapuja u UJ] Komnann [{ooen excopt Kowanu Bo 100%
comncTBeHOoCcT Ha ['pymammjara. MJI Kommamm mak wWMa egHa TMOApPYKHHUIIA BO CBOja IICJIOCHA
conctBeHoct, OITAJIMT HOOEJI c. YemmuoBo - Ob6nemeBo. M3pemrante Ha MOAPYKHHUIIUTE CE
NOATOTBEHH 3a MCTaTa TOAWHA Ha H3BECTYBamke€ KaKo M M3BEIUTaWTe Ha MaTHYHATAa KOMaHHja,
KOPHCTEjK KOHCUCTEHTHH CMETKOBOJICTBEHH MTOIUTHKH.

Ucto taka, Ha 28 jynu 2015 ronuna ['pynauujata peructpupa ckiag Bo ceno OpoBHUK (BO Onu3nHa
Ha rpagoT OXpum) 3a CTPATELIKO IPUCYCTBO HA CBOUTE MPOU3BOIM BO jyro3aagHUOT el Ha 3eMjata.
3a ucrara 1nen, Ha 3 Asryct 2017 roguna ['pynamujata peructpupa ckiaax Bo burona. Ha 11.06.2018
rolMHa € perucTpupaH HOB MaramwH Bo Crtpymuna um Ha 22.07.2021 roamHa HOB MaramwH BO
Ob6nemeso. Maranunaot Bo burtona e 3aTBopeH Bo janyapu 2018 ronuna.

Ha 18 mexemBpu 2017 roguna J{pymiTBoTo 00U JIUICHIIA 3a TPTOBHja CO €JICKTPUYHA CHEPruja co
KOja HOCH OJIpElIcHH OJATOBOPHOCTH KOH J[lpaBHara perynaropHa komwucuja. Bo 2019 roguna mma
caMo eIlHa TpaHCaKIMja MMOBP3aHa CO TPrOBHja CO EJIEKTPUYHA €HEpruja W IMOHATaMy HE Ce CITyqHJie
AaKTUBHOCTHU TIOBP3aHU CO JINIEHIIATA.

Cutre MEryKOMITAHWCKH calija, TPaHCAKIWW, MPUXOMW M TPOIIONM W JOOMBKH W 3aryOd KO
MpOU3JIeryBaar 0J1 TPAHCAKIIMUTE BO paMKuTe Ha [pynainmjara, a KOU ce SBUACHTUPAAT KaKo CPeICTBa
[EJIOCHO C€ CIMMMHUHHUPAHU BO I1eNOCT. [ToAPYKHUIUTE Ce IENOCHO KOHCOJHIUPAHU O] JATyMOT Ha
MIPEeB3EMambETO, KOj BCYIIHOCT € JaTyM Ha koj ['pymammjaTa ja cTekHama KOHTpoJaTa, U IPOIoIKyBa
Jla ce KOHCOJIHMIMpa ce JI0 JaTyMOT JI0 KOj TaKBaTa KOHTPOJIA Ke MTOCTOH.
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3. 3HAYAJHU CMETKOBOJICTBEHU ITIOJIMTUKHU

a. BiroxkyBama BO moapy:KHUIH

[ompyXHUIIM ce CUTE EHTHTETH BO KoWm [IpymTBOTO MMa MOK Ja Biajee cO (DUHAHCHUCKUTE W
ONIEpaTUBHUTE TOJIUTUKHU, IJIABHO IMpPONpaTeHa CO COICTBEHOCT Ha IMOBEKE OJ €IHa IOJOBHHA OJ
rmacaukute mpasa. [locroemero m e(heKTOT o MOTEHIWjaTHUTE TJIacadKd TpaBa KOW INTO BO
MOMEHTOT CE€ Ha pacloJiaramke WIM IaK MOXaT Jla Ce KOHBEPTUPAAT C€ 3eMaaT BO NPEIABUJ IIpU
yTBpAyBame Janu JpylmTBOTO HMa KOHTpOJa HaJl eHTUTETOT.

0. OnepaTuBHU CerMeHTH

OrmnepaTUBHUTE CETMEHTH CE KOMITOHEHTH KOU CE aHTaXUpaatr BO JEJIOBHOTO pabOTEHhe KOM MOXKAT Ja
3apa0oTaT MPUXOJM M KOW MPEAM3BHKYBaaT TPOLIOIM, KOM OICPATHBHU PE3YNTaTH C€ PEIOBHO
CIICICHH OJf CTpaHa Ha PAKOBOJACTBOTO W 3a KOW (PMHAHCHUCKH HH(POpMAIMM Ce JTOCTAITHH.
PakoBOACTBOTO € JMIE WIM Tpyla Ha JIMIa KOH alOIMpaaT pPecypcd M KOW TI'M TPOICHYBaaT
nepdopmancute Ha ['pymnaiujara.

OyHKIMHUTE HAa PAKOBOJACTBOTO C€ M3BPILYBaaT Ol cTpaHa Ha bopmot Ha mupektopu Ha ['pymanujara.
WuTepHOTO M3BECTyBame BO paMKuTe Ha [ pymamujara Koe ce mpe3eHTHpa Ha PakoBoacTBOTO € Ha
HUBO Ha [’pynamnujata Kako eIeH olepaTHBeH cerMeHT. OANyKWTe [OHECeHHW Of CTpaHa Ha
PakoBozncTBOTO ce Oa3upaHu Ha IPUMEHH U3BELITAU NPE3CHTUPAHH KaKO €ICH ONEPATUBEH CETMEHT.

B. Kommnaparusu

Co 11en 1a ce 0P KM TOCIEIHOCT CO TIpe3eHTaIlijaTa Ha TeKOBHATA TOAMHA, OJPEICHN CTaBKH MOYKEOH
ce mpeknacu(uIUMpaHd 3a cropen0OeHH Ied. MaTepujalHUTe NPOMEHU BO 00€JoJIcHYBamara,
JIOKOJIKY TH MMa, C€ JICTAJTHO OIUIIAHH BO COOJIBETHUTE OCIIEIIIKH.

r. [IpeBeayBame HA CTPAHCKH BAJIYTH

I'pynanujata TW MOATOTBYBa (PUHAHCHCKUTE W3BEIITAM BO MAKEJAOHCKM JICHApH, KOU Ce
(yHKIMOHATHA W TPE3CHTHUpadka BalyTa Ha ['pymammjata 3a JOKaNHH 3aKOHCKHA ToTpedm. Cekoj
eHTHTEeT BO [pynamnujara ompeaeiayBa CONCTBeHa (YHKIMOHAJHA BajlyTa M €JISCMCHTUTE Ha
(hMHAHCHCKUTE U3BEIITAH 32 CEKOj CHTUTET CE€ MEpaT KOPUCTE]KH ja Taa BayTa.

TpaHcakuuuTe BO CTPAHCKW BAIYTH WHHIMjATHO C€ EBHICHTHUpaaT BO (DyHKHOHAJIHA BajJyTa IIO
KypCOT KOj € Ba)KCUKH Ha JIEHOT Ha TpaHcaknujata. MoOHETapHHTE M HEMOHETapHHTE CpPEACTBa M
00OBPCKH IEHOMHUHHPAHU BO CTPAHCKH BAJYTH C€ CBEACHH BO (YHKLUHMOHAIHATA BaJlyTa MO KypcC KOj €
Ba)KEUKH Ha JaTyMOT Ha U3BecTyBame. CUTEe pPa3IMKU Ce IPEHECEHU BO OMJIAHCOT Ha yCIeX.

OyHKIIMOHATHUTE BAIyTH Ha CTpaHCKUTE omnepaunu, Tpojad Llem - Byrapuja e eBpo. Ha cexoj natym
Ha U3BECTyBame, CpelcTBaTa U OOBPCKUTE Ha OBaa IOJPY>KHHUIIA CE€ CBEICHHU IIPEKy KOHBEp3Hja Ha
€Bpa BO BaylyTatra Ha mnpe3eHTHpame Ha l{ementapuuiia YCJE AJl (MakeIOHCKH J€HApP) IO KYpC KOj
BaXKH Ha JaTyMOT Ha u3BecTyBameuvawe (2021: 61,6270 3a 1 EUR; 2020: MKJ] 61,6940 3a 1 EUR), a
HETOBMOT OMJIAHC Ha YCIIEX € CBEJICH I10 MOHIepHupaH npocedeH roguimeH kypce (2021: MKD 61,6324
3a 1 EUR; 2020: MK]] 61,6934 3a 1 EUR). KypcHute pa3nuku Kou pou3JIeryBaar 0O/l OBa CBElyBambe
ce IpeHeceHH AypeKTHO BO ocTaHaTa ceomndarHa mpoduBka. [Ipu mpomax0a Ha CTPaHCKUOT €HTHTET
KyMYJIaTHBOT OJ OBHE DPa3iIMKH NPU3HATH BO OCTaHaTa ceomdaTHa NOOMBKa KOj ce OJHECyBa Ha
COOJIBETHUOT CTPAHCKH CHTUTET Ce IIPU3HABA BO OMIIAHCOT HA yCIEX.
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. HenBH:KHOCTH, TOCTPOjKH M oNpemMa

He,I[BI/I)KHOCTI/I, HOCTpOjKI/I " Oo11peMa, €€ CBUACHTHUPAAT KAaKO IITO CJICOU:

» 3a cpexacrBara HabaBenu n0 31 nexemBpu 1998 romuna, peBaniopuzanMjaTa HanpaBeHa BO
cornacHoct co nperxoguure OIICII, Ha matymor Ha npudakame Ha MCOP on ctpana Ha
I'pymanujata (1 janyapu 2004 roguna) e mpudaTeHa Kako MPETIIOCTaBeH TPOIIOK Ouuejku
peBanopuzarnujaTa oemre MpuOIMKHO eTHAKBa Ha TPOIIOKOT 3a amopTu3anuja ciopex MCOP
KOperupaH 3a IopacToT Ha MHAEKCOT Ha IIEHH Ha MHIyCTPUCKUTE TPOU3BOIUTEIH.

= (CpencrBata HabaBeHu 1o 31 gexeMBpu 1998 rogmHa ce eBUACHTHPAAT M0 HaOaBHA BPEIHOCT
HaMaJIeHd 3a aKyMyJMpaHaTa aMOopTH3allMja W MOCJICIOBaTEIIHUTE aKyMyJIHpaHU 3aryOu
nopajau 00e3BpICHyBabE.

HabaBkuTte ce eBumeHTHpaar mo HabaBHa BpenHOCT. HabaBHaTa BpeTHOCT IIpeTcTaByBa HabaBHA I1eHA
ol n00aByBauoOT 3a€IHO CO CHTE TPOUIONM HACTAHATH IPU CTaBakEe BO YIOTpeba HAa HOBaTa
HEJIBUIKHOCT, MOCTPOjKa U OTpeMa.

CraBKkuTe Ha HEIBH)KHOCTH, IOCTPOjKM H OIpeMa KOM ce OTIUINyBaaT MM OTTyyBaar ce
SNMMUHUPAaT OJl W3BEIITAjOT 32 (PUHAHCHUCKA COCTOjOa, 33aeHO CO COOJBETHATa aKyMyJHpaHa
amoprtm3anuja. JlIoOMBKUTE WK 3aryOHTE OJ] OTYI'YBameTO C€ OMpEIeIyBaaT CO CIIOpemyBame Ha
NPUXOJIOT CO CMETKOBOACTBEHATAa BpEAHOCT. THe ce BKIIydyBaaT BO JJOOWBKaTa WK 3aryoarta.

AMopTu3zanjaTa Ha HEABIDKHOCTUTE, IOCTPOJKHTE W OlpeMara € YTBpACHa 3a Ja ce OTIHIIe
HabaBHATa BPEIHOCT WJIM TPOIICHETaTa BPEIHOCT HA HEABIKHOCTUTE, TIOCTPOJKUATE M OMpeMara Bp3
OCHOBAa Ha IMMPABO-NPONOPIMOHANIHA METOJ]a BO TEKOT Ha MPOIEHETHOT KOPHCEH BEK Ha ynorpeda Ha
CpencTBara.

OcHOBHUTE aMOpPTHU3allMOHU CTAIIKH CE€ CIICAHUTEC!

3rpanu 2,5-10%
Onpema 5-25%

3emMjara ce eBHACHTHPA BO M3BEIITAjOT 32 (PMHAHCUCKA COCTOj0a 1o HabaBHATa BPEAHOCT HaMaJeHa 3a
UCIIPaBKUTE NOpaau 00e3BpEeHYBamkEe M HE CE aMOPTU3Upa, OMIEjKU ce IPEeTIOCTaByBa JeKa MMa
HEOTPaHWYEH BEK Ha Tpaewe, OCBEH 3a PYAHUIUTE KOM CE aMOPTHU3Upaar Bp3 OCHOBA Ha CTENCHOT Ha
UCLpIICHOCT. McrprieHocTa ce eBHACHTHPA KaKo MPOIeC Ha MaTePHjaTHO U3BJICKYBAbE, a C€ KOPUCTU
METOJIOT Ha €AMHHIIA Ha ITPOU3BOJICTBO.

MeTtoauTe Ha aMOpTH3allija, KOPUCHUOT BEK Ha ymoTpeba v pe3uayanHaTa BPeIHOCT Ha CPeACTBaTa
ce MPEeoIIeHyBaaT Ha CeKOj IaTyM Ha H3BECTYBambE.

I. Bnomynan,a BO HECABHKHOCTH

BrnoxyBamara BO HEBIKHOCTH, TJIABHO CE COCTOM OJ 3€MjHUILTE, MPOU3BOJHH O0jEKTH CO AETOBHU
KaHIEJapuH U TpaJekeH 00jeKT - pecTopaH U KadeKkyBapHHUIIa KOM HEMaaT CBOja HAMEHa, U Ce YyBaaT
3a JOJITOPOYHO H3HAjMyBamkbe€ M HE Ce KOpHUCTaT o cTpaHa Ha ['pymanujara. BioxysamaTta BO
HEJBUYKHOCTH Ce BOJAT 1o ()ep BPEIHOCT, OJJHOCHO Ma3apHa, Koja I'M Ofpa3yBa Ma3apHUTE YCIOBU Ha
JEHOT Ha W3BecTyBame. J[OOMBKHTE WM 3aryOMTe KOM MpOM3JIEryBaaT O MPOMEHHUTE BO ¢ep
BPEIHOCTA Ha BJIOXKYBambaTa BO HEJBI)KHOCTH C€ COCTABEH el Ha OMJIAHCOT Ha ycIieX BO INEPUOIOT
BO KOj MCTUTE HACTAaHyBaaT, BKIYYyBajKd I'M M COOJBETHHUTE NaHOUYHU edektu. [lazapHaTa BpemrHOCT
ce oJpellyBa Ha OCHOBA Ha MpPOLIEHKA CIPOBEACHA Off HE3aBUCHHU NPOIEHUTENM KOM T'0 KOpPUCTAT
METOOT Ha MPUXOIU U MOJEJIOT Ha Ma3apHH YCIOBH KaKO OCHOBHHM MOJEIHM Ha MPOLIEHKH KOH ce
omnmto npudartenu Bo EBpornckaTa mpakca.
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BrnoxyBamara BO HEABHIKHOCTH CE JNEMPU3HABAAT KOra Ke OWAaT OTTYICHH WM Kora THE TPajHO Ke
Ommar TOBJICUECHU OJ1 yrmoTpeba, a WaHAa €KOHOMCKA KOPHCT HE ce O4YeKyBa O]l HUBHATAa IPOaakda.
Pasnukara momery HETO MPHIIMBHUTE OJ1 MPoAax0a U CMETKOBOJICTBEHATA BPEAHOCT Ha CPEJICTBOTO Ce
MpHU3HaBa BO OMJIAHCOT Ha YCIIEX BO MEPUOJIOT KOTa CPEJICTBOTO € ACTIPU3HACHO.

[IpeHocoT BO WM Of BIOXYBamba BO HEJBI)KHOCTH C€ MpaBU Kora MMa MpOMEHa BO yroTpebara Ha
CPEICTBOTO. 3a MPEHOC OJ] BIOXKYBaWke BO HEABM)KHOCT BO CPEJICTBO KOE C€ KOPHCTH OJ CTpaHa Ha
I'pynanujara, HabaBHaTa BpeJHOCT BO IIOCEIOBaTEeNIHATA EBUACHIM]a Ha CPEICTBOTO € 00jeKTUBHATA
BPEJHOCT Ha TOA CPEACTBO Ha JaTyMOT KOI'a € HallpaBeH MPEHOCOT.

JIoKONKy CpelncTBO KOE ce KOPHCTH OJf cTpaHa Ha ['pymarujata ce mpeHece BO BIOXYBamba BO
HEABWKHOCTH, BPEIHOCTA Ha TOoa CPEACTBO CE YTBPAyBa BO COIJIACHOCT CO IIOJMTHKATa 3a
HEJIBMDKHOCTH, TIOCTPOjKU U ONpeMa JI0 TaTYMOT Kora € HallpaBeH NmpeHocoT. ['pynaiujata Tpeda aa ja
TpeTHpa CeKoja pa3jivKa Ha JaTyMOT MOMEry CMETKOBOJICTBEHATa BPEAHOCT Ha HEIBUKHOCTHTE BO
cornmacHoct co MCC 16 u HuBHaTa 00jeKTHBHA BPETHOCT, HA UCT HAUYMH KaKO W PEBaJIOpH3allHjaTa BO
cornacHoct co MCC 16.

e. CpezcTBa 3a HCTPaKyBame U BPeIHYBa€

Wznaronure 3a UCTpaKyBamke W BpEAHYBame (reorpadcku Bp3aHO 3a KOHLECHjaTa, JO3BOJIaTa WU
ono0peHaTa pyIapcka JIMIEHLA) Ce KalUTIW3UpaaT U ce IPU3HABAaT KAKO CPEICTBO IOKOJKY €
OJTY4YeHO OJ1 CTpaHa Ha PaKOBOJACTBOTO J€Ka PyJapCKUTe aKTHUBHOCTH €KOHOMCKH CE€ ONpaBIaHU U
MOXe Jla ce pa3BHjaT 3a KOMEpIHjaTHO MPOU3BOACTBO. Ha KpajoT Ha meproIoT Ha U3BECTYBAHE, OBUE
TPOIIOLM TH BKIy4YyBaaT TpPOLIOLUTE 32 CTEKHYBAalkE€ HA KOHIECHH 3a JACTAJHH T€OJIOLIKH
ucTpaxyBama. CuTe Ipyru U31aTOLH 332 UCTPAXKyBambe U BPEIHYBabE C€ MPU3HABAAT KaKo TPOILIOK BO
OMIaHCOT Ha ycIlleX BO MOMEHTOT Ha HUBHOTO HaCTaHYBambe.

AIMUHUCTPAaTUBHUTE W OIIUTH TPOLIONM IOBP3aHH CO HUCTPaKyBamaTa M BpeIHYBamaTa ce
IpU3HAaBaaT Kako TPOILOLHU BO OMIIAHCOT HA YCIEX BO MOMEHTOT Ha HUBHOTO HACTaHYBAambE.

K. DUHAHCHCKU HHCTPYMEHTH - MHUIMjaJIHO MPU3HABaH-€ U MO0C/Ie10BATeJIHO Meperhe

DUHAHCHCKH CPECTBA

Huuyujanno npuznasarve

Crnopen MCC 39, ¢unaHcHCKHTE cpelcTBa ce KiacuuIHupaaT Kako (UHAHCHCKH CPEICTBa IO
00jeKTUBHA BPEAHOCT TIPEKy JOOMBKAaTa WM 3arybara, 3aeMH W MM00apyBama, MHBECTHITHHA KOU CE
yyBaaT A0 JOCIEBame, (DUHAHCHUCKH CpPEACTBA PACIONOXKIMBH 3a TPOJakda WM JCpUBATUBU
OTIpeaeNieHH KaKo XCIMHT HHCTPYMEHTH BO €(peKTUBEH XEIIMHT, COOABETHO. [ 'pynanujara ja yTBpayBa
Kiacudukanyjata Ha (UHAHCUCKUTE CPEACTBA NPU HMHUIMJATHOTO Ipu3HaBame. DuHaHCHCKUTE
CpelICcTBa WHHUITMjATHO Ce TpH3HaBaaT IO OO0jeKTHBHA BPEAHOCT IUTYC ITUPEKTHO TIOBP3aHHUTE
TPaHCAaKIIMOHM TPOLIOLH, BO CIy4yaj KOora BIOXKYyBamaTa ce BpeAHyBaaT 10 BPEAHOCT KOja € pa3indHa
o OO0jeKTHBHAaTa BpPEAHOCT TpeKy moOumBka winu 3aryba. HabGaBkata wmm mpopaxOara Ha
(MHAHCUCKHTE CpPeACTBAa KOM MOApa30MpaaT HCIopaka Ha CPeacTBa BO BPEMEHCKH NTEPUO YTBPIACH CO
MpaBHA peryjiaTUBa WIX TMa3apHa croronda (peaoBeH HAUMH HAa Ha0aBKa) ce MPU3HABAAaT HA JATYMOT
Ha TpaHCakKIHjaTa T.e. JaTyMOT Ha Koj [ pymanujara ce 00Bp3yBa Ja KyIy Wi IpOJajae CPEACTBO.

@unancuckuTe cpenctsa Ha ['pynamujara BKIydyBaaT IMapd M NMApUYHH CPEACTBA U KPATKOPOUHH
JIETIO3UTH, ToOapyBarma o] KyITyBayH U OCTaHATH N00apyBama.

Iocneoosamennu meperba

IlocnenoBareaHuTe MEpCHa Ha (1)I/IHaHCI/ICKI/ITe CpeAacCTBa 3aBUCAT OJf HUBHATa Knacn(bmcaunja, KaKo
IITO CICON:
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@OUHAHCHUCKH CPeACTBAa eBUICHTHPAHH MO 00jeKTHBHA BPEJIHOCT NMPeKy N00MBKA WJIH 3aryda

ODOUHAHCUCKH CPEICTBA CBHJICHTHpPAHU IO OOjEeKTHBHA BPETHOCT TPEKy JHOOMBKA WM 3aryba
BKIIy4yBaaT (PMHAHCHUCKH CpPEACTBA PACIOJIOKIMBH 33 TPryBamke M (PMHAHCHCKH CPEJCTBa yTBPACHU
NpY MHUALU]aJTHOTO PU3HABamkE M0 00jeKTHBHA BPEIHOCT MPEKy T0OMBKA M 3ary0a. @HUHAHCHCKUTE
CpencTBa ce KiIacH(UIMpaHW KaKO pACIOIOKIMBU 3a TPryBame TOKOJKY ce HabaBaT CO Iel
nponaxkba Bo Onmcka uaHuHa. OBaa Kareropuja TM BKIydyBa (DWHAHCHUCKUTE WHCTPYMEHTH -
JIEpUBATHBU KOU HE TH MCIOJHYBAaT KPUTEPUYMHUTE 3a yoTpeda BO CMETKOBOJCTBO Ha XEUHMHI KaKO
mro e nepunupano Bo MCC 39. I'pymamujata Hema ompeneiaeHO (PHUHAHCHUCKH CPEICTBA IO
00jeKTUBHA BPEAHOCT MIPEKy TOOMBKA WM 3aryoa.

3aemn 1 modapyBama

3aemute U mobapyBamaTa C€ HEACPUBATHBHU (PUHAHCUCKUA CPEICTBAa CO (DMKCHU WM YTBPIHBU
IUTakama, KOW HE KOTHpaaT Ha akTMBHHOT ma3ap. OBue (MHACHCKH CpEACTBA CE CBEAyBaar IIo
amopTu3upaHa Ha0aBHa BPEIHOCT CO KOPUCTEHE Ha MeTOJ Ha e(eKTHMBHa KaMaTHa CTarKa.
JoOuBkuTe W 3aryOoWTe ce NIpu3HaBaaT BO OMJIAHCOT Ha YCIEX BO MOMEHTOT KOTa 33aeMHTE U
nobapyBamaTa ce aHyJIUpaaT WM UM Ce HamMallyBa BPEAHOCTA MOPaiu 00€3BPEIHYBAKE, KAKO U MPEKY
MPOIECOT Ha aMOPTH3aIlHja.

Biio:kyBama KoM ce 4yBaaT 10 10CIeBambe

HenepuBatuBHHATE (UHAHCHUCKH CPEACTBa cO GUKCHH WJIM OINPENIeICHH TUIakama U cO (PUKCEH aaTyMm
Ha JIOCTIeBame ce Kiacu(uImpaaT Kako BIOXKYBamkba KOM CE 4yBaaT JIO JIOCIEBamE, JOKOJIKY
I'pynanujata uMa HaMepa M MOXHOCT Jia T'M 4yBa JO JoOcCleBame. [0 WHUIM]aTHOTO Mepeme,
BJIOKYBamaTa KOU Ce YyBaat JO0 JOCIECBAaKkE Ce BPEAHYBAaT Mo aMOpTU3UpaHa HabaBHA BPEIHOCT CO
KOPHUCTEHhEe Ha MeToaara Ha edeKTHBHA KamaTHa cTamka. OBOj METOJ KOPUCTH e(eKTHBHA KamaTHa
CTarkKa Koja MPeNu3HO TH JUCKOHTHPA MPOIICHETUTE UHH MMaPUYHU MPUINBYA HU3 OYEKYBAaHHOT BEK Ha
(DMHAHCUCKOTO CPENCTBO JIO HETO CMETKOBOJCTBEHATa BPEOHOCT Ha (UHAHCHUCKOTO CPENICTBO.
JloOuBKHTE W 3ary0uTe ce eBUACHTHPAAT BO OMJIAHCOT Ha yCIeX BO MOMEHTOT KOTra BJIO)XKYBamara ce
aHyJUpaaT WM UM C€ HaMmalyBa BPEIHOCTa MOpaaud O00€3BpEIHYBame, KakO W HHU3 IPOIECOT Ha
aMmopTH3aIyja.

I'pynanujara Hema BIIOKyBama KOM I'M YyBa JIO JIOCIICBalke BO T'OAMHHUTE INTO 3aBpiryBaar Ha 31
nexemBpu 2021 roguna u 2020 roauHa.

DOUHAHCUCKH CPEACTBA PACHOJIO0KIUBH 32 PoAakda

@duHaHCHCKHU CpeJICTBa PaCHONIOKINBH 32 TIPOAax0a ce HeIepUBATUBHN (DMHAHCUCKH CPEJICTBA KOU ce
OIIpe/IeNIeHH KaKO PAacITOJIOXKIMBU 32 MpoAax0a WM HEe ce KIacH(pHUIMPaHW BO NMPETXOJHHUTE TPH
kateropud. [0 MHHIUjaTHOTO Mepeme, (PUHAHCHCKHUTE CPEICTBA PACIONOXKIMBH 3a Mpoaaxda ce
MepaT Mo OOjeKTHBHa BPEAHOCT CO CBHICHTUDPAE HA HEpealM3UpaHuTe IOOOMBKH WIN 3aryOu
€BHJCHTHPAHU AUPEKTHO BO KAIUTAJOT CE JOJEKa BIOXKYBAKETO € aHyJIUPAHO, KOra KyMyJaTHBHATa
JnoOuBKa MM 3ary0a eBUACHTHpaHAa BO KalUTAJIOT C€ MpU3HaBa BO OWJIAHCOT Ha yCHeX, WIH €
YTBpAEHO 00€3BpelHyBamke, KOra KyMyJaTUBHATa 3ary0a eBUACHTHpaHa BO KAIHUTANOT ce MpHU3HAaBa
BO OMJIAHCOT Ha yCIIeX.

I'pynanujara HemMa BIOXKyBama PACIIONOXKIMBH 32 Mpoaax0a BO TOJMHMTE IITO 3aBplIyBaaT Ha 31
nexkemBpu 2021 roguna u 2020 ronuHa.
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JdenpuznaBame

OduHAHCHCKUTE CpelcTBa (WM, JIOKOJKY € COOJBETHO el 07 (PMHAHCHCKO CPEJICTBO WM JeN OJ
rpyra Ha CIIMYHU (PMHAHCHCKHU CPEJICTBA) CE ACTIPU3HABAAT JOKOJIKY:
- MpaBOTO 32 MPHEM Ha NapUYHU MPHUIIHBH O] CPEICTBOTO € UCTCUCHO; HITH
- TI'pymamujara rv uma npedpieHo CBOUTE TpaBa 3a MPUEM Ha MAPHYHH MPHIUBH BO I[EIOCEH
M3HOC 0€3 3HAYajHO OIOKYBamke Ha TPETO JIUIIC TPEKY ,,apaHKMaH! Ha MMOCPESTHUK ™ W WIIH
(a) I'pynanmjara uMa mnpedpieHO 3HAUUTEIECH NI OJf CHUTC PHU3HMIIM M KOPUCTH OJl
cpenctBoro, wim (0) I'pynanujata Hema npedplieHO HUTY 3aApPKAHO 3HAYUTENEH e OJf
CHUTE PU3UIH U KOPUCTH O] CPEACTBOTO, HO ja MMa MpedplieHO KOHTpoJIaTa Ha CPEJICTBOTO.

HaMaﬂyBa}be Ha BpeaHOoCTa nopaau 06e3Bpe)1HyBaH)e

I'pynanujata Ha cekoj NaTyM Ha W3BECTYBame YTBPAYBa NI TOCTOM OOjEKTHBEH J0Ka3 JeKa
(DMHAHCUCKOTO CPENCTBO WM Tpyna Ha (UHAHCHCKU cpencTBa ce obe3BperHeTH. DUHAHCHCKOTO
CpPE/ICTBO WJIH Tpymna Ha (UHAHCUCKHU CPENICTBA CE CMETa 3a 00E3BpPEIHETO aKo, U CaMO aKo, MOCTOU
00jeKTHBEH JIOKa3 32 HaMaJIyBamke Ha BPEJAHOCTA MOpaJn 00e3BPEAHYBAE KAKO PE3yJITaT Ha EACH WK
MOBEKe HACTAHM KOW HACTAHYBAaaT MO WHUIMJATHOTO MPH3HABAKE HAa CPEICTBOTO (,,HACTAH Ha
3ary0a’”) W TOj HAcTaH 3a 3ary0a WMa BJIHjaHHE HAa TPOICHETUTE WIHW TapWYHA TPWINBH Ha
(h)MHAHCUCKOTO CPEACTBO WM Ha Tpyna Ha (PUHAHCHUCKU CPENCTBA KOM MOXKE CO CHTYPHOCT Ja ce
nporeHar. J{oka3or 3a 00e3BpeHyBamke MOXKE Jia BKIyYyBa WHAMKATOPH JIeKa JODKHUIUTE WIIH
rpyna Ha JOJDKHHUIIM C€ COOYYyBaaT CO 3HAYHMTENHH (HHAHCHCKH TPOOJIEMH, HEHCIIOIHYBambe Ha
00BpCKHUTE 3a MCIUIaTa Ha KamaTa WU BpaKame Ha IVIaBHHUIIATa, BEPOjaTHOCTA Jieka Ke 00jaBar creuaj
win apyra (PUHAHCHCKAa peopraHu3aiyja W KaJe ITO IOCTOjaT BHJUIMBH WHAWKAIUU 32 MEPIUBO
HAMaJyBamke Ha MPOICHETUTE WIHU MapUYHA TEKOBH, KaKO INTO CE MPOMEHH BO oOJlacTa Ha
E€KOHOMCKHTE YCIIOBH KOH JIOBEIyBaar JI0 HeycIieX.

3aryba mopamum oOe3BpedHYBame BO OJHOC Ha (DUHAHCUCKUTE CPEICTBA BPEOHYBAaHH II0
aMOPTH3AI[MOHEH TPOLIOK C€ IIPecCMETYBaaT Kako pas3jiuka IMoMmely HHMBHaTa CMETKOBOACTBEHA
BPEIHOCT M CceramiHaTa BpPEAHOCT Ha IMPOLEHETHUTE WIAHM TMapUYHH MPUINBU JHUCKOHTHpaHa IO
opuruHajgHa e(eKkTUBHa KamarHa cramka. [loeanHedHUTE 3HAYMTENHHM (DUHAHCHUCKU CpPEACTBA Ce
TEeCTUpaaT 3a HaMmalyBalke Ha BpEAHOCTAa Nopagu o0e3BpedHyBame MNoeauHeuHo. (OcraHaTHuTe
(hMHAHCUCKH CpelCTBa ce NPOIEHYBaaT 3acIHO BO TPYIH KOW MUMAaaT CIMYHU KapaKTEPUCTUKU BO
BpCKa CO KPEIUTHUOT PU3HK.

Cure 3aryOu mopaau o0e3BpelHyBame Ce MpU3HABaaT BO OWJIAHCOT Ha ycmex. 3arybarta mopaau
00e3BpeIHyBambe MOXKE Jla Ce aHyJupa MOKOJKY MOXe OOjeKTHMBHO Ja CE MOBP3€ CO HACTAHOT IO
MIPU3HABAKBETO Ha 3arybara mopaau o0e3BpeaHyBame. 3a ((HHAHCUCKUTE CPEICTBA KOU CE BpeaHyBaaT
10 aMOpTU3UpaHa HabaBHA BPEIHOCT, aHYJIMPAmETO Ce MPU3HABa BO NOOMBKaTa WK 3arydara.

DUHAHCHCKH 00BPCKH

Huuyujanno npuznasarve

Cropen MCC 39, ¢unaHCHCKMTE OOBpCKH ce KilacHuIHpaar Kako (UHAHCHCKH OOBPCKH IIO
00jeKTUBHA BPEIHOCT MPEKy JOOWBKAa WM 3ary0a, Kako 3aeMH W TO03ajMHITM WM KaKO JACPUBATHBH
KOM CIIyXaT KaKO XE[HHI HHCTPYMEHTH cO e(eKTMBEH XELWHI, COOABETHO. [pymamujara ja
ompenenyBa Kiacupukanujata Ha (QUHAHCUCKUTE OOBPCKH NpPU HHHUIMJATHOTO TPU3HABAMKC.
ODuHAHCUCKUTE OOBPCKM WHHIMjAIHO C€ MpH3HABaaT IO OO0jeKTHBHA BPEAHOCT, IUIYC IUPEKTHO
MOBP3aHUTE TPOIIOLHU Ha TPAHCAKIIMjaTa JIOKOJIKY Ce KJIaCH(pHUIMpaaT KaKo 3aeMHU U M03ajMHUIIH.

OunaHcuckuTe OOBpCKM Ha ['pynanujata BKIydyBaaT OOBpPCKH copeMma A00aByBauuTe M APYTH
00BpCKHU.
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Iocneoosamenno meperve

MepeH,eTo Ha (1)I/IHaHCI/ICKI/ITC O6BpCKI/I 3aBHMCH OJf HUBHATa KJ'IaCI/I(l)I/IKaLII/Ija KakKoO IITO CICOU:

DUHAHCUCKH 00BPCKHU eBUACHTHPAHM MO 00jeKTHBHA BPeJHOCT NMpeKy 100MBKa MM 3ary0a

®duHAHCUCKUTE OOBPCKM EBHJICHTHpPAHH 1O OO0jeKTHBHA BPEIHOCT MPEKy JOOMBKA WM 3aryoa
BKIIy4yBaaT (MHAHCUCKH OOBPCKH PACTIONIOKIHBY 32 TPTyBame U (GUHAHCUCKHA OOBPCKH OAPEICHH IO
00jeKTUBHA BPEIHOCT IMPEKY JTOOMBKA WM 3ary0a NMPpH WHHIIM]ATHOTO TpHu3HaBame. OUHAHCHCKUTE
00BpckH ce KiacH(UIUpaar Kako pacIoNIOXKIUBH 3a TPryBambe JOKOJIKY ce HabaBeHH CO IIel
npoaaxoa Bo Onrcka uaHuHA. OBaa KaTeropuja BKIy4YyBa JCPUBATUBHU (DMHAHCHCKH WUHCTPYMEHTH
KOM HE TH UCTIOJIHYBaaT CMETKOBOJICTBEHHUTE YCIIOBH 32 XelHMHT onpenenenu cropen MCC 39.

JobuBkutTe n 3ary0ute o OOBPCKHTE KOM CE€ UyBaaT 3a TPryBame ce NMpH3HaBaaT BO OMIAHCOT Ha
ycnex. ['pynanujata HeMa ofpeneHo GUHAHCUCKH OOBPCKU IO O0jeKTHBHA BPEIHOCT MPEKY JT0OHMBKa
WM 3aryoa.

3aemMu M no3ajMHULH

[lo WHHALIMjATHOTO TIPHU3HABAaKHE, KAMATOHOCHHUTE 3a€MH M T033jMHUIH TTOCIEOBATEIHO Ce MepaT HHU3
NpOIIeCOT Ha HHMBHA aMOPTH3alldja CO KOPUCTEHE Ha MeToJ Ha e(eKTHBHAa KamaTHa CTallka.
JloOuBKHUTE M 3aryOuTe Ce NMpU3HABaaT BO OMJIAHCOT Ha YyCIEeX Kora 0OBPCKUTE C€ aHyJIMpaar, Kako U
HU3 TIPOIIECOT Ha HUBHA aMOPTH3aIlHja.

Je-npu3HaBame

dunraHCHCKaTa 00BPCKa Ce Jie-IPU3HaBa KOora 3a/I0JDKEHHETO 33 00BpCKaTa € MOAMHUPEHO, TOHUIIITEHO
WITH TIPECTaHyBa Jla BaXKH.

Kora mocroeuka ¢mHaHcHCKa 00BpCKa € 3aMeHeTa CO JpyTa OJf HCT 3aeMojaBaTell 10 3HAYUTEITHO
MOpa3JIMYHU YCJIOBH, MM TIAK YCJIOBHUTE Ha MOCTOEYKaTa OOBpPCKA 3HAYUTEIHO CE€ MPOMEHETH, TaKBa
pa3MeHa WM U3MEeHa ce TPEeTHpa Kako Je-Tpu3HaBame Ha OpUTHHANHATAa OOBpCKa M MpHU3HABame Ha
HOBaTa 00BPCKa, a pa3jiMKaTa Ha COOJIBETHUTE CMETKOBOJICTBEHH U3HOCH C€ MTPH3HABA BO OMIJIAHCOT Ha
yCTIex.

Hernpame Ha (UHAHCHCKUTE HHCTPYMEHTH

OUHAHCUCKUTE CPEACTBA U (PUHAHCUCKUTE OOBPCKH CE HETHPAAT M HETO M3HOCOT € MPE3CHTHPaH BO
KOHCOJIMTMUPAHUOT HM3BEIMITAjoT 3a (PMHAHCHCKaTa COCTOj0a, ako W caMO aKo, IMOCTOW IPHUMEHINBO
3aKOHCKO TPaBO 3a HETHUPame Ha EBUICHTUPAHHUTE M3HOCU U TMIOCTOM HaMepa Jia ce IMOPaMHU Ha HETO
OCHOBA, WJIH J]a C€ MPHU3HAAT CPEIICTBATA UIIH J]a CE MOPAMHAT OOBPCKUTE UCTOBPEMEHO.

3. 3aJuxu

3anuxuTe ce BpeIHyBaaT CIOped IOHHCKAaTa BPEeIHOCT OJf HabaBHATaA M HETO peaju3alrioHaTa
BpenHocT. HabaBHaTa BpemHOCT ce yTBpAyBa CIIOpE] METOIOT Ha MPOCeYHH IeHH. [leHaTa Ha unHeme
HA TOTOBUTE MPOM3BOJIU M MPOU3BOJCTBOTO BO TEK BKJIydYyBa CYPOBUHH, TUPEKTHA pabOTHA CHJIA,
OCTaHATH JUPEKTHH TPOILIOLM W TOBP3aHU MPOU3BOJCTBCHU PEKUCKU TPOIIOIM, UCKIYYyBajKU TH
OpOJaXKHUTE M aJMUHUCTpAaTUBHHUTE Tpowonu. Hero peanusanuonara BpeOHOCT € MpoLEHETaTa
NpoJakHa II€HAa BO PEIOBHHOT TEK Ha pabOTCHETO, HamalleHa 3a TPEIBUICHUTE TPOIIONHU 3a
JIOBPIITYBamE U MPEIABHICHUTE TPOIIOIH 3a JIa CE U3BPIIH MPoaKoara.

CutHHoT nHBeHTap ce ornuirysa 100% npu craBame Bo ynoTpeoa.
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s. Ilapu u mapu4Hu cpeacrea

[lapure m mapuyHHTE CpeACTBa BKJIydyBaaT TOTOBHHA BO OJiarajHa, Mapu4HU CpeicTBa BO OaHKH U
JETIO3UTH CO POK Ha JOCIICBABE O TPH MECELU MM IIOMAJIKY.

H. AKIHMOHEPCKH KANUTAJ
OOnyHYN akMH ce Kaacu(UIUpaHyd BO KallUTal.
j- JloJaropoueH miaH 3a cTUMYJHUpPaH-€, 3ACHOBAH HA aKIIUH

Kopucture 3acHOBaHM Ha aknuu ce 00e30emyBaaT Ha WICHOBHTE Ha BHCOKOTO PAaKOBOJCTBO ITPEKY
[IeMH Ha akiuy Ha ['pymanyjaTa Kou MOKpHUBaaT HEKOJIKY MOAPYXHUIM. Bo MomeHToB, I 'pymarujata
M UMa CIIeJHHBE IeMu: 1) miuaHoBM 3a omiuu 3a crnoxenyBame (2014 u 2017 romuna) u 2)
JIONITOPOYEH TUIaH 32 CTUMYIUpamke BoBeaeH Bo 2020 ronnHa, mTO ce 0JHECYBa Ha Harpaau BO BHI Ha
aKIINH.

TpaHcakiyja 3a Mmakambe Bp3 OCHOBA Ha akIuU Ha ['pymnarnujaTta e kiacuuiupana oJf rieiHa TOYKa
Ha CEeKoe JIPYIITBO IITO U3BECTYyBA, HAMECTO CO JIABaE SAMHCTBCHA OJIpen0a 3a Kiacu(pHKalrja IITo
€ TPUMEHJIMBA 3a cuTe ApyiTBa Bo ['pynanujata. JpymTBOTO y4ecTBYBa BO JOJTOPOYHUOT IUIAH 3a
ctumyupame 3a 2020 roauHa, Koj € KIacu(pUIMpaH Kako TOTOBHHA BO ()MHAHCHCKHUTE M3BEIITal Ha
I'pynanujata, HO ¢ Kiacu(QUIMpPaH KAaKO KalWTal BO MOCEOHWTE (QUHAHCHCKMA W3BEINTaW Ha
HpymTBoTo, Ounejku JlpymrTBoTOo HeMa OOBpCKa na TW HOAMUpyBa Harpamute. CleiacTBeHO, ja
MpHU3HaBa OO0jeKTUBHATA BPEIHOCT HA HArpajJiiTe KaKo TPOIIOK 3a KOPUCTH Ha BPaOOTEHUTE BO
OMIAHCOT Ha yCIeX, CO COOABETHO 3rOJIEMYyBambE¢ Ha KAMUTANOT Ha JIpymTBOTO.

BxynHHUOT M3HOC mITO Tpeba Ja MpU3Hae Kako TPOIIOK CE YTBPJyBa CO ylaTyBame Ha 00jeKTHBHATA
BPEIHOCT Ha JOJCICHUTE HArpay, IITO CE 3aCHOBA Ha IICHATA Ha aKIMHWTE Ha MajKkaTa KOMallHHja Ha
JATYMOT Ha J0JellyBambe. BKYIMTHHOT TPOIIOK ce MpHu3HaBa BO TEKOT Ha MEPHOAOT Ha JIOJETyBame,
HITO € MEepUOoJOT BO KOj Tpeba Ja ce 3aJ0BoJiaT HaBEJCHUTE yCIOBHU 3a yciyra. Ha kpajoT Ha cekoj
nepuoa, JpymTBoTO r'M peBUaMpa CBOUTE MPOICHKH 3a OpOjoT Ha HArpaau IITO C€ OYCKyBa Ja TH
JlaaT Bp3 OCHOBa Ha HAaBEJCHUTE YCIOBM 3a JaBamke Ha MpaBaTa W crankara Ha omsemame. Ce
MpHU3HABA BJIMjaHWETO HAa PEBU3WjaTa HAa OPUTHHAIHUTE MPOIEHKH, JOKOJIKY TH UMa, BO OMIIAHCOT Ha
yCIIeX, CO COOJIBETHO MPUIIArOAyBakhe Ha KalnuTaJoT.

K. JJlanonu
Jlanox na oobuska

I[aHOKOT Ha ,I[O6I/IBI(a 3a NMEPUOAOT CE€ COCTOU OJ TEKOBCH MU OIJIOXKEH JAaHOK. I[aHOKOT C€ IIpu3HaBa Co
,E[O6I/IBK3.T2. nim 3ary6aTa, OCBC€H 3a ACJIOT KOj CC OAHCCYBa Ha CTaBKU IMPHUKA)KAaHU BO OCTAaHATU
CeOH(l)aTHI/I npuxoan Wik AUPCKTHO BO KAIIMTAJIOT. Bo TOj cnyqaj, AaHOKOT C€ MIpH3HaBa BO OCTaHATH
CeOH(I)aTHI/I IpUXOoau WJIN JAUPEKTHO BO KallMTaJIOT, COOABETHO.

Texosen Jlanox na 0obuska

TeKoBHHOT JIaHOK Ha JOOWBKA € IpecMeTaH Bp3 OCHOBA HA JAHOYHHTE 3aKOHHM YCBOCHH TPEJ WIU TI0
JaTyMOT Ha M3BELITAjOT 3a (JMHAHCHCKaTa cocTojOa, BO 3eMjUTe Kaje wTo [ 'pynaunujaTa ¥ HETOBHUTE
HOJPYKHUIM padoTaT M reHepHpaaT OJAHOWIMB MPHUXOJA. PakoBOJACTBOTO MEPUOANYHO TH IPOLECHYBA
3a3eMEHUTE MO3UIMK BO OJHOC HA JAHOYHHU NOBpATH, 3€MajKH T'H MPEIBHA JIEIOBUTE O] JaHOYHATA
peryiaTiBa KoM IITO ce MOJJIOKHH Ha TOJKyBame. Kako pe3ynrar Ha ucTUTe, KaJie ITO € COOABETHO, Ce
YTBpAYyBaaT pe3epBallMy Bp3 OCHOBA HAa M3HOCHTE KOW C€ OYEKyBaarT Jia OMJaT IUIATeHU Ha AaHOYHHTE
BJIACTH.
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Oonoorcen danok Ha 0odusKa

OUT0KEHHOT TaHOK Ha J0OMBKa ce MPU3HaBA HAa MPHUBPEMEHHUTE PA3JIMKH KOU MPOM3JIEryBaaT moMery
JAHOYHATa OCHOBWIIA HA CPEACTBaTa MW OOBPCKUTE W HHUBHUTE HETO CETAlTHW BPEIHOCTH BO
KOHCOUAUPAaHUTe (GUHAHCUCKH H3BerTan. MeryToa, 0OBPCKUTE 3a OJI0KEHHUOT JAHOK Ha TOOMBKA HE
ce MpHU3HACHH aKO MPOU3JICTYBaaT OJf WHHUIIMjAJHOTO MPU3HABAKE HA TYIBHJI, OJJIOKCH JAHOK Ha
JOOMBKA CMETKOBOJICTBEHO HE CE MPUKAXKYBA, JOKOJKY MPOU3IICTYBaaT O/l HHUIMjATHO MPU3HABAKHE Ha
CPEICTBO WJIM OOBpCKa BO TpaHCaKIMja HAABOp OJ OM3HMC KOMOHWHAIMja KOja BO BPEMETO Ha
TpaHCaKIMjaTa HEe BJIMjae HUTY Ha CMETKOBOJICTBEHATA, HUTY Ha OJIAHOYIHBATA TOOWBKA WITH 3aryoa.

O10’KeHHOT JIAHOK Ha JIOOMBKA Ce YTBPIYBa KOPUCTEJKU JAHOYHM CTANKH (M 3aKOHH) KOU IITO Ouiie
JOHECEHHU 0, WM MOCIIEI0BATETHO JOHECEHH 110 IaTyMOT Ha M3/1aBame Ha M3BEIITAjOT 32 (YMHAHCHCKA
cocTojOa 1 ce 0YeKyBa Jia ce yroTpedar Kora IMoBp3aHOTO CPEACTBO MIIM OOBPCKa Ha OJUIOKEH JAHOK Ha
JIOOMBKA Ke ce MOIMUPEHH.

Oy10)KeHH JTAHOYHU CPEJICTBA Ce TPU3HABAAT CAMO JI0 HUBOTO JI0 KOE € BEpOjaTHO JeKa MHU JaHOYHU
JMIOOWMBKHM ke OWIaT pacIioIOKIMBH, BO OJHOC Ha KOW, NMPHUBPEMCHUTE PAa3IMKH ke MOXE 1a Ommar
uckopucteHd. OJIOKEHUTE NAHOYHH CPEICTBa M OOBPCKU C€ HETHpaaT Kora 3a Toa WMa MpaBHO
NPUMEHIIMBO TIPaBO 332 HETHPAaWmEe HAa TEKOBHH JaHOYHU CPEJCTBA BO OMHOC HA TEKOBHH JaHOYHHU
OOBPCKH ¥ KOTa OJUIOKCHWUTE NaHOYHU CpPEJICTBA W OOBPCKH CE OJHECYBaaT Ha JaHOK Ha JOOWBKA
CripeéMa MCT JAHOYCH PETYJIaTOp 3a UCTUOT JAHOYCH CHTUTCT WM Pa3IMUYHU JAHOYHU CHTUTCTHU Kaae
¥MMa MHTEHIH]ja Ja Ce MOMUpPAT calijiaTa Ha HETO OCHOBA.

J. Kopucru 3a Bpadorenure

Tensuu

I'pynanujara, BO HOpMaJTHHOT TEK Ha PabOTEHETO, BPILH yIlIaTa Ha MPUIOHECUTE HA BPaOOTEHUTE 32
IIEH3UH, 3PaBCTBO, BPaOOTyBame U MEPCOHANICH JaHOK Ha J0XOJ KOU Ce NPECMETaHU CO MPUMEHa Ha
3aKOHCKHTE CTallkh KOM C€ Ba)XKCUKM BO 3€MjaTa BO TEKOT Ha TOoIWHATa Ha OpyTO IUIATHTE.
['pynanujara ri BpIid OBUE YIUIATH BO BIAJMHUTE 3[[PaBCTBCHU U MEH3UCKH (HOHIIOBH.

TpomokoT 3a oBHMe yIJIaTH ce MpPUKaKyBa BO OMJIAHCOT Ha YCHEX BO HCTHOT IEPHOJ BO KOj €
MIPUKa)KaH ¥ MOBP3aHUOT TPOIIOK 3a IJIaTUTE.

I'pynamujara He pa®oTu crmopen OMIO KakBa Apyra IEH3UCKa IIeMa WIM IUIaH 3a HaJOMECTOLH O
NCH3MOHHUPAbE U MOPaIy TOa HeMa HUKAKBH JOTTOJHUTEIHU OOBPCKH MO OBHE OCHOBH.

Haoomecmoyu 3a npecmarnok Ha pabomer 00HOC U HAOOMeCOoYyU 00 NEH3UU

Hanmomecronure 3a npecTaHok Ha pabOTEH OJHOC HA BPaOOTEHHOT Ke MpecTaHe Mpel HOPMATHUOT POK
3a TICH3WOHWpPAme MM Kora BpaOOTCHHOT ke mpudaTH JOOPOBOJIHO Ja 3aMHHE BO 3aMEHAa 3a OBO]
HaJIOMecTOK. ['pymnanujara npu3HaBa HaJOMECTOK 3a MPECTAHOK Ha pabdOTEH OJHOC BO CJIydaj KOora uMa
OJUTyKa 32 MPEeCcTaHOK Ha paOOTHUOT OJTHOC Ha OJPEJCHU BPaOOTCHU 0€3 MOKHOCT 32 MOBJICKYBabe Ha
OJUTyKaTa WK KOTa TOCTOW JOOPOBOJIHO TpPHjaBYBame O] BPaOOTCHUTE 332 MPECTAHOK HA HUBHHUOT
paboTeH oITHOC.

Crniope; MOTNHIIAHKOT KOJIEKTUBEH AOTOBOp, ['pymanmjaTa € oOBp3aHa 1a WCIIATH OTIIPEMHHHHU BO
M3HOC KOj € €OHAKOB Ha IIEeCT MPOCEYHH PEemyONMMyKH IJIaTH W TMoMery €JHa W TPU IPOCEUHH
penyOnuuky miaTu fa OuaaT UCIUIaTeHH Kako jyOusiejHH Harpaau. bpojoT Ha mpoceyHuTe permyOnuiku
iaTu 3a jyOWnejHuTe Harpagd OIroBapa Ha BKYNHHOT Opoj Ha TOAMHM Ha CilIyx0a Oon cTpaHa Ha
Bpa0OTEHHUTE KaKO LITO € MPE3eHTUPAHO BO Tabemara MoJoIy:
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BxynHo Opoj Ha roIMHU cJayxk0a bpoj Ha nuiatu
10 1
20 3
30 3
35 (xeHn) 3
40 (maxwu) 3

JeduanpanuTe KOPUCTH Ce MPecMeTyBaaT TOJUIITHO OJ] CTpaHa Ha He3aBUCHH aKTyapH CO IMPHMEHa Ha
KpeJuTHATa METOJla 3a MpoeKkThpaHa enuHuia. COrjiacHO MOJEJIOT, BEpOjaTHOCTA JeKa MapUYHUOT
OJITUB K€ Ce peaau3upa, € U3BEICHa CO KOPUCTEHE Ha TPU IEKPEMEHTH U TOA: CMPT, UHBATUAUTET U
NMpeKkrH Ha paboTeH omHoc. Tabnuiata Ha BEpOjaTHOCT € KOHCTPYHMpPaHA CO TIOMOII Ha KOPUCTEHE
MPETIIOCTABKH 3a; BEpOjaTHOCTA 32 CMPT Ha BpaOOTECHUOT JI0 AATYMOT Ha KOj Tpeba Ja ce MeH3HOHHPa,
BEpOjaTHOCTA JieKa BpaOOTEHUOT MPEIBPEMEHO Ke Ce MIEH3UOHUPA KaKO MOCIICIUIa HA MHBAIUIUTET U
BEpOjaTHOCTa JieKa BpaDOTEHHOT Ke To MpeKuHe paboTHHOT ofHoC Bo KoMImaHujaTa npea naTyMoT Ha
IeH3MOHupame. CeramHata BpeIHOCT Ha 00BpcKaTa 3a AehUHIpAHH KOPUCTH CE€ YTBPAYBa CO AUCKOHTHPAHE
Ha TIPOICHETUTE WIHHW TAPUYHU OJUITMBH CO KOPUCTEH€ HAa €CKOHTHATA CTalKa O] MPUHOCHUTE Ha
JIp’KaBHUTE OOBP3HUIM U3aieHu Bo Makenonuja Bo 2021 ronvHa v KIaCU(PHUIIMPAHH 110 POYHOCT.

Haoomecmoyu 3a cmunenouu na deya na epabomenu

[TounyBajku ox 31 nexemBpu 2009 romuHa, BO akTyapckaTta IpecMeTKa € BKIy4YeHa U IpecMeTKaTa Ha
HAJIOMECTOITUTE 3a CTHIICHINY KOW TH 00e30emyBa [ pymamujara Ha merara Ha BpaDOTEHHTE KOM ce Ha
PEAOBHU OAWIUIOMCKH M TIOCIIEAUIIOMCKH CTYJIWHM, KaKO M Ha Jellata Ha MOYWHATHTE BpaOOTEeHH
J0JieKa Ce CpeIHOLIKOIIIH.

,ZZOHOJZHumeJZHu Kopucmu npu neH3uoHuparbe

IlounyBajku ox 31 nexemBpu 2013 roamHa, akTyapckaTa IpecMeTka Oellle OTOHETa CO MpecMeTKa
Ha ceralHara BPEJHOCT Ha UJHUTE KOPCUTH 3a HOBO BOBEJEHATa JOJITOPOYHA KOPUCT 3a OApeleHa
KaTeropuja Ha BpaOOTEHH - JOMOJHUTEIHN KOPUCTH NpH MEH3MOHUpame. [IpecmeTkaTa e HampaBeHa
Bp3 OCHOBAa Ha MPOCEYHU IapaMeTpy Ha CIIOMEHaTaTa IMOIyJaluja U BKYITHO OYEKYBaHHOT M3HOC 3a
UcIiaTa, OCTaBeH of] cTpaHa Ha ['pymanujara.

AKTyapckuTe NOOMBKM W 3aryOM KOM NpOM3JIETryBaaT Kako pe3yiaTaT Ha HCKYCHH IPOLEHKH M
IPOMEHHU BO aKTyapCKHUTE MPETIOCTaBKM C€ MPU3HABAaT KaKo MPUXOAM WIM TPOIIOLX BO IEPHOAOT
KOTa UCTHTE HacTaHaJe.

Jb. PesepBanunu

PesepBupamara ce mpu3HaBaaT M IMpecMeTyBaaT Kkora [pymanujara uMa ceraiiHa 3aKOHCKa HWIIH
JIOTOBOpEHa 00BpCKa Kako pe3ysITaT Ha MHUHATH HACTaHH, M KOTA € BEPOjaTHO JieKa ke Ouie morpedeH
OJITMB Ha CPEZCTBA 3a Ja ce MOJMHUPH 00BPCKAaTa; M KOra MOXe J1a e HalpaBeHa peaHa MpoIeHKa Ha
u3HOCcOT. PesepBanmute Ha ['pymanmjata ce cocrojaT ox pe3epBalvd 3a OTIPEMHHUHH, jyOWIEjHU
Harpajay, CTHIICHAWU M PEBHTANM3alMja Ha pynHHOuTe. PesepBanuunte He ce NMpU3HABaaT 3a WIHU
OTICpaTUBHH 3aryOH.

Onamy Kajie IITO TOCTOjaT rojieM Opoj Ha CIMYHH OOBPCKH, BEpOjaTHOCTA JAeKa ke Ouae moTpedeH
OJUTMB Ha CPEJICTBA 3a Ja Ce MOJMHUpPAT OOBPCKUTE, c€ OApeayBa CO 3eMame BO IPE/IBUJI HA KiacaTa Ha
OOBpCKHTE KaKo eHa IelnHa. Pe3epBainyu ce Mpu3HaBaaT IypH M KOra BEpOjaTHOCTA JieKa OJUIMB Ha
cpencTea ke Ouzie moTpeOHO € MHOTY Majia, a ce OJHeCyBa Ha OMJIO KOja CTaBKa BKIIyYeHa BO MCTaTa
KJ1aca Ha OOBPCKH.
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PesepBannure ce BpeHyBaaT [0 CeTallHaTa BPSIHOCT HA OYEKYBAaHHUTE M3JIATOIM KO ce TIOTPEOHU 1ia
HACTaHAT CO IeN Ja ce MOJMHUpPU OOBpcKara co ymorpeda Ha pre-taX cTamka Koja TH OTCIHKYBa
TEKOBHO TIa3apHUTE MPOIEHKH Ha BpPEMEHCKaTa BPEIHOCT Ha TMapuTe W TOBP3aHUTE cHenupuaHN
pU3ULM Ha JNaJeHUTe OOBPCKH. 3rojeMyBameTO Ha pe3epBAllMHTE KaKO Pe3yiTaT Ha BPEMEHCKHTE
pacTojaHuja ce mpu3HaBaaT Kako TPOLIOH MO KaMaTH.

M. [Ipu3HaBam-e HA NPUXOAUTE

[IpuxomoT € M3HOCOT Ha HAIOMECTOKOT INTO C€ OYeKyBa Ja ce JAo0We BO 3aMeHa 3a MPEeHOC Ha
BETEHHUTE CTOKH WJIHM YCIYTH Ha KIHEHT, CO MCKIYYOK Ha M3HOCHUTE COOpaHW BO MME Ha TPETH JIHIA
(maHOK Ha MOJaleHa BPEAHOCT, APYTH JIAHOIM HA MPOMET WTH.). BapujaObuiHuTe pasMuciyBama ce
BKIIyUYCHHU BO IICHATA HA TPaHCAaKIMjaTa U THE CE MPOIEHYBAaaT CO KOPUCTCHE WIM Ha METOJOT Ha
OuYeKyBaHa BPEIHOCT WM Ha METOJOT Ha HajBEPOjaTHHUOT U3HOC.

[Ipuxoaute ce mpu3HaBaar Kora (MM Kako) 0OBpCKaTa 3a U3BPLIYBAE € UCTIONHETa CO MPEHECYBAE
Ha KOHTpOJIaTa Ha BETEHOTO 100pO WM yciIyra Ha KIHeHTOT. KnneHToT 1o6uBa KOHTpona Ha 100po
WIN YCIIyTa ako MOXE Ja I'0 HAacOYM KOPUCTEHETO M Ja I'M JoOHMe CYIITMHCKH CUTE IPEOCTaHATH
NpUIOOMBKM 07 Toa MoOpo mwin ycinyra. KoHTponara ce mpeHecyBa cO TEKOT Ha BPEMETO HIIM BO
OIIpelieH MOMEHT Bo BpemeTo. [Ipuxoaure ox npoxax0a Ha CTOKM ce MPU3HABAaaT Kora KOHTpoJaTa Ha
CTOKaTa Ce€ MPEHeCyBa Ha KIUEHTOT, OOWYHO NpH HCIOpaKkaTa U HEMa HEUCIOJHETa OOBpCKa IITO
MOXe Jla BiIHMjae Ha MpU(aKkameTo Ha MPOU3BOANUTE OJ CTpaHa Ha KyIyBadoT. [ IaBHU MPOM3BOJM Ha
JpymITBOTO CE IEMEHT, KIIMHKEP, TOTOBU CMECH, JIETEUKa MeTnel U APyTH [IEMEHTHU IPOU3BOIH.

[IpuxoauTe mWTO MpOU3IETYBAaT Off YCIYTHTE CE€ NMPHU3HABAAT BO IPECMETKOBHUOT MEPUOJ BO KOj ce
U3BpIIEHU YCIYTMTE M C€ MEpaT CO KOPHCTEHE Ha M3JIE3HHW WM BIIE3HH METOAH, BO 3aBUCHOCT O]
npupozaTa Ha JajfeHara yciyra.

IToGapyBameTo ce Npu3HAaBa KOra IIOCTOM O€3yCIOBHO IPaBO Ha HAJOMECTOK 3a OOBPCKHTE 3a
U3BPIIYBakE HA KJIMEHTOT KOU Ce 3aJOBOJHU.

JIOroBOpHOTO CpelCTBO Ce MpU3HaBa KOra OOBpCKaTa 3a W3BPIIYBamke KOH KIMEHTOT € HMCIOJHETa
npea KIMEeHTHUTE Jia IUlaTaT WM Mpe] IUIakamkeTo Ja Jociee, 0OMYHO KOTa CTOKHTE WM YCIYyTUTE ce
npeHecyBaaT Ha KJIMEHTOT npel I pynanujara 1a uMa npaBo Ha (akTypa.

JloroBopHa 00BpCKa ce MpU3HaBa KOra MOCTOU OOBPCKa 3a MPEHOC Ha CTOKH WJIU YCIYTH Ha KIIMEHT 3a
kou ['pynanujata 1o0una HaJOMECT O] KITUSHTOT (IIPEINaTh) WK MOCTOM 0E3YCIIOBHO MPaBo Ja ce
mobue HagOMECTOK Ipel] KOMIaHHjaTa na IpeHece mo0po wmin yciyra ( ONJIOKEH MPHUXO).
JoroBopHarta 00BpCcKa ce Jenpr3HaBa KOra BETyBambETO € HCIOIHETO, a MIPUXOANUTE Ce eBHICHTUPAAT
BO OWJIAHCOT Ha YCIIeX.

HpI/IXOI[I/ITe oo TMpPpUXOAUTEC O HACMHUMHHM KOM IIpOM3JIETyBaaT OJ OIICpaTUBHUTC HACEMH, CC
C€BUJACHTHUPpAAT Ha MPABOJMHUCKA OCHOBA BO TCKOT HAa YCJIOBUTC Ha HACMOT.

H. Haemn
Haewmwure co kou 3Ha49aeH ne OJf PU3UKOT M HATrPaJHUTE O]l COTICTBEHOCTA CE 3aIp KaHM OJ CTpaHa Ha
HAaeMOJ/aBauoT ce Kiacuumupa Kako omeparuBeH HaeM. l[limakamaTa HampaBeHW IO OCHOB Ha

OTIEpaTHBHUOT HaeM (HETO oA OWIO KakBW TOTTHKHYBama OJ CTpaHa HAa HAEeMOJaBaTelloT) ce
MIpHU3HaBaaT BO OMIIAHCOT Ha yCIleX Ha MPAaBOJIMHUCKA OCHOBA BO TEKOT Ha MEPHOAOT HAa HAEMOT.
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. Pacnipenesioa Ha TuBUAEHAN

Pacnipenenbata Ha TUBUACHIWTE Ha aknMOHepuTe Ha [pymanujata ce mpu3HaBa Kako 0OBpPCKa BO
(PMHAHCHCKUTE M3BEIITAU BO MEPUOJIOT BO KOj C€ 0OJ00pEHH JAUBHJCHAUTE OJl CTPaHA Ha aKIIMOHEPUTE
Ha ['pynarujara.

0. Hactanu mocJjie 1aTyMoT Ha H3BECTYBam-€

Hacranure mocnme maTymMoT Ha W3BeCTyBame, KOM 00e30emyBaaT €BHJCHIMja 3a cocTojbara Koja
IIOCTOM Ha JaTyMOT Ha M3BECTYBAE, CE TPETHPAAT KaKO KOPEKTUBHM HACTAHH BO OBHE (PMHAHCHCKU
u3BemTan. OHHME KOM Ce HHIWKATHBHM Ha COCTOjO0ara Koja MpOM3JIEryBa IIOCIE JaTyMOT Ha
U3BECTYBakhE MMaaT TPETMaH Ha HEKOPEKTUBHH HACTAHMU.

4. KOPUCTEHMU ITPOLHEHKH

['pynanujara mpaBu MPOICHKHA M MPETIIOCTABKM KOW C€ OJHECyBaaT Ha MIHHWHATA. Pesynrupaukure
CMETKOBOJCTBEHH MPOLECHKH, 0 JeQHUHUIIMja MHOTY PETKO C€ WACHTHYHH CO aKTyeIHUTE Pe3yJITaTu.
[IpouileHKMTE W TPETHOCTABKUTE KOW BIIMjaaT 3HAYUTEITHO HAa TMPEIU3BUKYBalke€ MAaTEpH]jaTHU
KOPEKIIMH [I0 CeTallHWTe BPEIHOCTH Ha CpelncTBaTa M OOBPCKMTE BO paMKHTE Ha HapexHaTa
(uHaHCHCKA TOAMHA C€ TIPE3CHTUPAHU TTOIOITY.

Pesepsayuja 3a pesumanuzayuja va pyouuyume

JlpymTBara mTo BpIIAT eKCIIoaTallldja HAa MUHEPAIHU CYPOBHHHU OJI PYJHUIMTE MOTPEOHO € UCTHUTE
Ha KpajoT OJf HUBHUOT BEK Ha EKCIUIoaTalHdja Ja TH BpaTaT BO MPBOOHMTHA cOocT0j0a, OJHOCHO BO
cocToj0a BO Koja Omyie Ha MOYETOKOT Mpel Ja OMAaT eKCIUIOATHPaHW, IITO € BO COTJACHOCT €O
3aKOHCKAaTa peryiaThBa 3a 3alliTUTa HAa JKHMBOTHATA CPEIUHA NPUMCHJIMBA BO 3€MjaTa BO Koja
I'pymamnujara paboTu (J1a ce BpaTH 3eMjHINTETO BO MPOBOOUTHA COCTOj0a MOCIIe TPH TOAMHHN OTKAKO Ke
ce 3aTBOPH PYIHHKOT M OTKAKO Ke 3aBpIIM Heropara €KCIUIoaTalyja), ¥ Toa 0 HUBO KOE € BO
3aKOHCKHTE PaMKH M JI0 HUBO KOE€ € BO COIJIACHOCT CO TOJHMTHKATa M Tpakcarta Koja ce BOIU 3a
3allITHUTA HA )KUBOTHATA CPE/INHA.

PesepBanmjara 3a peBuTaNM3aLUMja Ha PyAHUINTE ja OJpa3yBa CeranrHaTa BpeIHOCT Ha OYCKYBaHHTE
WJIHU TPOLIOLHM 3a PEKYJITHBU3aIMja KOU CE OUEKyBa J1a HACTAaHAT 33 OHUE JEIOBH O PYIHHULUTE KOU
OWJie eKCIuIoaTHpaHy co JAaTyMOT Ha U3BECTyBame. Pe3epBanmjaTa npeTcTaByBa ceraiiHa BpeJHOCT Ha
OYeKYBaHU HIHM OJJIMBM HA Mapu KOM Ce OYeKyBa JeKa Ke HacTaHaT 3a pEBHUTAIM3alMja Ha
pyaauuure. OBa BKIIydyBa M OJpeAyBame Ha BPEAHOCTA HA OCHOBA Ha MPOEKTOT 32 PEBUTAIN3ALM]A,
JUCKOHTHUTE CTallKl U OYEKyBaHM MH(IanMCKU cTanku. PesepBanuure ce mpeoleHyBaaT Ha CEKOj
M3BECTYBAUKH JIaTYM M C€ KOpEerupa co ILel Ja ja OApa3u ceramrHara BPeIHOCT Ha HIHUTE TPOLIOIH
NOTPeOHH 3a J1a ce UCTIOIHN 00BpCKara.

CeramHaTta BpeJHOCT Ha OYEKYBaHHTE TPOILIOLHM 33 PECTaBpHpame (TO0a € OpPUTHHAIHATA TPOLCHKA
Kako W IMPOMEHUTE BO CMETKOBOACTBEHHTE IMPOLEHKH) Ce NMpU3HaBa BO HM3BEIUTAjOT 3a ceodarHa
JIOOMBKAa OCBEH aKo HEe ce MOBP3aHH CO OCHOBHHUTE CPEJCTBA KOM C€ HaoraaT W Cce TOBpP3aHU CO
PYIHUIMTE, TIPU HUBHOTO MPBUYHO NMPU3HABAIE BO KOj CIIy4aj, TPOIIOINTE C€ KamUTaIH3UpaaT u
aMOpPTU3UPaaT BO TEKOT HA HUBHHOT BEK Ha ymoTpeoda.

Cekoja mpoMeHa BO HETO CEralrHaTa BpEAHOCT Ha MCIpPaBKaTa 3a PEBHTANM3allMja HA PYIHUIIATE BO
TEKOT Ha BPEMEHCKOTO pACTOjaHHME C€ MpU3HAaBa Kako (MHACHUCKH TPOLIONM BO H3BEIITAjOT 3a
ceorndarHa 100UBKa.
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Kopucmu 3a spabomenume

CeramrHara BpeHOCT Ha OOBpCKaTa 3a MEH3MOHHMPAE 3aBUCH O] rojeM Opoj Ha (akTopu KOH ce
oIpellyBaaT Ha TOJWIIHA OCHOBa CO yrorpeba Ha rojeM Opoj Ha MPETHOCTaBKH. YIOTPEOCHHTE
NPETIOCTaBKH BO O/IPEIYBAaETO Ha HETO €(DEKTOT (TPOIIOK MU MPHUXO) 33 ICH3HOHUPAHE BKITydyBa
JMCKOHTHU CTankd. BWilo KakBM NPOMEHHM BO OBHE IPETIIOCTAaBKM K€ C€ OJpa3aT Ha CeramrHara
BpPEIHOCT Ha 0OOBPCKATa 3a MICH3NOHUPAHE U IPYTUTE OcHEDHUITH 32 BpaOOTCHHUTE.

['pynanujarta KOpUCTH TPETIIOCTaBEHA TOMUINHA JUCKOHTHA cTamka. Toa € KamaTHa cramnka koja Ou
Tpebano aa ce ynotpedyBa co LN Ja ja OJpa3d CeramrHata BPEAHOCT Ha MPETHOCTABEHUTE WIHU
MApUYHY OJUTMBH KOU C€ OYCKYBa J]a HACTAHAT CO IIEJ JIa C€ TOJMHUPAT OOBPCKHUTE 3a JehUHUPAHUTE
KopucTH. Bo ompemyBameTo Ha COOIBETHAa NIWCKOHTHA CTamka, | pymanujara ja ymoTpeOyBa
IMCKOHTHA cranka Ha Hapomna Banka Ha PenyOnmka MakenoHdja BO OTCYCTBO Ha Ia3ap Ha
BHUCOKOKBAJIUTEHU KOPIOPATHBHH OOBP3HHUIIM WM APXKABHU OOBP3HHUIM KOU CE JICHOMUHUDPAHU BO
BaIyTa BO Koja OcHehHIMUTE ke OUAT MCIUTATCHH, M KOM UMaaT YCJIOBH 3a JIOCTICBAE MPUOIIKHU
Ha YCIIOBUTE HA MOBP3aHU OOBPCKH 33 ICH3MOHHUPAE.

OcTtanarute KIIYYHHU TMPETIIOCTABKU 3a MPECMCTKA Ha O6BpCKaTa 3a MCHCUOHUPAKLE BO €ACH OCJI CC
3aCHHUBAaT Ha TCKOBHUTE ITa3apHU yCJIOBH.

Objexmugna epedrHocm

[lapuunuTe CcpencTBa W MapHYHHUTE CKBUBAJICHTH, MOOapyBamaTa Of KyIyBauUTe U APYTHTE TEKOBHHU
(DMHAHCHCKHM CpelcTBa IJABHO MMaaT KpaTKOpOuHa povyHocT. HomuHanmHaTa BpeqHOCT HaMaieHa 3a
HPOLICHETUTE 3ary0H IOpaiy OLITETYBamEe Ha CPEeICTBAaTa U OOBPCKUTE CO POK HA JOCIIEBAE MOMAJIKY
O]l eJJHA TOJTMHA € MPUOJIMKHA Ha HUBHATA 00jeKTUBHA BpeAHOCT. DHHAHCHCKUTE 00OBPCKU BKITYYEHH BO
kaTeropujara, OOBpcKU cripeMa 100aByBayH U OCTaHATH OOBPCKHU TJIaBHO MMaaT KpPaTKOPOYHA POYHOCT.
Ilopagu oBaa npuuMHA, HUBHATa CMETKOBOJACTBEHA BPEOHOCT HAa JAaTyMOT Ha H3BECTYBamE €
npuOIMKHA HAa HUBHATa 00jeKTUBHA BpeqHOCT. O0jeKTHBHATA BPEIHOCT Ha JONTOPOYHNTE GUHAHCHCKU
OOBPCKH Ce yTBPAYyBa CO KOPHCTEH-E Ha TEXHUKA HA BPEIHYBaE HA JUCKOHTHPAHH MTAPUYHH TEKOBH.

lomem Opoj Ha CMETKOBOJACTBEHU TIIOJIMTHKUM U OOENOJIeHyBamka Oapaar omnpeselyBambe Ha
o0jeKTHBHATa BPEJHOCT, KaKo 3a (PMHAHCUCKUTE W He()MHAHCHCKHUTE CPEICTBA Taka U 3a OOBPCKUTE.
O0jeKTHUBHHUTE BPEIHOCTH CE€ OMpe/IeIyBaar 3a Mepemke W/ MK 32 00€I0/IeHyBAaYKH [IeJM HAa OCHOBA Ha
moBeke wmertomu. OHaMy Kajle INTO € BO3MOXHO, IOHATAMOIIHH WH(OpPMAllMd BO HEJIOT Ha
MPETIOCTaBKUTE 3€MEHHW MPH OJpeayBake Ha OO0jeKTHBHATa BPEAHOCT ce O00eJoJeHyBaaT BO
3a0€eJIeNIKHUTEe TTOBP3aHu CO KOHKPETHUTE CPEICTBA MITH OOBPCKH.

5.1IPOMEHA HA CMETKOBOJACTBEHMU NOJIMTUKHA U KOPEKIIUU HA I'PEIIKH

CMETKOBOJCTBEHUTE MOJIUTUKU Ha prnaunjaTa ce IpUMEHyBaaT OJ [EpUOJ [0 MEepUOa Ha
KOH3UCTeHTHa OCHOBAa. CMETKOBOJICTBEHHTE IOJIUTHKHA CE€ MEHYBaaT JOKOJKY TOa € YCIOBEHO CO
W3MCHA WU JIOHeCyBame Ha HoBu MCOU.

I'pynarnujara npaBu MpOIEHKU U MPETIOCTABKH 3a BO UIHUHA. [IPOIIEHKUTE IOCTOjaHO Ce Cle/ar, a ce
OasnpaaT Bp3 OCHOBA Ha MUHATH MCKYCTBa M IPYyTH (HaKTOPH, BKIYUyBajKH TH OUEKyBambaTa 3a HIHUTE
HacraHu. Haj3HayajHUTE MPOIICHKU ¥ MPETIOCTABKH CE MPUKAXKAHU TIO/I0ITY.

KopuceHn Bek Ha cpencrBaTa

KopucHuot Bek Ha cpeacTBara ce yTBpAyBa Bp3 OCHOBA HA MHUHATO MCKYCTBO CO CIMYHH CPEICTBA,
KaKO M UJHUOT TEXHOJIOIIKH Pa3BOj U MPOMEHU Ha €KOHOMCKHUTE M UHAyCTpuckuTe (akropu. [okpaj
TOa, KAKO OCHOBEH BOAMY C€ KOPUCTAT CMETKOBOICTBCHHUTE MOJUTUKH 32 aMOPTHU3AI[MOHHU CTaNKU
MPOMHUIIAHU OJ CTpaHa Ha JaHouyHaTa peryiartuBa. COOABETHOCTA HA MPOLEHETUOT KOPHUCEH BEK Ce
OIIeHYBa F'OJIUIIHO, HJIM KOTa ITOCTOjaT HHANKAIMH 32 3HAYUTEIIHN IIPOMEHH Ha MPOIIEHKHTE.
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[Mopamn 3HAYUTETHOTO YYECTBO Ha CpEICTBaTa KOW CE aMOPTHU3UpaaT BO BKYIIHHUTE CpPEICTBa,
BJIMjaHHETO HA EBEHTYaJHM HIPOMEHH BO OBHE IPETIOCTABKM MOXeE Ja Oujae MarepujaiHo 3a
(hMHAHCHUCKaTa TO3UITHja M PEe3yJITaTOT OJ aKTUBHOCTUTE. JIOKOJKY TPOIIOKOT 3a AeTpelrjanuja ce
HamaJn/ 3rojiemu 3a 1% oBa ke pe3ysTupa co MPOMEHa BO TOJHUIIHUOT TPOIIOK 3a aMOPTU3allHja BO
n3Hoc of npubnvxau 2.069 unjanu nenapu (2020: 1.823 unjaau neHapn).

HOTCHHI/IiaHHO OIMITCTYBAKC Ha HCABUKXKHOCTHUTC, HOCTDOiKI/ITC Hn onpémMmara M HCMaTCDI/IiaJIHI/ITC
CpeaACTBa

I'pynarnujara ja mpoiieHyBa nmotpedaTa off OIITETYBakhe Ha HEJBMXKHOCTHTE, TOCTPOJKUTE U OTNpeMara
U HeMaTepHjalTHUTE CPEJICTBA CEKOTall Kora MOCTOW MpPUYHMHA JIeKa CMETKOBOJICTBEHATa BPEIHOCT
MOKE€ 3HAYUTCIHO aa ja HaJMHWHYBa HaJOMECTJIMBATa BPCAHOCT U KOra OITETYBAKLCTO € MPEABUIACHO.
HanomectiinBara BpeHOCT ce yTBpPJyBa CO TOMOII Ha MPECMETKH Ha ynorpeOHATa BPEIHOCT, MPHU
IITO C€ KOPHUCTAT IMIHUPOK 00€M Ha MPOIIEHKHU M (PaKkTOpH KOW BIIHjaaT Bp3 Hea.

ITokpaj Toa, I'pynanmjata v 3eMa BO MPEIABHI HIHUTE MPUXOMUA M TPOIIONH, MAKPOSKOHOMCKHTE
WHAWKAIMKW, TEXHOJIOMIKATa 3aCTapCHOCT, MPEKUH Ha AKTUBHOCTUTE U APYTr'U IMPOMCHHU Ha Q)aKTOpI/ITe
KOM MOJXKAaT Jla JIOBEJAT JI0 OINTeTyBame. JJOKOIKy ce uaeHTH(HKYBa OMITETyBake CO KAIKyJalyjaTa
Ha ymoTpeOHAaTa BPEJHOCT, MCTO Taka Ce YTBPIyBa pas3iuMKaTa Mery O0jeKTHBHATa BPETHOCT U
TPOIIOINTE 3a IpoAak0a, co Mmel Ja ce MpecMeTa TOYHHOT M3HOC Ha OITeTyBame. buaejku omaa
npecMeTka € CyO0jeKTHBHA, M3HOCOT Ha MOTCHIWjATHOTO OLITETYBAaKkE MOXCE 3HAYUTEIHO Ja ce
pas3NuKyBa O] pe3yITaTUTE O] OBUE KATKYJIAIHH.

HcnpaBka Ha BpeIHOCTA Ha HO6aDVBaH:aTa OJl KYIIYBAYHUTC U OCTaHaTHU HO6aDVBaH:a

KaJIKynaquaTa 3a UCIIpaBKa Ha CIIOPHHU no6apyBaH)a CC MpCCMETyBa Bp3 OCHOBA Ha MPOLCHETUTC
3ary61/1 on HECIOCOOHOCTA Ha KyIIyBauuTC Ia ' UCIIaTaT 6apaHHTe HU3HOCH.

Peseparnuu

PesepBaruute reHepaiHo ce cy0jeKTHBHH, TOceOHO BO CiIyd4aj Ha CyACKH criopoBu. |'pymanujata ja
IPOLICHYBa MOYKHOCTa 3a HETaTMBEH HACTaH, KaKO Pe3yJNTaT Ha MHWHATH HACTaHU M JOKOJIKY Taa
W3HecyBa Haj TeneceT NpOLEHTH, [ pymamujata BO LETOCT ja MpHKaxkyBa oOBpckarta. ['pymaunmjata
BOOOMYACHO M3BPINYBA pa3yMHA MPOLEHKA, HO MOpaayl BHCOKOTO HMUBO Ha HECHUTYPHOCT, BO HEKOU
CIIydau eBajyalrjaTta MO>KHO € JIa C€ Pa3IiKyBa Ol KpajHUOT ePeKT Ha CYIACKHOT CIIOp.

O6iCKTHBHa BpEAHOCT HA HCABUKCH UMOT

BrnoxyBamara BO HEIBH)KHOCTH C€ HCKaKyBaaT IO OO0jeKTHBHA BPEJHOCT, INTO T'H peQIieKTHpa
Ma3apHHUTE YCIOBH Ha JaTyMOT Ha U3BecTyBame. O0jeKTUBHHUTE BPEIHOCTHU CE YTBPAYBaaT BP3 OCHOBA
Ha TOJAMIITHA TPOIIEHKA M3BPIIEHA O] CTpaHa Ha HE3aBUCEH IMPOIIEHUTENI KOPHUCTEJKH IO METOAOT Ha
MIPUXOJ ¥ METOJIOT Ha Ccropenda Ha ma3apoT Kako MPUMapHU METOAM 3a BPEeIHYBame KOW CE OIIITO
npudaTeHu BO €BPOIICKATa MPAKTUKA 33 BPEIHYBabE.

6. YIIPABYBAIBE CO PU3HUK

OcHoBHHTE PUHAHCHUCKU OOBpCKH Ha ['pymanujara ru cOYMHyBaaT OOBPCKH cIpeMa 100aByBauuTe M
ocraHaTtd OOBpcku. ['pynamujata pacroniara co pa3HOBUAHM (DUHAHCHUCKH CPEJACTBA KaKO IITO Ce:
nobapyBama 0J KyIMyBaduTe, NMapy M MapUYHU CPEJCTBA M KPATKOPOUYHU 3a€MH M JICTIO3UTH KOH
NpOM3IIETyBaaT IMPEKTHO o] paboTemeTo Ha [ pymanujara.

I'pynanujara Bo CBOETO pabOTeHmE ce M3IIOKECHU Ha MoBeke (DMHAHCUCKH PU3WLHM. | TaBHUTE PH3HLIA
Ce: PU3WK Ha JIMKBUIHOCT, IEBU3CH PU3UK M KPEAUTEH PU3UK. YTPaBYBamHETO CO CEKOj O OBHE
PU3UIIH Ce OJIBUBA BO COTIIACHOCT CO MOJIUTUKUTE 0100peHu o1 On00poT Ha TUPEKTOPH KOj BOSITHO €
1 OJITOBOPEH 32 PEBUANPAHE HA UCTHUTE.
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a) Ilazapen pusux

[TazapHuoT pu3uk ce AeduHUpa Kako ,,pu3UK o (uUIyKTyaluja Ha Ia3apHaTa BPEIHOCT WM HIHHUTE
NapuUYHU TEKOBU Ha (PMHAHCHCKUTE MHCTPYMEHTH Kako pe3ysiTaT Ha MPOMEHa Ha Ma3apHHUTE LEHH,, U
BKJIy4yBa KaMaTeH PU3UK, BAlyTE€H PU3UK U IPYTrd HEHOBHH pU3HLM. HajroneMuoT aen ox npuxoante
Ha I'pynanujaTta ce ocTBapeHM OZ AOMAILIEH Ma3ap BO MAKEIOHCKHU JEHApH, a IPEOCTAaHATUOT JIeJl Ha
cTpaHcku nasap Bo EVP.

Hajronemuor nen on Tpomonurte Ha ['pynamujata ce ocTBapeHHM O Ha0aBKM Ha IOMAIIHUOT M
CTPaHCKHOT Mazap.

PakoBoATCBOTO BepyBa Jieka TH Tpe3eMa CUTe HEONXOIHH MEPKH 32 TIOJJIPIITKA Ha OJJPHKITUBOCT H PACT
Ha OM3HUCOT Ha KOMIaHHjaTa BO ceramHuTe okoiaHocTh. Cemak, uaHuTe (QIyKTyariy Ha 1a3apoT He
MOXe Ja C€ MPEIBUIAT CO TOYHOCT U MPEIU3HOCT.

6) Kamamen pusux

HpI/IXOZ[I/ITe 1 ONCPAaTUBHUTC NMApUYHU TCKOBU Ha prnaunjaTa CC BO rojiecMa MCpa HE3aBUCHU O
IMpoMEHAaTa Ha IMMa3apHUTEC KaMaTHU CTallKH.

I[IpomMena Ha KamMaTHHTE CTalNKd M KaMaTHUTE MaprHHM MOXAT Ja BIHjaaT Bp3 (PUHAHCUCKUTE
TPOIIIOIY 1 MOBPATOT HA (HHAHCUCKUTE HHBECTHUIIHH.

[IpomeHnTe Ha na3apHUTE KaMaTHH CTAIIKW BIIMjaaT HA MPUXOAMTE OJ KaMaTH HA OPOUYCHM ACHO3UTH
Bo Oanku. Ha 31 nmexemBpu 2021 ronuna, ['pynanujata Hema opodeHU Jeno3uT Bo Oankute (2020:
415.000 unjagu nenapu). [lopanu toa, 1% mopact Ha kKaMaTHaTa cTalka Ha Ma3apoT OW MpPeIn3BUKAIO
(ceteris paribus) kamaTara 11a ce 3roJieMu co mpuOMmKHO 4.150 Wjagu meHapw HA TOTUITHO HUBO 3a
2020 ronuHa, 10JeKa CIMYHO HaMaTyBame OM IPEIN3BUKATIO HCTO HAMATyBamkhe Ha KaMarara.

8) Jlesuzen puszux

Uznoxenocra Ha ['pynanujata Ha IeBU3EH PU3UK € MUHMMAIIHA CO OrJies Ha (akoT JeKa HajTOJIeMUOT
JeT 0N JOTOBOpUTE TMOBp3aHM €O MelYHapOAHUTE TpaHCakUuM (MpoJakOuTe W HabaBKUTE) ce
HomuHUpanu Bo EYPO, uujmto kypc Oemie crabunen Bo TekoT Ha menata 2021 roguna. Mcto Taxa,
JOTOBOPHTE 32 MpoAak0a Ha JOMAIIHUOT Ma3ap ce HoMuHupanu Bo EYPO.

3a moTpebuTe Ha aHajiW3a Ha YYBCTBUTEIHOCT O] JEBU3HHOT PHU3UK. PakoBOACTBOTO KOPHCTH
npeTrnoctaBka of 1% 3ronemyBame Ha AeBU3HUOT Kypc Ha EYP. mito ce cMmera 3a pa3yMHO co orien
Ha ctabuiHaTa JOMallHa BajnyTa Bo ogHoc Ha EYP Bo TexoT Ha mamunarute rogunu. Ha 31 nexemBpu
2021 roguna, nokonky EYP 6u 6uno 1% (2020: 1%) nocnabo mau nmocuinHo Bo cropenda co MK/,
JoOMBKaTa Mociie 0JaHouyBamke BO HETO OmnancoT 6u ouna 2.601 unjanu nenapu (2020: 2.290 unjanu
JIeHapH) MIOBHCOKA MJIM TOHUCKA, COOJIBETHO.

2) Pusux na muxeuonocm

praBy'BaH)CTO CO PHU3UKOT Ha JIMKBHUJIHOCT HO,E[p3.36I/Ipa pacnojiarakb€ CO AJOBOJIHU KOJIMYECTBA Ha
TOTOBHHA, KAKO 1 MOXXHOCT 3a (bHHchnpaH,e IMPEKY KOPUCTCHHE Ha JOTOBOPHU KPCAUTHU apaHKMaHU.

0) Kpeoumen puzux

I'pynanujata Hemaat 3HauajHa KOHIIEHTpalMja Ha KPEOIUTEH pU3UK. [ pymanujata mMaaT BOCIIOCTaBEHO
TakBa MOJMTHKA KOja LITO MpeABUAYBa MpoJakOa Ha CBOWTE MPOM3BOAU Ha KIHMEHTH CO COOIBETHA
KpenuTHa ucropuja. Mcro Taka, ['pymanujata nMa BOCHOCTaBEHO TakBa MOJHUTHKA KOja MpeIBUAYBa
JMMUTHpame HAa U3HOCOT Ha KPEIWTHA HM3JI0KEHOCT Ha MoeAuHe4YHuTe kimeHTu. [loceOHO, 3a ma ce
HamaJu 0BOj pusuk ['pynanmjata Gapa o06e30eayBama Kako MTO ce: OaHKapCKH rapaHLuy U ACTO3HUTH.
Ha 31 nexemBpu 2021 roanHa He MOCTOjaT OTBOPEHU COMHMTEIIHU 3HAYajHU KPEIUTHH PU3HLHI KOU
BeKe He ce MOKPUEHHU CO pe3epBaliija 3a COMHHTENIHHU o0apyBama.
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Bo Bpcka cO KpPEeOIUTHHMOT PHU3HMK KOJIITO MPOM3JIEryBa O JpyTUTe (DUHAHCHUCKH CPENCTBa Ha
I'pynamnujata, KoM ce COCTOjaT OJ Mapu W TApUYHHU CPEACTBA, U KPATKOPOYHHU IM0O0ApyBama 3a
103ajMUIla, MaKCHMaTHaTa M3JIOKEHOCT Ha ['pymainujara Ha KpeIWTCH PHU3HK MOpPaaX Hellakame Ha
JIOTOBOpHATa CTpaHa € eJHaKBa Ha CMETKOBOJCTBEHAaTa BpEIHOCT Ha OBHe WHCTpymMeHTH. Ha 31
nexemBpH 2020 rojuHa, MApUYHUTE CPEACTBA U MAPHUYHHUTE EKBUBAJICHTH Ha [ pymamnujara ce yyBaaT
KaKO KpPaTKOPOYHH JICTIO3UTH U TEKOBHH CMETKH BO BUCOKO OIICHETH (PMHAHCUCKH WHCTUTYIIUH.

YHpaBYBaH)e CO KaImuTaJa0T

[IpumapHaTa 1ei Ha ynpaByBameTO CO KamuTalnoT Ha ['pynamnmjara e ma ce o0e30enu U OApKyBa
CTaOWJICH KPEAWTEH PEJTUHT W COOJBETHH IOKa3aTelM Ha KAIUTaJOT CO I Ja C€ IOJIPXKH
paboTemEeTo U 1a e MAaKCHUMH3UPA BPETHOCTA HA aKIIMOHEPHTE.

I'pynanujata ynpaByBa cO CBOjaTa CTPYKTypa Ha KalWTaJl U NIPaBU KOPEKIMH HAa UCTHOT. KOU C€ BO
COTJIACHOCT CO TMPOEMEHUTE Ha EKOHOMCKUTE (akTOpH. 3a Ja ja OApKyBa M Ja ja Koperupa
CTpyKTypaTa Ha KamuTajoT. [pymanujaTa MOXKe Ja ja KOperupa AMBHJCHAATAa HCIIaTeHA Ha
aKIMOHEPHUTE, J1a BpaTH KaluTal Ha aKIMOHEPUTE WM TaK Ja U3aJe TOTIOJHUTEITHI HOBH aKITUH, BP3
OCHOBa Ha TPETXONHA OJIyKa Ha aKIHMOHEpHTe. BO TEKOT HA TOAMHWTE IITO 3aBpinyBaar Ha 31
nekemBpu 2021 rommna m 31 nexemBpu 2020 roguHa He Oea HampaBEeHHW MPOMEHH BO IICIIHTE,
MOJIUTUKUTE WJIM MPOIlecUTe Ha ['pynaiujara.

JesoBHa koMOMHALMja
I'pynanumjara ce 3m00u co 100% on ocHoBHata riapuuHa Ha WMJ| Kommanm 3a 21 munmon MK
roroBuHa Ha 4 HoemBpu 2020 rommna. ]| Kommanu mocexysa 100% on xamutanot ma OITAJIUT

Jlooen kommaHWja Koja TOCEAyBa OAPEACHU JIMIEHIM 32 UCTpakyBame W pa3Boj Ha Oomant. ID
Komnanu e ctekHata co uen ['pynanujara 1a go0ue mprcTan 10 JOMOJTHUTESIIHN Pe3ePBH.
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7. HEMATEPWJAIIHU CPE[ICTBA

OcraHat CpepctBa

Marextu u lyasun  CodptBep " BO BkynHo
nuueHUU
cpeAcTBa NoAroToBKa

HabaBHa BpegHoCT
Canpgo Ha 1 JaHyapu 2021 18.344.060 - 29.822.599 - 48.166.659
3ronemyBatbe - 2.467.788 5.718.887 - 8.186.675
HamanyBsare (16.625.060) - - - (16.625.060)
Canpgo Ha 31 [ekemspu 2021 1.719.000  2.467.788 35.541.486 - 39.728.274
WUcnpaBka Ha BpeaHoCTa
Cango Ha 1 JaHyapu 2020 13.878.627 - 16.117.830 - 29.996.457
AmopTu3aumja 99.720 - 5.422.690 - 5.522.410
Hamanysare (13.613.600) - - - (13.613.600)
Canpgo Ha 31 [lekemapu 2021 364.747 - 21.540.520 - 21.905.267
Hemo cmemkoeodcmeeHa eped-
Hemo cmemkoeodcmeeHa eped-
HabaBHa BpegHoCT
Cango Ha 1 JaHyapu 2020 17.845.460 - - - - 17.845.460
3ronemyBate 498.600 - 29.822.599 - 6.344730  36.665.929
Hamanysame - - - (6.344.730)  (6.344.730)
Cango Ha 31 [lekemspu 2020 18.344.060 - 29.822.599 - - 48.166.659
WUcnpaBka Ha BpegHocTa
Cango Ha 1 JaHyapu 2020 13.613.600 - - - - 13.613.600
AwmopTu3auuja 265.027 - 16.117.830 - - 16.382.857
Hamanysare - - - - - -
Cango Ha 31 [lekemepu 2020 13.878.627 - 16.117.830 - - 29.996.457
Hemo cmemkosodcmeeHa eped-
HOCM Ha 31'queMepu 2020 4465533 - 13704769 - - 18170202
Hemo cmemkosodcmeeHa eped-
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8. MATEPWJANHKW CPEACTBA

Ha6aBHa BpeaHoCT

Canpo Ha 1 Janyapu 2021
3ronemyBate

Hamanysarbe

KypcHu pasnuku

Cango Ha 31 [ekemspu 2021

WUcnpaBka Ha BpegHoCTa

Canpo Ha 1 Janyapu 2021
AmopTu3aumja
Hamanysarbe

KypcHu pasnuku

Canpo Ha 31 Jekemspu 2021

HeTo cmeTKOBOACTBEHA BPeAHOCT Ha
31 ODekemBpwu 2021

HeTo cmeTKOBOACTBEHA BPeAHOCT Ha
1 Janyapwu 2021

Ha6aBHa BpegHoCT

Canpo Ha 1 JaHyapu 2020
3ronemyBatse

Hamanysarbe

KypcHu pasnuku

Canpo Ha 31 lekemspu 2020

WUcnpaBka Ha BpeaHoCTa

Canpo Ha 1 JaHyapu 2020
AmopTu3aumja

Hamanysare

KypcHu pasnuku

Canpo Ha 31 Jekemspu 2020

HeTo cmeTKOBOACTBEHA BPEAHOCT Ha
31 fekemBpm 2020

HeTto cmMeTkoBOACTBEHA BPEAHOCT Ha
1 Janyapwm 2020

3emjuwire Fpagemrm Onpema VHBecTuum Bo BKYMHO
objekTn Tek

1045518235 2.657.713.833 4.997.774.167  175.634.464 8.876.640.699
- 3305725  199.787.737 355591949  558.685.411
(6.708.353)  (12.710.226) (206.689.681) (226.108.260)
- (7.657) (7.472) - (15.129)
1.045518.235 2.654.303.548 5.184.844.206  324.536.732 9.209.202.721
153.958.095 2.124.986.397 4.085.821.947 - 6.364.766.439
25510115  20.938.399  155.287.132 - 201.735.646
- (4683314)  (12538522) - (17.221.836)
- (1.491) (1.432) - (2.923)
179.468.210  2.141.239.991 4 208.569.125 - 6.549.277.326
866.050.025  513.063.557  956.275.081  324.536.732 2.659.925.395
891.560.140  532.727.436  911.951.220  175.634.464 2.511.874.260
1030573144 2.586.835.290 4.802.770.760  232.878.168 8.653.057.362
14945091 72040526  213.027.959  308.602.555  608.616.131
- (1.184.430)  (18.044.594) (365.846.259) (385.075.283)
- 22.447 19.042 - 41.489
1.045518.235 2.657.713.833  4.997.774.167 _ 175.634.464 8.876.640.699
136.819.847  2.090.342.027 3.952.163.853 - 6.179.325.727
17138248  34.643450  137.636.573 - 189.418.271
- - (3.980.360) - (3.980.360)
- 920 1.881 - 2.801
153.958.095  2.124.986.397 _4.085.821.947 - 6.364.766.439
891.560.140  532.727.436  911.951.220  175.634.464 2.511.874.260
893.753.297  496.493.263  850.606.907 232.878.168  2.473.731.635
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=4
9 BUONOLLKK CPEICTBA
HepoBpLuenn MoBeke- CpepctBa
3eMjoaencku OctoeHo  O6pTHO roAuWLLIHN BO BKYIMHO
cTago cTago
npousBoam Hacagn noAroToBKa

Cocrojba Ha 1 JaHyapu 2021 - - - - -
3ronemyBatbe kako pe3yntar Ha

HabaBkm - - - - -
HamanyBatbe kako pesynTar Ha

npoaaxon - - - - -
OxHeaHn 3eMjoAEenck1 Npoun3Boam

NPEHECEHN BO 3annxu - - - - -
lMpomeHa Ha BpeaHoCTa Ha

BuonoLkuTe cpeacTea - - - - -
Tpowoun Ha amopTusauuja Ha

fuonowkuTe cpeacTsa - - - - -

Cocmoj6a Ha 31 Jekemepu 2021 - - - - -
HemekosHu cpedcmea
TekosHuU cpedcmea

BkynHo 6uonowku cpedcmea 2021 - - - - -

Cocrojba Ha 1 JaHyapu 2020 - - - - -
3ronemyBatbe Kako pe3ynTar Ha

HabaBKu - - - - -
HamanyBsarbe kako pesynTar Ha

npoaaxom - - - - -
OxHeaHu 3eMjogencku Npou3BoaH

NPEHeCeHM BO 3anmnxu - - - - -
lMpomeHa Ha BpeaHoCTa Ha

BuonowkuTe cpeacTsa - - - - -
Tpowous Ha amopTusauMja Ha

BuonoLwkuTe cpeacTea - - - - -

Cocmoj6a Ha 31 fekemepu 2020 - - - - -
HemexogHu cpedcmea
TexosHu cpedcmea

BkynHo 6uonowku cpedcmea 2020 - - - - -
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10. AONTTOPOYHN ®UHAHCUCKN CPE[ICTBA

Brioxysarba BO KOHBEPTUOUITHM 06BP3HULIL
BkynHo:

Bpoj Ha KOHBEPTUOWIHW 06BP3HULY:

[MpaBa Kou 1 HocaT KOHBEPTUOUNHWUTE 0OBP3HULY:

11. MOBAPYBAA Of1 KYIYBAYHU

MobGapyBara og Kynysauu BO 3emjaTa
MobapyBama of KynyBaum BO CTPAHCTBO
3acTtapeHun, COMHUTENHM W cropHW nobapyBara
BpenHocHo ycornacyBatbe Ha nobapyBata

BkynHo:

12. NAPU4HU CPEACTBA

lMapuyHn CpeacTBa Ha LeHapCKu CMETKM
MapuyHn cpeacTea BO AeHapcka bnarajHa
JleBn3Ha cmeTka

[eBusHa bnarajHa

BkynHo:

TekoBHa roguHa

I'IpeTonHa roguHa

TekoBHa roguHa

I'IpeTxo.qHa roguHa

182.994.361 187.031.781
169.175.496 126.980.356
3.433.530 4.268.554
(3.433.530) (4.268.554)
352.169.857 314.012.137

TekoBHa roguHa

HPETXOAHa roguHa

188.180.339 613.142.115
168.621.318 84.466.690
356.801.657 697.608.805
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13. OCHOBHA NMABHUHA

PopoBu Ha akuuu
2021

Bo concTBeHocT Ha

01.01.2021 %

Cocrojoa

sronem. Haman. 31.12.2021 %

OBuYHM aKumm

Ouanyakm nuuya
MpaBHu nuua

OTKyneHn COnCTBEHM

90.263.305 5,16
1.657.466.444 94,84

- 8,33%
0,45%

82.639.769 4,73
1.665.089.980 95,27

aKuum - - - -
MpuopuTeTHW akuu ®MNKO - - - -
BkynHo 1.747.729.749 100 - - 1.747.729.749 100

2020 01.01.2020 % sronem. Haman. 31.12.2020 %
Ouanyky nuua 90.263.305 5,16 - - 90.263.305 5,16

OBuYHM aKumm

MpUOPUTETHN aKLMM

MpaBHu nuua

OTKyneHn ConCTBEHM
aKuum

ornno

1.657.466.444 94,84

1.657.466.444 94,84

BKynHo 1.747.729.749

14. 0ONTOPOYHN OBBPCKU

OGBpCKM CO POK Ha OCTacyBatbe Haj 5 roAuHN:

B Ha obBpcka:

Bup Ha 0besbenyBatbe:

O6BpCKK crpema NoBp3aHM ApyLUTBa

ObBpcky kKoH obaByBaym

OBBpcky cnpema NoBp3aHM OpyLUTBA MO OCHOB Ha 3aeMU

OGBpCKM MO OCHOB Ha KpeauTH

OBBpckM N0 OCHOB Ha 3aeMM

OcTaHaTV JONrOPOYHM 0BBPCKN:

BkynHo:
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15. KPATKOPOYHU OBBPCKU CMPEMA JOBABYBAYU

[lobaByBaun BO 3emjata
[lobaByBaun BO CTPAHCTBO
[o6aByBaun 3a HehaKTypupaHu CTOKM

BkynHo:

TekoBHa roguHa

MpeTxoaHa roguHa

571.961.149 352.966.237
629.263.687 492.969.307
13.667.633 19.177.389
1.214.892.469 865.112.933

16. KPATKOPOYHU OBBPCKW MO 3AEMU U KPEQUTH

KpaTkopouHu 0BBpCKM MO 3aeMM 1 KpeauTy cripema
noBp3aHu ApyLITBa

KpaTKopouHu KpeauTu Bo 3emjaTa
KpaTkopouHu KpeauTv BO CTPAHCTBO
BkynHo:

17. MPUXOQM O MPOAAXEA

Mpuxoaw og npogaxba Bo 3emjata
Mpuxoam of npoaaxba BO CTPAHCTBO

BkynHo:

TekoBHa roguHa

700

MpeTxoaHa roguHa

700

TekoBHa roguHa

MpeTxoaHa roguHa

3.255.740.073 3.258.719.580
1.920.810.276 1.567.191.587
5.176.550.349 4.825.911.167

23



— / CEMENTARNICA USJE

18. OCTAHATU NPKXOAHU

Mpnxoau of HaeMHUHN

Mpuxoay o4 HannaTeHn OTNWLAHU nobapyBatba
Mpuxopun o4 ApXasHU NOAAPLLKA

BkynHo:

19. OCTAHATU PACXOOU

TpaHcnopTHU ycnyru

TpoLuouy 3a caemu

HaemHuHa

JHeBHUUM 3a cnyx6eHn naTyBarsa ¥ NaTHU TPOLLIOLY

TpOLLOLM 3a YNEHOBK Ha OPraHOT Ha YnpaByBatbe,
HaA30PHUOT 0A00p W 33 UNEHOBMTE Ha OCTaHaTUTe
opraHm

Tpowouy 3a npomouuja, NponaraHaa 1 peknama
Mpemun 3a ocurypyBake

BaHkapcku ycnyri 1 Tpowwouy 3a NnateH NpomeT
Tpowouy 3a pesuanja

TpoLLOLM 33 OCTaHaTU MHTENEKTYanHM ycnyru
BpeaHoCHO ycornacyBarke Ha KpaTkopouHyu nobapysara
3arybu og oTyfyBake Ha HETEKOBHM CpeacTsa
OctaHatu pacxogu

BKynHO ocTaHaTH onepaTUBHU Pacxoau

20. TPAHCAKLIUK CO NMOBP3AHW OPYLITBA

MoGapyeatba Mo OCHOB Ha KyNonpoaaxH! OfHOCH
OBGBpPCKY MO OCHOB Ha KynonpogaxH1 0JHOCH

Mpuxoau o npoaaxba Ha roToBM NPOU3BOAN

Mpuxoau o npopaxba Ha CTOKM

TekoBHa roauHa

I'Ipe'rxo.qHa roguHa

31.947.450 23.649.975
1.134
148.704

32,097.288 23.649.975

TekoBHa rofjuHa

MpeTxoaHa rognHa

227.404.666 212.479.654
8.301.468 7.901.478
3.339.979 2.707.360
3.593.997 1.463.896

13.214.251 11.156.022
1.681.122 1.457.215
2.610.999 2.467.783

11.649.394 16.583.997

399.729 977.681
130.157 12.140
28.331.509 29.722.500
286.929.726

300.657.271

TekoBHa roguHa
157.189.356
162.178.078
557.065.078
414.075.552

MpeTxoaHa roguHa
111.309.886
198.613.993
660.163.838
250.310.297





